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President’s Statement
FERSE
Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the "Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”), | am pleased to present the annual results of
Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “"Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2019.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’'s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$830,347,000 (2018: approximately
HK$331,521,000), representing an increase of approximately
HK$498,826,000 or approximately 150.5% as compared to
last year. The profit for the year attributable to the Company's
shareholders was approximately HK$315,959,000, as compared
to a profit of approximately HK$297,163,000 last year. This year's
gross profit margin was 42.6%. The basic and diluted earnings per
share amounted to HK$3.52 for the year ended 31 March 2019.
The Board is therefore pleased to recommend a final dividend of
HK5 cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2019.

This year, the Group successfully completed several major
transactions, such as, the disposal of No. 6 La Salle Road Property
and Easy Tower, and the acquisition of Inverness Road Property,
as well as commencing the redevelopment of Waterloo Road. The
Group is able to diversify its assets in the commercial/industrial
sectors and the residential sector, and expand its property
development and investment business.

The Group will continue to focus on its strength to diversify
its properties portfolio, investing in high quality assets and
strengthening the income base of the Group. Outside real estate,
the Group obtained licenses for provision of financial services and
will continue to make use of its competitiveness to expand its
loan financing business.
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The Board and | would like to express our most sincere gratitude
to our staff, our shareholders and our business partners for their
continued support and are confident that with such support and
strong leadership and management, the Group will continue to
grow and create value for our shareholders.

Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
President

Hong Kong, 24 May 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE TN

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Easyknit International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to announce
the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019
together with comparative figures. These annual results have
been reviewed by the Company’s Audit Committee.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HK5 cents per share (2018: HK5 cents per share) for the year
ended 31 March 2019 to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) subject to the approval of the Shareholders
at the forthcoming 2019 annual general meeting (the "AGM").

The proposed final dividend are expected to be distributed to the
Shareholders on 2 September 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company (“Register of
Members") will be closed during the following periods and during
these periods, no transfer of shares will be registered:

(i) To Attend and Vote at the AGM

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the AGM, the Registers of Members
will be closed from Monday, 5 August 2019 to Thursday, 8
August 2019, both days inclusive.

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all
properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the branch
share registrar (“Branch Share Registrar”) of the Company
in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited of Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 2
August 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(ii) To Qualify for the Proposed Final Dividend

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’ entitlement
to the proposed final dividend, the Registers of Members will
be closed from Wednesday, 14 August 2019 to Monday, 19
August 2019, both days inclusive.

In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Branch Share Registrar
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 13
August 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in property
development, property investment, securities investment and
loan financing business. The review of each business segment
of the Group is set out below.

(i) Property Development

One of the core businesses of the Group is property
development. The Group has extensive experience on
property redevelopment, in particular, acquisition of old
buildings for renewal and redevelopment. Below are the
major projects of the Group during the year.

1. Project Waterloo

The Group, through its wholly subsidiary, owns the site
at Nos. 93, 93A, 95 and 95A Waterloo Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong (also known as the Remaining Portion of
Section C of Kowloon Inland Lot No. 2145) which has
a site area of approximately 9,800 sqg. ft. (“Waterloo
Site").

The Waterloo Site will be developed into a luxurious
residential accommodation with club house facilities
and car parks and the estimated gross floor area is
approximately 48,998 sq. ft.. The development work
is in progress and is expected to be completed in late
2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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2.

La Salle Road Property

The Company, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, held
75% of a residential development site at No. 6 La Salle
Road, Ho Man Tin, Kowloon, Hong Kong (the “La Salle
Road Property”). In Q1 2018, a sale and purchase
agreement was entered into with an independent third
party for the disposal of the entire interest in such
subsidiary. On 16 October 2018, the disposal was
completed and such disposal brought to the Group gross
proceeds of approximately HK$680,685,000.

For further information, please refer to "Material
Acquisitions and Disposals” section below.

Chatham Road North

During the year under review, the Group acquired the
entire issued share capital of an investment holding
company known as Success Active Limited, which
held in excess of 80% interest in Nos. 470, 472, 474,
476 and 478 Chatham Road North, Kowloon, Hong
Kong (“Chatham Road North"). The total site area of
Chatham Road North is approximately 4,685 sq. ft.. The
Group is currently the registered owner of more than
80% of Chatham Road North.

On 29 November 2018, the Company filed an application
to the Lands Tribunal for an order to auction all the
undivided shares of Chatham Road North (including
those owned by the Group) for the purposes of
redevelopment.

If the Group successfully acquires all the remaining
units, the Chatham Road North site will be 100% owned
by the Group and will be developed into a composite
area with residential and commercial use. The estimated
gross floor area after redevelopment is expected to be
approximately 42,160 sq. ft..

For further information, please refer to “Material
Acquisitions and Disposals” section below.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

4. Acquisition of Inverness Road Property

On 8 March 2019, the Group completed the acquisition
of Inverness Road Property. Inverness Road Property
is a residential building in Kowloon Tong (also known
as New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6573). The property is
being developed into two 8-storeys residential blocks
over a basement car park with a total saleable area of
approximately 40,943 sq. ft.. It comprises 60 residential
units, 29 car parking spaces and 3 motor parking spaces.
The property is at its final stage of development and
is expected to be completed before the end of 2019.
The acquisition of Inverness Road Property is strategic
for the Group's residential development portfolio, an
activity which the Group has extensive experience.

For further information, please refer to “Material
Acquisitions and Disposals” section below.

(ii) Property Investment

Another core business of the Group is property investment.

The Group’'s investment properties comprise residential,
commercial and industrial units in Hong Kong. During the year,
the total rental income of the Group recorded approximately
HK$54,892,000 (2018: approximately HK$52,958,000),
representing an approximately 3.7% increase over the last
year.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's commercial and residential
units of the investment properties were all leased out.
The Group’'s industrial units of the investment properties
continued to maintain a high occupancy rate of 100%. The
income from the property management fee during the
year was approximately HK$984,000 (2018: approximately
HK$897,000).

Disposal of Easy Tower

On 8 March 2019, the Group successfully disposed Easy
Tower. Easy Tower, an industrial building wholly-owned by
the Group, is located at No. 609 Tai Nan West Street, Cheung
Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong, with a total gross floor area
of approximately 74,458 sq. ft..
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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It was one of the several investment properties of the Group
which is a mature investment and being a comparatively old
building with increasingly high maintenance costs. Thus, the
Group decided to dispose Easy Tower.

For further information, please refer to “Material Acquisitions
and Disposals” section below.

(iii) Securities Investment

The Group maintains a portfolio comprising blue-chip stocks
and top-tier investments products which generate high yield
in Hong Kong. The Group takes into account of the following
criteria when determining whether to take up an investment
opportunity: (i) potential return on investment in terms of
capital appreciation and dividend payment for the targeted
holding period; (ii) risks exposure in comparison with the
Group’s risk tolerance level at the prevailing time; and (iii)
diversification of the existing investment portfolio.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group recorded a loss in fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$21,794,000 (2018: a gain of approximately
HK$21,859,000).

As a result, the Group reported a segment loss of
approximately HK$19,575,000 (2018: profit of approximately
HK$38,026,000) during the year under review. The Group
received dividend income from the listed securities of
approximately HK$7,409,000 during the year under review.
As at 31 March 2019, the Group's securities investments
amounted to HK$105,666,000 (2018: approximately
HK$209,759,000). It was derived from (i) the conversion of
equity-linked investments of approximately HK$47,834,000
during the year under review; (ii) the net disposal of securities
of approximately HK$125,511,000; (iii) net decrease in market
value of securities of approximately HK$27,572,000; and (iv)
the receipt of scrip dividend of HK$1,156,000. This value
represented an investment portfolio comprising 5 (2018:
5) equity securities which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange and Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®R DN

The Group's significant securities investments as at 31 MR2019F3A31H  AEEZEKRF
March 2019 were as below: HFIHREWT -

Approximate

percentage
held to the Approximate
total issued Dividend Fair value percentage of
share capital income for  (loss)/gain for total assets of
of the Investment  the year ended  the year ended Fair value the Group at
No. of company/ cost/cost of 31 March 31 March at 31 March 31 March
Company name/(stock code) shares held investment acquisition 2019 2019 2019 2019
gz S
HARERS HE 2019838318 2019534318
BRE/BE 201953A31A LFEZ S hA%E
BEIER REREK/ LFEZ ATE 2019538318 BEEY
RAEE/ (RERE) BERMEA BHEI WBHA REMWA  (BB) /EH ZDVE BHEI
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
% TET AT TET TET %
HSBC Holdings plc (5) 692,427 0.003 52,814 2,760 (7.112) 44,246 0.9
ELERAER ARG
Best Food Holding Co. Ltd (1488) 17,728,000 1.123 22,702 212 670 21,628 0.4
BRERERAR1488)
Other listed shares* - - 47,179 4,437 (3,803) 39,792 0.8
Hih ERRL
Grand total: 122,695 7,409 (10,245) 105,666 2.1
&5t
¥ Other listed shares included 3 companies whose shares are *  Hts R R IEIM R T E
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. R EmE QARG
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN®R DN
(iv) E X mt &

(iv) Loan Financing

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded an
interest income from the loan financing business amounting
to approximately HK$18,591,000 (2018: approximately
HK$29,560,000), representing approximately 2.2% of the
total revenue of the Group. Profit derived from loan financing
business was approximately HK$14,889,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (2018: approximately HK$27,987,000).
The carrying amount of loans receivable as at 31 March 2019
was approximately HK$206,674,000 (2018: approximately
HK$259,261,000). At 31 March 2019, the Group recognised
an impairment allowance under expected credit loss model
amounting to approximately HK$3,730,000 (including
HK$3,457,000 recognised on 1 April 2018, i.e. date of
adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9
“Financial Instruments” and HK$273,000 recognised during
the year) in its loan financing business. The Group would
add margin financing services to its existing loan products
to further expand the securities-backed financing business.
The Group already holds an appropriate licence.

Below is one of the major transactions of the Group on loan
financing business:

On 19 December 2018, Great Sail Global Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
loan agreement with Fortunate Gravity Hongkong Limited
(“Borrower"), an independent third party, pursuant to which,
Great Sail Global Limited agreed to lend HK$40,000,000 to
the Borrower at an interest rate of 15.50% per annum for a
period of 12 months. The loan is secured by share charges
and personal guarantee.

The purpose of the loan shall be used exclusively for
repayment of the outstanding principal amount of a loan
advanced under a facility agreement entered between the
parties in 2016.

Further information can be found in the announcement
published by the Company on 20 December 2018. For the
year ended 31 March 2019, the total interest income received
from the Borrower was approximately HK$6,030,000.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®R DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW B %% B A

Year ended 31 March
HZE=3A31MHILFE

2019 2018 Change
2019 20184 &
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Revenue = 1 830,347 331,521 498,826
Gross profit E X 353,892 174,169 179,723
Gross profit margin ESPER 42.6% 52.5% (9.9%)
Distribution and selling i NN
expenses 53,044 30,118 22,926
Administrative expenses THEAX 60,226 55,396 4,830
Finance costs Bh & B AN 23,043 16,935 6,108
Profit before taxation Bx i A1 % F 354,985 319,809 35,176
Taxation charge MIEHEX 39,171 22,646 16,525
Profit for the year A EE R 315,814 297,163 18,651
Profit for the year attributable ARAFREREN
to shareholders of the Company 7 & i # 315,959 297,163 18,796
Net profit margin SFOE A = 38.0% 89.6% (51.6%)
Earnings per share EREF
Basic and diluted EXRKEE HK$3.527% ;T HK$3.747 7T (HK$0.227% T)
Revenue wER

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group's revenue leaped # E2019F3A3MBItFE A&EB 2 &
by approximately 150.5% to approximately HK$830,347,000 as 3 %88 X F v & % 58 49331,521,000/5 7t
compared with last year of approximately HK$331,521,000 which A 18 3 5l 47150.5% Z 49830,347,0007% 7T
was mainly due to the gain from disposing a subsidiary which FTE2REREE—HHBE AR (EEB W
owned 75% interest of La Salle Road Property. DR B EEETSR)TEE WA -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE TN

Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
was approximately HK$353,892,000, representing an increase
of approximately 103.2% or approximately HK$179,723,000 as
compared to approximately HK$174,169,000 in 2018. Gross
profit margin for the year reached approximately 42.6% (2018:
approximately 52.5%), representing a decrease of approximately
9.9% over the last financial year.

Profit before Taxation

Profit before taxation of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2019 was approximately HK$354,985,000, as compared with
last year profit before taxation of HK$319,809,000. The elevation
was mainly due to the increase in profit generated from property
sales, through disposing a subsidiary which owned 75% interest
in La Salle Road Property.

Distribution and selling expenses of the Group increased from
approximately HK$30,118,000 to approximately HK$53,044,000,
an increase of approximately 76.1% as compared with the last
year. It was mainly attributable to the sale of La Salle Road
Property.

Administrative expenses of the Group were approximately
HK$60,226,000, a slight increase of approximately 8.7% over
last year of approximately HK$55,396,000.

During the year under review, there was a gain in change in
fair value of investment properties amounting to approximately
HK$126,430,000 (2018: approximately HK$159,475,000).

Finance costs of the Group was approximately HK$23,043,000
which increased by approximately HK$6,108,000 or approximately
36.1% for the year from approximately HK$16,935,000 in 2018.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

£ ER =

N £ B RN E E201963A318 IF £ 8
2 E A 4 5353,892,000/8 JT » B 20184
#3174,169,0007% JT K # #9103.2% =k 49
179,723,000 L e R FEFE 2 EFM XD A
42.6% (20184 : #152.5%) » & + & Bf B
FETHL9%

BR i Al & F
REBREBE2019F3831HIEFE 2
B B AT @ A 4 £ 354,985,000 T ™ &
F b B AT & A B 49 &319,809,0007% T -
FERRMEHEEEN RAEMEEB
HERRDFEYERBET5% R = 7 MW
BARAa)-

AN EE Z &K A A 430,118,000 JT
i Z #953,044,00078 JT 0 8 = F 1 N4
76.1%  TEZHRHERDFEYHEME -

RNEB Z1THBFAX % 560,226,000 5T ¢
8 & F #755,396,000 78 7T B 12 498.7% ©

REBEFERN BREYWELAFTEEZD
B A W3S #9126,430,000% JT (20184 & 49
159,475,000 7T) °

KEE 2B E AL H23,043,000% 7T ¢

K FE 20184 # 416,935,000 I 1%
1N #96,108,0007% 7T 8% £4136.1% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Profit for the Year and Earnings per Share

Profit for the year of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2019 was approximately HK$315,814,000 (2018: profit of
approximately HK$297,163,000), representing an increase of
approximately 6.3% as compared to last year. Net profit margin
of this year is approximately 38.0% as compared to the net profit
margin of approximately 89.6% of last year.

Taxation increased by approximately 73.0% to approximately
HK$39,171,000 from last year of approximately HK$22,646,000.

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year 31 March 2019
was HK$3.52 as compared to basic and diluted earnings per share
HK$3.74 in last year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its operations through internally generated
cash flow and bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2019, the Group's
bank borrowings amounted to approximately HK$1,285,984,000
(2018: approximately HK$1,151,742,000). The gearing ratio of
the Group, calculated as a ratio of total bank borrowings to total
equity, for the year was approximately 0.36 (2018: approximately
0.36).

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has net current assets
of approximately HK$1,690,736,000 (2018: approximately
HK$1,029,394,000). Current ratio was 2.8 (2018: 2.5). The bank
balances and cash as at 31 March 2019 was approximately
HK$191,670,000 (2018: approximately HK$150,370,000),
representing an increase of approximately 27.5% or approximately
HK$41,300,000.

KXEBREEARAE  2019F#H
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XEEBNESRAEF

HE2019F3A3TALFE  RAFZAK
F 3% Fl 49 5315,814,00078 7T (2018 4F -
S F #7297,163,0005 7T) © 8 £ 4 Mt A
ERO63% R - AFEFHEMNENH A
38.0% ' M4 Al A F & F X%89.6% °

T2 78 B S M &= F 4922,646,00078 7T 18 101 49
73.0% & #739,171,00075 T °

HE2019FE3A3MBIEFE FREAR
BERMNAIRBETMEFNAERE
RAEEERMNBITABIT -

RBESRVEER
AEEFBRBANBEENR SR LETE
EARHZERMESD - W2019F3 A31
B AEERITEEHXAE1,285,984,000
7 70 (20184 & #91,151,742,000/8 7T) »
AEE AEEMNEEABLERBIRT
BEERBEaESEBZAN )N E0.36
(20184F : 490.36) °

MR2019F3A3TH AEB B EE
SHAE 4 /1,690,736,000 7T (20184F : 4
1,029,394,000% 7T) ° i Btk & 52.8(2018
fF:25)° HR2019F3A31H R 1T &
Y I’ 4 4 A191,670,00078 JT (20184 :
#7150,370,0007% JT) * 38 0 4927.5% 3% 49
41,300,000 JT °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE TN

Capital Structure

Placing

On 4 May 2018, Get Nice Securities Limited, as placing agent,
and the Company entered into a placing agreement for placing up
to 11,900,000 new ordinary shares of the Company at the placing
price of HK$4.60 per placing share. The placing price represented
a discount of approximately 7.8% to the closing price as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on the date of the placing agreement.
The placing was completed on 17 May 2018. 11,900,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company had been successfully placed
to not less than six placees who and whose ultimate beneficial
owners are independent professional, institution or individual
investors. The net proceeds from the placing, after deducting the
placing commission and other related expenses payable by the
Company, was approximately HK$54.19 million.

As at the date of this report, all the net proceeds have been
fully utilised in the acquisition of Success Active Limited, the
registered owner of over 80% of interest in Chatham Road North.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 4 May 2018 and 17 May 2018.

As a result, the issued ordinary shares of the Company increased
from 79,420,403 shares to 91,320,403 shares.

Charges of Assets

As at 31 March 2019, bank loans amounting to approximately
HK$1,285,984,000 (2018: approximately HK$1,151,742,000)
were secured by leasehold properties, investment properties,
properties held for development for sale, properties held for
sale, life insurance policy, listed equity securities in Hong Kong,
perpetual bonds and debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income of the Group having a net book
value of approximately HK$3,064,625,000 (2018: approximately
HK$2,674,668,000).

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

RA &8
EEFH

M2018F6H4H A A B S MK®E
ETESBRAARGNUREEME UE
I B & €4.607% T & & & % 11,900,000
BARRAB zHEBRBRD BEBEBREESE
WpaE B BR R TR B AT BT P s M T (B 4T B
#7.8% - B & =18 2 N2018F5H17H
SEAK ° 11,900,000 i A A & 2 #7 & 38 % 19
EHESEREXNES TP R6%E &
A REARBEESEZCERKEGR
BEAEARBUEXE HKEXIEAKRESE -
KR ARAIENcRERES REMAE
BRASX%E BEETEMSREIFELA
54,190,000 TT °

RAFHRAMB AERBFEE2ID
2 A 1E 7 W B Success Active Limited ' 7%
RAlBARMEIL BB ER 2 ES
HwEA -

BHFEMAER B2 AR A N2018F5
H4H k201858178 % HmE) A o

Mgt AR A B T E®BAR A 79,420,403
A% 1% AN = 91,320,403 % °

EERSR

7201993 H31H » 17T E H 491,285,984,000
7 7T (20184 = #91,151,742,0007 7T) J5 JA A
% B8R ¥ B 4J 5 3,064,625,0007% 7T (2018
F 1 42,674,668,0008 L) 2 K ME - &
BEWE BELEEEWE FELEDY
X ANEBRE - BFLTMZREES X
ABHEUREBEAFEFAEMEAKFZ 2
BEHRERBEIEAREM-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are in Hong Kong
dollars. During the year, the Group did not have significant
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and thus, no financial
instrument for hedging purposes was employed. The Directors
considered the risk of exposure to the currency fluctuation to
be minimal.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
(1) Acquisition of Chatham Road North

During the year under review, the Group acquired the entire
issued share capital of an investment holding company,
Success Active Limited, which held in excess of 80% interest
in Chatham Road North. The total site area of Chatham Road
North is approximately 4,685 sq. ft.. The Group is currently
the registered owner of more than 80% of Chatham Road
North.

On 29 November 2018, the Company filed an application to
the Lands Tribunal for an order to auction all the undivided
shares of Chatham Road North (including those owned by
the Group) for the purposes of redevelopment.

If the Group successfully acquires all the remaining units,
the Chatham Road North site will be 100% owned by the
Group and will be developed into a composite area with
residential and commercial use. The estimated gross floor
area after redevelopment is expected to be approximately
42,160 sq. ft..

Details of the acquisition are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 16 May 2018, 8 June 2018 and 30
November 2018 and the Company's circular dated 25 June
2018.
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N AKRBEYERNRLBEFTHMARE
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EXRBERLEE
(1) W48 R E
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% 72 B Success Active Limited #) & &
BETBRA - ZARFEAEARMEIL
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R2018%F 11 A29H » KA R &) [ L #
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fis 25 & B B Th W B8 BT B ) &4 B8 N7
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20185 816H 201846 A8 H
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MEEJEI;THHH& *ﬁ'

(2) (a)

(2) (b)

Acquisition of Inverness Road Property

On 19 November 2018, the Group, through its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Gold Anchor Developments
Limited, entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with Kingbest Capital Holdings Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Eminence Enterprise
Limited (“Eminence”). Pursuant to which, Kingbest
Capital Holdings Limited agreed to dispose to Gold
Anchor Developments Limited the entire equity interest
in Total Expect Limited, which the material asset is
Inverness Road Property. The sale consideration was
HK$1,035,000,000. The transaction was approved by
the shareholders of the Company on 28 February 2019
and was duly completed on 8 March 2019.

Reason for Acquisition

Inverness Road Property is a residential building in
Kowloon Tong (also known as New Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 6573). It is an attractive asset to the Group
as the purchase price for the Inverness Road Property
was also lower than the valuation, the Inverness Road
Property fits well into the Group's portfolio of residential
assets and will give the Group potential to realize its
development profits.

Disposal of Easy Tower

On 19 November 2018, the Group through Easyknit
Properties Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement with Sonic Hover Limited, a
subsidiary of Eminence, pursuant to which, Sonic Hover
Limited agreed to acquire from Easyknit Properties
Holdings Limited the entire equity interest in Wellmake
Investments Limited, for which the material asset is Easy
Tower. The sale consideration was HK$470,000,000.
The transaction was approved by the shareholders of the
Company on 28 February 2019 and was duly completed
on 8 March 2019.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

(2) (a)

(2) (b)

WEEXELEYFE

M2018F 11 198 A &£ E &
BE2EWE R 5 Gold Anchor
Developments Limited - &2 & (1 1
¥ERAA(ESWDHNEENE
NAERERNE Hx*ﬂ‘ﬂﬁ“‘ .:T
NEBEBRHEEERE G B
EARZERABR QG R E MG
Anchor Developments Limited i}
£ Total Expect Limited 9 & #F i%
# i Total Expect Limited ) &
REERTEXE TEYE -
% X {8 /1,035,000,000 7% JT © #%
R 5201942288 E AR R 7]
P& BB & - I R20194 3 A8H
FREHK e

W g R A
EXETEMER —BEEER
NEENEEWE(LRE R
BE A b BR £ 65735%)  H R K
SEMmME &2 -BARI K
BE AREXBRLEMEZE
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ & 3 AE £
MENFFECAEENEEE
Eﬁé'l%ﬁ$%lwxﬁﬁ
HBERMNEBE

HEXKEERES

2018118198 » AEEFE B
% & Iff B A 5] Easyknit Properties
Holdings Limited £2 & [l 2 Bt B 2
T Sonic Hover Limitedz] 7 B {§
B E & o Itk Sonic Hover
Limited[d & % Easyknit Properties
Holdings Limited I & & & & &
ERABIMNEZHRE MELEE
BEERRAAIMBEAEEBKE
15 - $5 % R {8 A 470,000,000/
Lo R B R2019%42 2808 &
RABRREHRE - WHR2019F3
A8HIEXTMK °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Reason for Disposal

Easy Tower, an industrial building owned by the Group,
is located at No. 609 Tai Nan West Street, Cheung Sha
Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong, with a total gross floor area
of approximately 74,458 sq. ft.. It was one of the several
investment properties of the Group. Easy Tower is a
mature investment being a comparatively old building
with increasingly high maintenance costs that reduce
its net yield, and is ripe for redevelopment. Besides,
the consideration offered by Eminence included the
Inverness Road Property which the Company was keen
to acquire without being forced to raise all the cash
necessary to pay for it.

Furthermore, a property management agreement was
entered into between a subsidiary of Eminence (after
completion) and UrbanMode (HK) Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company, for the management of Easy Tower
for an initial period of three years from completion. The
Group had been the property manager of Easy Tower
and would continue to provide services including
maintenance, repairing, renovation and security for Easy
Tower after the completion. The property management
agreement is a source of recurrent income to the Group.

For further information, please refer to the joint announcement
and circular dated 21 November 2018 and 12 February 2019
respectively.

(3) Disposal of La Salle Road Property

The Company, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, held 75%
interest of La Salle Road Property. In the 1Q 2018, a sale and
purchase agreement was entered into with an independent
third party for the disposal of the entire interest in such
subsidiary. On 16 October 2018, the disposal was completed.
Such disposal brought to the Group gross proceeds of
approximately HK$680,685,000.

Further information can be found in the circular dated 24
May 2018 issued by the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries or associated companies during the year.

KXEBREEARAE  2019F#H

(3)

EEENWE D

=l

XKEEBEBR —BEEEREBBEN
BEEDPEABAETEIH v T
AE BMAEBM2EHE BE
HEEX RT4,458F R - k&
BEHSAAEEZHAKREMER
BEZ— kEESER2—EKRA
WRE MAR—EHEHKEN
BF Bz EFHREKRAKR
BEFKREZR BAETERZ- - It
S BUREZIREBSFELE XE
TEWE ARABERE M
DEARBEEMBELERESX
HRE-

gt A m LR =K &) &R
BRAAEARXQARMNETEWES
A BlUrbanMode (HK) Limited&] 32
ERKERSCMEEERERS
Mt FHAEEETKRB=F - K&
BE—mMAKEESHNWMEER
A TERTKREEERKEE
BIRHRE B BFIERZE
WEEBRE ZWEEREHZ
AEBRLEMERARIR -

ER LM 2HFHEER FL2ER
2018F 11 A21 B B & A %2019
F2A12HHB A B K-

HERYFEYFE

AR EREZEWBRAARBEAER
WOR| B Y 2 T5% ¥ FE o 20184
F—ZFTE - AEBERBILE= HF
VEEHMRUALEZWBELAAN 2
=0OR% RE - 3 MW 201810 A 16 B 5 B
Hj%OE/AHj%ﬁM&%@ R AT 15
X TH 42 %8 #7680,685,000 7 It °

EHFMER B2 ARQ AR
201845 H24 H % 1y 8 K

BREXEEN AEBRFRADEEM
EEMBARAXBERRNZERKER
HEE®E-

19



20

Management Discussion and Analysis

MIEJEM—J'HH‘]& *ﬁ'

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
31 March 2019 (2018: nil).

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group invested
approximately HK$232,000 (2018: approximately HK$6,037,000)
on the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and spent
approximately HK$4,743,000 (2018: approximately HK$3,425,000)
on additions of investment properties.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no capital commitments in
respect of capital expenditure contracted for but not provided
(2018: approximately HK$844,000).

PROPOSED SPIN-OFF

On 12 May 2017, the Company submitted a spin-off and separate
listing proposal of the Group's residential property business
("Proposed Spin-off”) to the Stock Exchange and on 24 October
2017, the Stock Exchange agreed that the Company may proceed
with the proposed spin-off.

However, on 29 March 2019, the Company received a letter
from the Stock Exchange rejecting the Proposed Spin-off on the
basis that the Company does not satisfy certain requirements of
Practice Note 15 of the Listing Rules as introduced in February
2018. The Company has filed an application for review of this
decision on 3 April 2019.

Further on 8 May 2019, the Company attended the review hearing
with the Listing Committee and on 15 May 2019, the Company
received a letter from the Listing Committee upholding the
Listing Department’s decision on rejecting the Proposed Spin-off.
The Company has decided to further appeal against the Listing
Department’s decision.

For further details, please refer to Company’s announcements
dated 27 October 2017, 9 April 2019, 17 May 2019 and 24 May
2019.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 33 employees (2018: 32).
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) amounted to
approximately HK$63,647,000 for the year under review (2018:
approximately HK$24,164,000). The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice. The Group has set out the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme for the Hong Kong's employees. The Group has a
share option scheme to motivate employees.

PROSPECTS

Despite the downward pressure global economy fueled by the
China and US trade dispute, repercussions of Brexit and the
slowing down of GDP growth in both emerging market and
advanced economies, Hong Kong's economy remains resilient.

The Board maintains a cautiously optimistic view on the property
sectors and will replenish land banks by acquiring old residential
buildings for redevelopment and tendering for new sites for
sustainable growth of its property development business. A
prudent approach will be adopted when acquiring and disposing
properties and other investments to ensure steady recurring
income and capital appreciation for the Group.

With the Group's financial resources, holistic corporate strategy
and professional experience of the management team, the Board
is confident of the continued growth for the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EECZEE

MR. TSE WING CHIU RICKY

President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu, Ricky, aged 61, is an executive director,
president, chief executive officer and authorised representative
of the Company and chairman of the Executive Committee.
Mr. Tse obtained a Master's degree in business Administration
from Adam Smith University of America in the United States
in 1996. He has more than 30 years of experience in garment
manufacturing and merchandising. He serves as director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tse was appointed to
the Board as an executive director and vice president in 2005, and
was subsequently re-designated from vice president to president
and appointed as chief executive officer in 2006. In 2007, Mr. Tse
was re-designated from an executive director to a non-executive
director of the Company and resigned as president and chief
executive officer. In 2017, Mr. Tse was re-designated from a
non-executive director of the Company to president and chief
executive officer.

MS. LUI YUK CHU

Vice President

Ms. Lui, aged 61, is a co-founder of the Group, an executive
director and vice president of the Company and a member of
the Executive Committee. She is also an executive director and
deputy chairman, and a member of the Executive Committee of
Eminence Enterprise Limited (“"Eminence”). Ms. Lui has been
involved in the textiles industry for over 30 years and has extensive
experience in design, manufacturing, marketing and distribution
of apparel. She serves as director of various subsidiaries of the
Company and Eminence. Ms. Lui was appointed to the Board as
an executive director in 1994. In 2006, Ms. Lui was appointed
as vice president. Ms. Lui is the wife of Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the
co-founder of the Group. She is also the mother of Ms. Koon Ho
Yan Candy, an executive director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors

MS. KOON HO YAN CANDY

Executive Director

Ms. Koon Ho Yan, Candy, aged 34, is an executive director and
authorised representative of the Company and is a member of the
Executive Committee since 2010. Ms. Koon obtained a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Economics and Politics from the University of
Durham, England in 2007. She also received her Bachelor of Laws
degree and Legal Practice Course qualification in 2009 from the
College of Law, England. Ms. Koon is the daughter of Ms. Lui,
the vice president of the Company.

MR. TSUI CHUN KONG

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong, aged 68, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. He is also a member and
chairman of the Audit Committee; a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. He obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the Oklahoma City
University in the United States in 1991 and is a fellow member of
both The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Tsui has
over 40 years of experience in the public accounting profession
and the commercial sector, especially the travel industry. He has
experience in the preparation for the listing of shares on the Stock
Exchange and worked for a few listed companies. Mr. Tsui is now
practising as a public accountant under his own name.
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EECZEE

MR. JONG KOON SANG

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Jong Koon Sang, aged 70, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2005. He is also a member and
chairman of the Remuneration Committee; a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. Currently, Mr. Jong is
a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Association of International Accountants,
England; a fellow member of the Chartered Management
Institute, England; a fellow member of The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong; the accountant ambassador of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants; Honorary Vice President
of Accounting Student Society of Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology; and a member of the Regional Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Hospital Authority. Since 2014, he has
been elected as director and council member of the Association of
International Accountants, England. In the years of 2011 and 2012,
Mr. Jong was the President of The Association of International
Accountants, Hong Kong Branch. Mr. Jong has over 40 years of
management experience in the financial, industrial and property
business.

MR. HON TAM CHUN

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Hon Tam Chun, aged 84, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2008. He is also a member and
chairman of the Nomination Committee; a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Hon is a retired
Magistrate and Barrister. He had been in service with the Hong
Kong Government for more than 40 years. During 1969 to 1973,
Mr. Hon was a Crown Counsel in the Legal Department of the
Hong Kong Government. He was a Judicial Officer in Judiciary
from 1975 to 1995 when he retired.
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Corporate Governance Report

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company firmly believes that the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence are essential for upholding
the interests of the stakeholders and maximizing shareholder’s
value and is dedicated to maintaining good standards of corporate
governance within a sensible and practical framework.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate governance,
it is responsible for developing and reviewing the Company's
policies and practices on corporate governance as well as
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). During the year, the Company has fully complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code, except for the deviations
disclosed herein.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky serves as President as well as Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and this dual leadership
role has been adopted by the Company for a number of years.
Such deviation is deemed appropriate as it is considered to be
more efficient to have one single person to be President of the
Company as well as to discharge the executive functions of a
Chief Executive thereby enabling more effective planning and
better execution of long-term strategies. The Board believes that
the balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by
the operations and governance of the Board which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals, with half of them
being Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company.
The Company will review the current structure when and as it
becomes appropriate.
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Code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code provides that the Group
should have an internal audit function.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. During the
year under review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group and there were no major
issues but areas for improvement have been identified by the
Audit Committee and appropriate measures taken. The Board is of
the view that the enterprise risk management and internal control
systems in place for the year and up to the date of issuance of
the annual report is effective and adequate. In addition, the Board
is currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set
up an internal audit function within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group's business. The situation will
be reviewed from time to time.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the business of the Group is vested
in the Board, who assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group's businesses,
strategic decisions and performances.

Board Composition

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board comprised six (6) Directors, including
three (3) Executive Directors and three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors.

Details of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
(President and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong
Mr. Jong Koon Sang
Mr. Hon Tam Chun

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

BECEERTREC25KTABKBIZ
ME AEBRERLAIEZIDBE -

AEBRERIAEZNE - £ 0 E
FERN EFSCHAEEANMEZES
EHARELET TR ALEHRE
AHE BEEZZECCEETAFTH
ENRE YRDNTEERE - EFER
R MRAFENMBEFREMBHAILE
HEXRAREEMABEZFED R
BERRFED W EFSEARA &
RASBEEBRE MERERELE K&
BERMITERIALEZDENRIF
Z-AEBBTIRBFE LABR -

EES
EEERETHASEZCBEBXHER
BT BEARERERARAZEMLE I
EEAFEETER KBRARREE
KB -

BEEgcdAm
REZE2009F3A3MBEFERARER
AEFRBH EFgh~L2EFAK E
FEEZRZATEER BB IFERTT
BE-

EEeMaEImT

BITES

#if K 8 5T &
(EEHREFTB A
EXnRzLBEE)
BEARZ L

BUFHTES
BEBLE
LR A S
BEELE

2019 Annual Report



Corporate Governance Report

Details of background and qualifications of all Directors are set out
in the section headed "Biographical Details of Directors” of this
annual report. Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, an Executive Director of
the Company, is the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, Vice President
of the Company.

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation at the
AGM for a term of up to three years under Article 99 of the Bye-
Laws of the Company.

The Board possesses a balance of skills, experience and diversity
which are appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Group. A balanced composition of Executive and Independent
Non-Executive Directors also generates a strong independent
element to the Board, which allows independent and objective
decision-making process for the best interest of the Group. The
Company will review the composition of the Board regularly
to ensure the Board possesses the appropriate and necessary
expertise, skills and experience to meet the needs of the business
development of the Group.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Despite the
fact that each of Mr. Tsui Chun Kong, Mr. Jong Koon Sang and
Mr. Hon Tam Chun, has served as an Independent Non-Executive
Director on the Board for more than nine (9) years, the Board is of
the view that their duration of service will not interfere with their
exercise of independent judgement in carrying out their duties
and responsibilities as the Independent Non-Executive Directors
and believes that their valuable knowledge and experience in
the Group’s business will continually benefit the Company and
the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) as a whole.
Accordingly, the Board considers that all Independent Non-
Executive Directors have met the independence guidelines of
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”),
all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at AGM no
later than the third AGM since the last re-election. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company
after his or her appointment, or any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following AGM after his or her appointment and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

Board Meeting

The Board meets regularly four times a year, i.e. at approximately
quarterly intervals. During the year, the Board convened a total
of five (5) regular meetings and the attendance of the Directors
are set out as below section headed "ATTENDANCE RECORD
OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS".

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the
Group's overall strategies and policies, approval of business
plans, evaluating the performance of the Group and oversight of
management. It is also responsible for promoting the success
of the Company and its businesses by directing and supervising
the Company's affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the
Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the
Executive Directors and senior management of every business
segment, while reserving certain key matters for its approval.
Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management
through Executive Directors who have attended Board meetings.

All Directors have been provided, on a monthly basis, with the
Group’s management information updates to give them aware of
the Group’s affairs and facilitates them to discharge their duties
under the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.
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Continuous Professional Development

During the year, the Company provides regular updates on the
business performance of the Group to the Directors. The Directors
are regularly updated on the latest development regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable statutory requirements to
ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance
practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional developments (the “Continuous Professional
Development”) to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. According to the confirmations received from
the Directors, all Directors have participated in the Continuous
Professional Development for the year ended 31 March 2019 in
the following manner:
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Name Trainings
" EAlER
(See Remarks)
(&)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky Eifl v
(President and Chief Executive Officer) (FEFEEETHAAE) v
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President) EERHuE(EFEE) v
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy BARZ L v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITESE
Mr. Tsui Chun Kong BREBLEE v
Mr. Jong Koon Sang o A A& v
Mr. Hon Tam Chun BEELE v

Remarks: Continuous Professional Development through attending
briefings/seminars/webcast/conferences/forums/online
trainings.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions as set out below:

(a) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, monitoring of the corporate
governance practices and procedures; and maintenance
of appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group to ensure compliance with
applicable rules and regulations;

(b) Toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) Toreview and monitor the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report in the
Company's annual reports.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board had performed
the above-mentioned corporate governance functions by reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers of the Group arising out of corporate
activities of the Group.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

(e)

HERBIARARANEEERRRK
RER BEEBE® %AAMﬁﬁ&f
VTHFAEEEE ﬁﬂmﬂ
A B B 4 I - HE IR 8 ST

BERHIE

%W

BEMEREERSMN
BRI BEEEER:

EEABMN

ﬁﬁ&%%$ AREBTARNE
ﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ&%i
i 5E T&Wmﬁi&§$ﬂﬁ

EU&Aﬁiﬁmﬁ)

BMEARREBTEEERTAINE
ARBBARBDFRITEEE AR

EMHEEARNRD -

NEZE2019FE3A3ALEERN €
E%%$QEZQ%EM&L¢£¢&

EEREZCBRER

Mo ETT bt

XERBE-

EENEESEERBREEE

HUAEBEEZENZ2ERETASED

XEHMmal BN ERFRIEE
ERHEENRR

NN
cREEENEBEHE-

2019 Annual Report



Corporate Governance Report

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Board Committees

The Board has established four (4) Board Committees, namely,
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Executive Committee, to assist in the execution
of the Board's responsibilities and to oversee particular aspect
of the Group's affairs. Each Board Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties properly, and holds
meetings in accordance with the Bye-Laws, its specific written
terms of reference and, where applicable, the proceedings
of the Board meeting. The terms of reference of the Board
Committees are reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that
they are aligned with prevailing governance practices. The terms
of reference of each of the Board Committees are available on the
Company’s website. The attendance of each member of the Board
Committees are set out as below section headed "ATTENDANCE
RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS".

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three (3) independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tsui Chun Kong (chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Hon Tam
Chun and held three meetings during the year ended 31 March
2019.

The chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Tsui Chun Kong,
possesses appropriate professional qualifications in finance and
accounting and meets the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules. No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of
the existing auditing firm of the Company during two years after
he ceases to be partner of the audit firm.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee included:
- to oversee the relationship with the external auditor;

—  toreview the interim and annual financial statements before
publication;

—  tooversee the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures; and

— to review of the internal control and risk management
framework.
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee has
reviewed (i) the reports from the Company’s auditor, accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, management
representation letters, and management’s response in relation
to the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the
interim results for the six months ended 30 September 2018; (ii)
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 and
the six months ended 30 September 2018 and recommended
the same to the Board for approval; (iii) the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems; and (iv) update the
dividend policy of the Company.

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2018/2019 consolidated
financial statements in conjunction with the external auditor
of the Company. Based on this review and discussions with
management, the Audit Committee was satisfied that the
consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, and fairly present
the Group's financial position and results for the year ended 31
March 2019.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three (3)
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jong Koon
Sang (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Tsui Chun
Kong and Mr. Hon Tam Chun, and one executive Director, namely
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky. The Remuneration Committee held four
(4) meetings during the year ended 31 March 2019.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee included:

—  torecommend to the Board on the Company’s policies and
structure for the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Group;

—  torecommend to the Board on the remuneration package of
all executive Directors and senior management of the Group;
and

— to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to corporate goals and objectives
by the Board from time to time.
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The primary objective of the Company’s remuneration policy is
to attract, retain and motivate the personnel by providing fair
reward for their contributions to the Group's performance. In this
context, the remuneration policy is to set the overall remuneration
package at a competitive level and in a form that permits additional
remuneration to be earned for high performance over a sustained
period. The remuneration packages are determined with reference
to the time commitment and responsibilities of each individual,
the Company’s performance and the prevailing market conditions.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the remuneration policies and structure
for the Directors and senior management of the Group.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprising three (3)
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hon Tam Chun
(chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Tsui Chun Kong,
Mr. Jong Koon Sang, and one executive Director, namely Mr.
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky. The Nomination Committee held two (2)
meetings for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee included:

—  toreview the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

— toidentify and nominate suitable candidates of directors for
the Board's consideration; and

- to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Nomination Committee
(i) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board; (ii) assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and (iii) updated the nomination policy and
diversity policy of the Company.
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Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a nomination policy and board diversity
policy which set out the nomination procedures adopted by the
Nomination Committee and the approach to achieving board
diversity in the Company in order to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and its corporate governance standard.

The Company recognizes the importance of having a diverse team
of board members, which is an essential element in maintaining
a competitive advantage. The Nomination Committee has been
delegated the authority to review and assess the diversity of the
Board and its skills and experience by way of consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
industry experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Nomination Committee will give consideration to the diversity
policy when identifying and selecting suitably qualified candidates.
The policy will be reviewed on a regular basis.

Both the nomination policy and the board diversity policy are
available on the Company's website.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all the executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky (chairman of the
Executive Committee), Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy.

It meets as and when required between regular Board meetings of
the Company, and operates as a general management committee
under the direct authority of the Board. Within the parameters
of authority delegated by the Board, the Executive Committee
is committed to the implementation of the Group's strategy
set by the Board, monitors the Group's investment and trading
performance, funding and financing requirements, and reviews
the management performance.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Messrs, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has been reappointed as
the external auditor of the Company at the 2018 AGM until the
conclusion of the forthcoming 2019 AGM.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the audit and non-audit
fees paid or payable to the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, was made up of an audit fee of approximately
HK$2,459,000 and a non-audit related service fee of approximately
HK$2,866,000. The latter included taxation service and other
professional service.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Details of the attendance of each individual Director at the Board
meetings, the Board Committee meetings, the AGM and the
special general meetings of the Company (the "SGMs") held
during the year ended 31 March 2019 is as follows:
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Attended/Eligible to attend
HE/ AERERE

Audit Remuneration  Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee
Name Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM SGMs

Exg EHzZEg ¥WzEEe REZEE RREFE REEA
i3] g3 -f ] g% 23 & VN -
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky oKL & 5/5 N/AT 8 A 4/4 2/2 n 313
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu BT 5/5 N/AT 8 N/AT & R NATER 0/1 0/3
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy BAMxt 4/5 N/AT i A N/AT & B N/AT i A 01 0/3
Independent BYFHTEE

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong BEBRE 5/5 33 4/4 2/2 1 33
Mr. Jong Koon Sang FRAERE 5/5 33 414 2/2 1 3/3
Mr. Hon Tam Chun BEBRE 4/5 33 4/4 2/2 1 2/3

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Lee Po Wing,
assists the Board by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that the Board policy and procedures are followed. In
accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Lee Po Wing
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board leads and maintains effective controls over the
Group's activities, with executive responsibility for the running
of the Group’s business being delegated to management. The
management provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates in order to give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects
to enable them to discharge their duties.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks and it is willing to take in
achieving the Group's strategic objectives and ensuring that the
Group establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. The Board is also responsible for overseeing the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems. The risk management and internal
control systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operating systems
or in achievement of the Group's business objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts a review of
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems annually by requiring all department managers to
undergo a detailed self-risk assessment process using a common
risk management framework. It covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, on an
annual basis. It also considers the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of
the Group's accounting and financial reporting function.
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Under the enterprise risk management framework, policies and
procedures are in place to identify, assess, manage, control
and report risks. Such risks include strategic, credit, operational
(administrative, system, human resources, reputation), market,
liquidity, legal and regulatory risks. Exposure to these risks is
continuously monitored by the Board through the Audit Committee.

The internal control system includes a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority. The Board has
clearly defined the authorities and key responsibilities of each
division to ensure adequate checks and balances. The internal
control system has been designed to safeguard the Group's
assets against unauthorized use of disposition, to ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records for producing reliable
financial information, and to ensure compliance with applicable
laws, regulations and industry standard.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. During the
year under review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group and there were no major
issue but areas for improvement have been identified by the Audit
Committee and appropriate measures taken. The Board is of the
view that the enterprise risk management and internal control
systems in place for the year and up to the date of issuance of
the annual report is effective and adequate. In addition, the Board
is currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set
up an internal audit function within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group's business. The situation will
be reviewed from time to time.
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Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the
Group's financial performance and cash flows for the relevant
accounting periods, and in compliance with all the relevant
statutory requirements, the Listing Rules requirements and Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards. In preparing the financial
statements of the Group, the appropriate accounting policies
are selected, applied consistently and in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and appropriate and
reasonable judgment and estimates are made. The Directors
have prepared the financial statements for the reporting year on
a going concern basis.

The Board is committed to present a clear, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group's performance and
financial positions in all its financial reporting and to ensure
relevant publications in a timely manner.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement by the Company’s external auditor about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 78 to 85 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE OF
THE LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry by the Company, the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2019.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which sets out the guideline for the Board and the
Company to determine (i) whether dividends are to be declared
and paid, and (i) the level of dividend to be paid to the shareholders
of the Company.

The Dividend Policy is to allow its shareholders to participate in
the Company’s profit whilst to retain adequate cash reserves for
its working capital requirements and future growth.

In determining/recommending the frequency, amount and form
of any dividend in any financial year/period, the Board shall, inter
alia, consider the following factors:

(i)  the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;

(i) economic conditions and other internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group;

(i) the Group's business strategies and operations, including
future cash commitments and investment needs to sustain

the long-term growth aspect of the business;

(iv) the current and future liquidity position and capital
requirements of the Group;

(v) the interests of shareholders of the Company; and
(vi) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
The dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no

assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period.
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Subject to the Company’s Bye-laws and the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622 of the laws of Hong Kong), the Company may declare
and pay dividends by way of cash or scrip or by other means that
the Board considers appropriate.

The Board may determine and pay to the Company's shareholders
interim dividends as it considers appropriate. Any final dividends
declared by the Company must be approved by the shareholders
of the Company at general meetings and must not exceed the
amount recommended by the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedure for Convening a Special General
Meeting (“SGM")

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene
a SGM of the Company. Shareholders holding in aggregate of not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the
date of deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company may send a written request to the Board to request
for a SGM. The written requisition must state the purposes of
the meeting, and must be signed by the Shareholder(s) and
deposited at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Block A, 7th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase
6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong
Kong (for the attention of the Company Secretarial Department).

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be
responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto
in accordance with the requirements under Section 74 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”) once
a valid requisition is received.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at the
General Meetings

The following Shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at
a general meeting of the Company:

(@) any number of members representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition; or

(b) notless than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the
Shareholders concerned, together with a statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposal or the business to be dealt with at the general meeting
must be deposited at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Block A, 7th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building,
Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned
would be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect
thereto in accordance with the requirements under Sections 79
and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents are received.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other a retiring
director for election as a director at a general meeting, the
Shareholder should follow the “Rules and Procedures Governing
the Election of Director”, which can be found on the website of
the Company.
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Procedures for Putting Enquiries by the
Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing via the following channel:

Company Secretarial Department
Block A, 7th Floor

Hong Kong Spinners Building

Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-mail: 1218share@easyknit.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has not
made any changes to its Bye-Laws. A consolidated version of
the Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company
are available on the website of the Company.
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The directors of the Company (“"Directors”) present this
annual report together with the audited financial statements of
Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are property development,
investment holding and loan financing and the principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on pages 86 to 88 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the
Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622) of Hong Kong including an analysis of the Group's
performance, material events that have occurred since the year
end date and an indication of likely future development in the
Group's business are contained in the preceding President’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis set out on
pages 4 to 21 of this Annual Report. Details of the Group's financial
risk management are disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In addition, relevant details of the Company’s environmental,
social and governance policies and performance are set out in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” section in
this annual report from pages 62 to 77.

The Directors were not aware of any non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the
Group during the year.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five (5) financial years is set out on page 246
of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK5
cents per share (2018: HK5 cents per share) to the Shareholders
on the register of members of the Company on 2 September
2019.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in notes 13 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties were revalued as at 31 March
2019 by an independent firm of qualified professional property
valuers and the gain/loss arising from changes in fair value
of investment properties was recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
Details of these are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE

Details of the Group's properties held for development for sale
are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2019
are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
of approximately HK$1,064,000.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 91 of this annual report and note 45
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to its
Shareholders as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Directors’ Report
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2019 2018

2019 & 2018 4F
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HK$000 HK$°000

EHF T BT T

Contributed surplus N3 220,937 220,937
Accumulated profits RET BB 710,969 721,592
931,906 942,529

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus shall not be distributed to the shareholders
if there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(@) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realizable value of the company's assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium account.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky (President and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong
Mr. Jong Koon Sang
Mr. Hon Tam Chun

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this
report are set out on pages 22 to 24 of this annual report.

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-Laws, Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy, an executive Director, will retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offers herself for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes to information required to be disclosed by Directors
are set out below. Pursuant to the Company’s policies and
practices and in consideration of the increasing level of duties and
responsibilities as well as the market conditions, the remuneration
package of the following executive Directors were reviewed and
revised with effect from 1 April 2018, details of the breakdown
are in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements:

(1) Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky — annual emoluments were
revised from approximately HK$1,168,000 to approximately
HK$1,518,000.

(2) Ms. Lui Yuk Chu - annual emoluments were revised
from to approximately HK$3,318,000 to approximately
HK$37,752,000 (excluding performance-related bonus).
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(3) Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy —annual emoluments were revised
from to approximately HK$1,264,000 to approximately
$1,864,000.

(4) The annual director’s fee of HK$420,000 per annum for all
independent non-executive Directors remains the same.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmation pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent
non-executive Directors as regards their independence to the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2019. Despite the fact
that each of Mr. Tsui Chun Kong, Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr.
Hon Tam Chun, has served as an independent non-executive
Director on the Board for more than nine (9) years, the Board is of
the view that their duration of service will not interfere with their
exercise of independent judgement in carrying out their duties
and responsibilities as the independent non-executive Directors
and believes that their valuable knowledge and experience in the
Group's business will continually benefit the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Company considers
all the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation at the
AGM for a term of up to three years under Article 99 of the Bye-
laws of the Company.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Group which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

On 19 November 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited (“Easyknit Seller”),
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Eminence Enterprise Limited (“Eminence”), Sonic
Hover Limited (“Eminence Buyer"”). Pursuant to which, Easyknit
Seller shall sell and Eminence Buyer shall acquire the entire equity
interest in Wellmake Investments Limited (“Wellmake"), which
the material asset is Easy Tower.

On the same day, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Eminence,
Kingbest Capital Holdings Limited (“Eminence Seller”),
entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement with
another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Gold Anchor
Developments Limited (“Easyknit Buyer”). Pursuant to which,
Eminence Seller shall sell and Easyknit Buyer shall acquire the
entire equity interest in Total Expect Limited, which the material
asset is Inverness Road Property.

The aforementioned acquisition and disposal took place
simultaneously; it was approved by the Shareholders of the
Company on 28 February 2019 and was duly completed on 8
March 2019.

Furthermore, on completion, a property management agreement
(“Property Management Agreement”) was entered into
between Wellmake, which was then a subsidiary of the Eminence
after completion, and UrbanMode (HK) Limited (“Manager”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to which,
Wellmake appointed the Manager to manage Easy Tower for an
initial period of three years from the completion.
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As Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy are deemed
to be interested in the transactions due to the reasons below,
both of them had abstained from voting on the related Board
resolutions of the Company:

(1) Ms. Lui Yuk Chu is, an executive Director of the Company,
is a director of the Easyknit Seller, the Manager, Wellmake
(before the transaction) and a substantial shareholder of the
Company. She is also a director of Eminence, Eminence
Buyer, Eminence Seller, and Total Expect Limited;

(2) Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy is, an executive director of the
Company, is a director of Easyknit Buyer, and a substantial
Shareholder of the Company (as she is one of the beneficiaries
of The Magical 2000 Trust which indirectly owned 31.95%
of the Company); and

(3) the Company indirectly owns approximately 24.93% of the
issued share capital of Eminence.

Save as disclosed above, there was no contract of significance,
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries subsisting during or at the end of the year, and there
was no contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), which were
required to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were
as follows:

(a) Long Positions in Ordinary Shares of the
Company

EERFTEITHRAERRKR®D -
HEROREESRE 2B

MR2019F3A31H ARARIEERFTETT
BAERARAG KEEMMBEEZBE(EE
REHFLRBERNTESRBERH D
EXVED R D EERGO R EEE P E
BEREBLHENHEERMEXVEETIRES
DEIEXEMEARARIINEEBER S
FFERAR(BRXFADANEZRAR(E
RHEERBEBEHFRBAERIZ2ZFHKX
WEABEAZEZERAR)  REHRALE
“TE&%&%ﬁhw%ymwaﬁgz
EafMAmEzs AR BREBEBM
FBHEEMARBA AR 8+ Fr 8
ZEMBTAETETEAFRRIMNIZE
STA(EESADEMNE ARA RBER
FTe s KA BT :

(a) REAQ2BAEBRRDZ2HR

Approximate

percentage
of the
Number of total issued
ordinary shares of
Name of Director Capacity shares held Total the Company
EER AR
ERITRG
BEEER BEZBN
ESEB g% RGEE #at Bk
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Interest of controlled 17,429,664 17,429,664 19.09%
corporation (Note i)
BEERE®RLZ T REHDEE 2w (M)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy  Beneficiary of a trust 29,179,480 29,179,480 31.95%
(Note ii)
EAME+ st X m AK aZi)
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Notes:

17,429,664 shares of the Company are owned by Sea Rejoice
Limited which is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, an
executive director of the Company.

29,179,480 shares of the Company are registered in the name
of and are beneficially owned by Magical Profits Limited which
is wholly-owned by Accumulate More Profits Limited which
in turn is wholly-owned by The Winterbotham Trust Company
Limited as trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries
include Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy). As a result, Ms. Koon Ho
Yan Candy is deemed to be interested in the shares by virtue
of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The Magical 2000
Trust.

(b) Long position in ordinary shares and underlying

shares of the associated corporation

Eminence Enterprise Limited (“Eminence”)

Directors’ Report
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() A DR 217,429,664 8% I 17 i %%
BRAARIEGHEAR ZAADARX
NRARTEEEIRLZTL2EHES -

(i) AN A 229,179,480 % B 1 LA Magical
Profits Limited 2z % & & & & B &
T A % 2 " Jh Al Accumulate
More Profits Limited® & # & 1M
Accumulate More Profits Limited 8l &5
YE B The Magical 2000 Trust (H & %
ABEBEAMZL) ZERAREE
HETERARESBREED
2EBRB MU BEAMZLTAER
The Magical 2000 Trust < z5 A 2 — #
RERBDREEREZ -

b)REBZEEERRG 24

W mp

SIWEFEFERAAELT)

Approximate
percentage of

Number of Number of the total issued
ordinary underlying shares of
Name of Director Capacity shares held shares held Total Eminence
BB
ERTRG
RELZER FENE BE2BY
EZEH EL) ROHA R % #E Bt BOH
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Interest of controlled 739,330,692 288,000,000
corporation
(Note i, ii & iii)
RS S REGHEE ER
(B it ii & iii)
Beneficial owner 22,600,000 1,049,930,692 35.40%
(Note iii)
ERBER AN Zii)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy Beneficiary of a trust 739,330,692 288,000,000 1,027,330,692 34.64%
(Note i & iv)
BEAM&AT FREXEA
(B ati & iv)

KXEBREEARAE  2019F#H

b1



b2

Directors’ Report

EEERE

Note:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

In the 739,330,692 shares of Eminence, 93,549,498 shares and
645,781,194 shares of Eminence are registered in the name
of and are beneficiary owned by Landmark Profits Limited and
Goodco Development Limited respectively, both companies
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

Sea Rejoice Limited is interested in approximately 19.09% of
the issued share capital of the Company and is wholly-owned
by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

288,000,000 underlying shares are the total number of
convertible notes issued by Eminence to Goodco Development
Limited. 22,600,000 underlying shares of Eminence are the
11,300,000 share options granted to each Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
and Mr. Koon Wing Yee (the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu)
respectively on 14 October 2016 by Eminence under Eminence
share option scheme. By virtue of SFO, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu is
deemed to be interested in the shares of Eminence.

Magical Profits Limited is interested in approximately 31.95%
of the issued share capital of the Company and is wholly-owned
by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-
owned by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited as trustee
of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries include Ms. Koon
Ho Yan Candy). For the 288,000,000 underlying shares of
Eminence, these are the total number of convertible notes
issued by Eminence to Goodco Development Limited. By virtue
of SFO, Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy is deemed to be interested
in the shares of Eminence.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the

Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests

or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFQO), or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'’
INTERESTS IN SHARES
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As at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to the Directors and the M 2019%3HA31H G AABEETHTE
chief executive of the Company, the interests and short positions T ABA M AABEFHEETH
of the persons or corporations other than a Director or chief ABRRINZ AL SEZER A QA HD %K
executive of the Company, in the Shares or underlying Shares HHBB DT HEA M TR I IKX B CHR
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept AR FIZEF MR EEHIFIB6HEFE
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows: ZERLMA

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company RAQXBAEBRERD 2 &

Approximate
percentage of
Number of the total issued

Name of ordinary shares of
substantial shareholder Notes  Capacity shares held the Company
L[l NN
ERTRG
FEEAER BN
FTERRER it s5H 58 E Bt
Mr. Koon Wing Yee il & iii  Interest of spouse 17,429,664 19.09%
B K& L E B 48 # &=
Sea Rejoice Limited il Beneficial owner 17,429,664 19.09%
LF B WA A E=HEAEA
Magical Profits Limited i Beneficial owner 29,179,480 31.95%
EmEAA
Accumulate More Profits Limited ] Interest of controlled 29,179,480 31.95%
Corporation
REHEE Ew
The Winterbotham Trust li Trustee 29,179,480 31.95%

Company Limited
BEERET
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of the total issued
Name of ordinary shares of
substantial shareholder Notes  Capacity shares held the Company
L YN
ERITRG
BEEEBER BEZHBAN
FTERRER Het &/ [ gvig @] BoK
Winterbotham Holdings Limited i Interest of controlled 29,179,480 31.95%
corporation
EEGEEZ e
Markson International Holding i Interest of controlled 29,179,480 31.95%
Limited corporation
REGEEZ ER
Christopher Geoffrey Douglas i Interest of controlled 29,179,480 31.95%
Hooper corporation
EEHEE 2w
lvan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper i Interest of controlled 29,179,480 31.95%

corporation

R HIAE 2

Notes:

(i)

29,179,480 Shares are registered in the name of and are beneficially
owned by Magical Profits Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by
The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited as trustee of The Magical
2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy, an executive Director of the Company). The Winterbotham
Trust Company Limited is owned as to 75% by Winterbotham
Holdings Limited (“Winterbotham Holdings”) and 25% by
Markson International Holding Limited (“Markson”) respectively.
Winterbotham Holdings is owned as to approximately 99.99% by
Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper. And Markson is owned
as t0 99.99% by Mr. Ilvan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper.
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(i) 17,429,664 Shares are owned by Sea Rejoice Limited which is
wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, an executive Director of the
Company.

(i) Mr. Koon Wing Yee, being the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, is deemed
to be interested in the 17,429,664 shares of the Company by virtue
of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Directors and
chief executive of the Company were not aware of any other
persons who had an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other member of the Group or had any options
in respect of such capital.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 July 2012, a share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme")
was adopted and approved by the shareholders of the Company
for a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date
whereby, the Board, may at its discretion, grant share options to
any eligible participants (including Directors and employees of the
Group) to subscribe for the shares in the Company subject to the
terms and conditions as stipulated in the Share Option Scheme.
During the year ended 31 March 2019, no share option(s) were
outstanding, granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
Share Option Scheme. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme
and details of the movements during the year in the share options
of the Company are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The scheme mandate for the Share Option Scheme allowed
the Company to issue a maximum of 7,942,040 share options
under the Share Option Scheme, representing 8.70% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 91,320,403 shares)
as at 31 March 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under
the age of 18, were granted any right to subscribe for the equity
or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate
nor had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Interests of Directors of the Company in competing businesses
as at 31 March 2019 required to be disclosure pursuant to Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Name of director

EEHR

Name of company

DNEEH

Nature of competing business

HEXBME

EEREROVEHESE 2
A

B b THR BB FRBESN AL
7)o HE (MY R AR A R A A
MEET AL REAQANES
IHBEAATRAMEMEAERL
WDk BB RS NEEEF K
B8 S K W 1858 F 2 M 98 T 4T 1 4 A
S NG E TSRS IN- | A
REBES HETETARSEN

EERBFERES

MR2019F3A31H IRE LR AIFES.10
BREARRBEREEETNBEFELH
FWT

Nature of interest

EEME

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Eminence Enterprise

Limited ("Eminence”)

Property investment, property
development, security

Executive director
of Eminence

investment and loan financing

EEWRLKL BUEEERAB(EWLD

MERE MEEERE-

HFHERE BUNTEE=S

RERBE

As the Board of Directors of the Company is independent of
the boards of Eminence and maintains three (3) Independent
Non-Executive Directors, the Group operates its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of
Eminence.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions which were undertaken in
the normal course of business are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements. For those related party
transactions that constitutes connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions (as the case may be) under the Listing
Rules, these transactions are exempt from reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Bye-law 178 of the Company’s Bye-laws provides that, among
other, every director and other officers of the Company shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall
or may incur sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices and related matters provided
that the indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of them. In this
connection, the Company has arranged directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the
Company during the year.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five (5) largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for 92% of the Group’s purchases and the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 62% of the Group's
purchases.

The five (b) largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 94% of the Group’s revenue and the largest
customer accounted for approximately 82% of the Group's
revenue.

None of the Directors and their respective close associates or
any Shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) have any interest in the five (5) largest suppliers or
customers of the Group.

PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group’s investment properties
in Hong Kong have been carried out by Colliers International (Hong
Kong) Limited, an independent qualified valuer. The valuations
were based on income approach and/or direct comparison method
and were used in preparing 2018/2019 final results.

The Group’'s investment properties were valued at
HK$1,458,800,000 (2018: HK$1,791,200,000), an increase over
2018 after adjusted for the additions of investment properties.
The increase in fair value of approximately HK$126,430,000 was
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year. Properties held for
development for sale and properties held for sale of the Group
were stated at cost less impairment, if any, in these consolidated
financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks in its businesses and
operations. Through internal control systems and procedures, the
Company has taken reasonable steps to ensure that significant
risks are monitored and do not adversely affect the Group's
operations and performances. The relevant risks are managed
on an ongoing basis. A non-exhaustive list of principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group is set out below.

Market Risk

The Group's revenue is principally derived from Hong Kong. The
conditions of the economy as a whole and the property market
may have significant impact to the Group’s financial results and
conditions.

Compliance Risk

The Group's operations require compliance with local and oversea
laws (including those of Bermuda and British Virgin Islands) and
regulations, including but not limited to property sale, management
and construction as well as companies and securities laws. The
Group has constantly monitored its compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.

ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIP

The Group adheres to the standards of business ethics, this
underpins how we conduct business with our customers,
suppliers and contractors.

Employees

The Group values its employees who are the Group’s most
important assets. Staff are rewarded with competitive
remuneration packages and benefits. The Group is committed
to fostering a conducive, harmonious and discrimination-free
working environment.

Occupational health and safety is the top priority across the
Group's operations. Safety guidelines are established to safeguard
the employees from any occupational hazards.
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Customers

The Group strives to provide high quality and reliable services
to its customers. The privacy of the Group’s customers are well
protected through a privacy policy. Any complaints from customers
are handled and investigated in a thorough and efficient manner.

Suppliers

The Group is committed to forging collaborative partnership
with its suppliers and have a database of approved suppliers and
vendors who are assessed on a regular basis.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments policy of employees of the Group is set up by
the Executive Directors on the basis of employee’s performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice.

The emolument of the Directors is determined by the Board
after review and on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to factors such as time commitment
and responsibilities of Directors, the Company’s performance and
the prevailing market practice.

The Group has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible participants. Details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
above.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the
laws in Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float of its shares as required under
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee in compliance with the
requirement of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The principal responsibilities of the Audit
Committee is to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and risk management and internal control systems of
the Group. The Audit Committee comprises three (3) independent
non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” from pages 25 to 42
of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The environmental, social and governance policies and
performance of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019
are set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
from pages 62 to 77 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 were
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution will
be proposed at the AGM to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

TSE WING CHIU RICKY
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 May 2019
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HEREGRE

ESG DISCUSSIONS OF THE BUSINESS
REVIEW SECTION

As part of Easyknit's corporate vision, we actively address
sustainability issues and manage Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") risks and opportunities. Our dedication to
maintaining good corporate governance practices is demonstrated
through our sustainability performance as we generate shared
value for local communities and minimise our impact on the
environment. To effectively monitor and manage ESG-related
issues, we established our Corporate Social Responsibility
("CSR") policy which serves as the Group's strategic guideline in
steering our sustainability approach. Oversight and review of our
CSR policy together with our sustainability efforts is conducted by
the Board of Directors with assistance from our CSR Committee.

BB -

Discussion on Environmental Policies and

Performance

At Easyknit, we actively promote our environmental stewardship
through the responsible resource use and adoption of sustainable
practices throughout our daily operations. The Group’s internal
environmental policies help us to implement environmentally
friendly practices at the office and enhance staff environmental
awareness within the Group.

The Group has identified potential significant environmental
impact focus areas that arise from our business operations such
as energy consumption and greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions.
To mitigate negative impacts, we adopted a systematic approach
to manage our carbon footprint and resource usage, including
the encouragement of energy conserving behaviours, paper use
reduction and efficient resource management. Our sustainability
efforts continue to cultivate a sense of environmental responsibility
among our employees which fosters positive behavioural changes.

Account of Key Relationships with Employees,
Customers and Suppliers

Employees

Easyknit believes that staff wellness and health are one of
the primary drivers to a business success. We emphasise the
principles of diversity and equal opportunities; all our employees
are rewarded with fair and competitive remuneration packages
and benefits with reference to local and industrial standards. Our
employees are required to follow relevant policies stated in the
Employees Handbook to ensure professional conduct.
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The Group is steadfast in our dedication to providing a supportive
and safe working environment. We work together with our staff to
maintain their continued personal and professional development,
by encouraging our employees to participate in various external
training courses and seminars. The Group's internal safety
guidelines are in place in accordance with the requirements set
out by the Labour Department to minimise potential occupational
health and safety hazards. There were no work-related fatalities
or lost days due to work injury during the Year.

Customers, Suppliers and Subcontractors

Easyknit demonstrates corporate responsibility by integrating
our sustainability values into our supply chain management
processes. Our policies on supply chain management ensure
suppliers and vendors are subject to our stringent selection and
evaluation mechanism. In addition, the Group's privacy policy is
established in accordance with the local regulations to guarantee
that all personal data are handled in strict confidence. In cases
where quality concerns arise, a comprehensive investigation will
be conducted and corrective actions will be taken promptly.

Compliance Status with Relevant Laws and Regulations
that Have a Significant Impact on the Business

During the Year, there were no reported cases of non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on our business regarding the environment, health and safety,
labour standards, and data privacy.
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RE  HEREBHRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT 2019

This is the second Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")
Report presented by Easyknit International Holdings Limited
("Easyknit” or “we"”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”). The report provides a detailed account of the Group's
sustainability performance, policies and strategies between 1
April 2018 and 31 March 2019 (the “"Year").

1. Reporting Standard and Scope

The Group's ESG Report has been prepared in accordance
with the ESG Reporting Guide ("ESG Guide") issued by the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx"). An index is
included at the end of this Report to demonstrate compliance
with the ESG Guide.

This ESG Report provides an overview of our sustainability
vision, performance and initiatives in our operations,
responding to our stakeholders’ interests in the environment,
social, and corporate governance aspects of the Group. The
reporting scope of the Year consist of properties owned
and operated by the Group in Hong Kong. In addition, this
report includes key performance indicators (“KPIs"”) to
show the progress towards our targets in the past year in
accordance with the ESG Guide. The Group is committed to
a reasonable standard of corporate social responsibility and
strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations.

Materiality Assessment

In line with the Reporting Principles of the ESG Guide, an
independent consultant was commissioned to conduct a
Materiality Assessment to identify material sustainability
issues for Easyknit's disclosure. This process follows three
steps:

Step 1: Identification

e  ESGdisclosures of five peer companies in the property
industry were reviewed through a peer benchmarking
exercise to identify the material issues common in the
industry.

BE 8 RERKE2019

B XEEREEBBR QA KE] 3k
BEPDEEWNBAR(GEAIAER])
EFNE_HLHBERE HeREATERE.
HERERDBES - ARSEFAHBAALN
& E R2018F4A1E £201943 A318
HER(AREEDNUHFEZRER KX
KRB o

1. BEREREE
AEBEBNRRE HEREARBER
BEABMAXZMABRARIER
BMXMmDEMNEE HERER
HEFESDIRE HERERESD
M- ANHEXKFEE RSN
RRAEEBTRE HERERES -

ROEFHEHEAEBENRE
EREXERTEMNEL ARER
HehkEgemaMd THRMEESD
MARKEERBES KRALBHE X
FENRETHEBREEAEEREE
BFAEREENYE - WI AEER
BRE HekEREIRRESE
MREAMESR(HBRERER] &
REBE - FHPBRAEENER-
AEBEZ IR EHERENAE
B UEBBETEBEERER

BEEMFG
RERRE HEehEBERAEINR
TR —RBIUBEREZERAR
EZUFE RKBENRBEFTER
IEAAKBEEREE - UEFE
18 = & 2 5%

E—K A

e FERRAEEEFZMEMEER
TRABERARMNRERE HE@RkE
ARBEE  LBAERE DL
EABE-

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report



XEEREEFRAH

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Step 2: Prioritisation

e  The material aspects which were identified through
peer benchmarking were consolidated, creating a list
of relevant material ESG issues to be brought forward
for validation.

Step 3: Validation

e The independent consultant helped to prioritise
the findings from the first two steps and our senior
management then confirmed a list of material ESG
issues and the relevant aspects and KPIs for disclosure
in this report.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR") is a crucial part of
our vision at Easyknit. We are dedicated to having exceptional
corporate governance practices, promoting economic and
social values within the community and minimising our
impact on the environment. Our Group aims to contribute
to the community and the well-being of the environment by
enhancing environmental awareness, training our employees,
and engaging in various charitable initiatives that serve the
community.

An effective governance structure is essential to handle
different aspects of sustainability and manage ESG-related
issues. Our CSR Committee was established to assist the
Board of Directors to review the Group’s policies and oversee
our sustainability efforts. A number of CSR issues, including
workplace quality, environmental protection, operating
practices and community involvement, were regularly
discussed during meetings throughout the Year. Our CSR
policy acts as an additional mechanism to allow us to set
long term goals and provides the framework to build our
sustainability strategies.

We believe that helping to grow the community is an integral
part of our business planning. In addition to sponsoring
numerous external community programmes, we also support
the community through Easyknit Charitable Foundation which
was established in 2015. The Foundation focuses on providing
better livelihoods for underserved communities through
donations and continuous support for charities and other
social enterprises. The Foundation also offers scholarships
through various educational institutions to underprivileged
youth who have excel in academics.
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3. Our Environment

3.1

3.2

3.3

Introduction

Although the nature of our business operations may
not have significant impacts on the environment,
however, as a global citizen we acknowledge that the
responsibility to contribute to a more sustainable future
rests with all of us. Therefore, we are committed to
the efficient use of energy and natural resources at
our office and properties. To adequately guide and
monitor our environmental performance, the Group has
implemented internal policies that allow us to properly
manage these issues that arise from our operations,
notably our practices and procedures for handling paper
usage, water consumption, and energy saving.

Energy Consumption and Emissions

The Group is steadfast in its efforts to reduce energy
consumption and greenhouse gas emissions throughout
our business operations. By taking a holistic approach to
the management of our energy use, we have been able
to reduce our carbon footprint by utilising a combination
of resource upgrades and behavioural changes at our
office and properties. For instance, incandescent
lighting fixtures have been replaced with more efficient
forms of lighting, while our office equipment is identified
with Grade 1 Energy Labels for more efficient operation
throughout the year. To prevent unnecessary energy
consumption, fail-coils at our commercial and industrial
buildings are switched off daily after 8 pm; concurrently,
indoor air temperature is maintained at 25.5°C for
comfort and energy efficiency.

Waste and Resource Management

As one of our main environmental performance
focus areas, we have adopted a variety of measures
to minimise our waste generation and improve our
resource management. Our staff are encouraged to
use digital forms of communication as well as electronic
communications whenever possible. When hardcopy
documents are necessary, we advocate double-sided
printing to minimise paper use. Regular inspections of
water pipes and taps are conducted for leaks, and gentle
reminders are posted in common areas and washrooms
to remind employees of methods for efficient water
usage.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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3.4 Cultivating Environmental Awareness

We endeavour to foster a culture of environmental
awareness and protection through the implementation
of our internal policies. These policies help to provide
practical guidance for the observation of the principles
of energy conservation, waste reduction and sustainable
resource use. Our policies include stipulations for the
procurement of energy efficient office equipment and
light fixtures as well as directives to reduce excessive
resource use and waste generation. To further promote
environmental consciousness and facilitate sustainable
behaviour, we plan to implement recycling initiatives at
our office premise.
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4. BPWET
4.1 #5

4. Our People

4.1 Introduction

XEEREEFRAH

Easyknit acknowledges the importance of our
employees to the success and potential growth of our
business. The Group is fully committed to engaging
with our employees and providing them with a safe and
inclusive work environment as well as opportunities for
job training and career development.

4.2 Caring Company

The Group continues to take action in order to guarantee
equal opportunities when handling employment
activities: recruitment, hiring, compensation, training
and promotion for all persons, regardless of race,
religion, gender, family status, age or any other basis
prohibited by law. To safeguard and protect human
rights, child or forced labour is strictly prohibited.
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Our remuneration policy dictates that our employees
shall be rewarded with compensation packages
that are fair and competitive with market trends in
accordance with their qualifications and performance.
Yearly performance appraisals are conducted to
reward staff for their achievements, identify promotion
opportunities, and salary increments. In addition to a fair
and competitive salary, we provide our employees with
a variety of additional benefits to ensure their physical
well-being. We also put a heavy emphasis on the
mental and emotional well-being of our employees. A
refreshment corner as well as regular staff engagements
such as mealtime gatherings three times a week are
arranged to encourage staff to mingle and communicate
with each other. To build a better and fresher working
environment, we have increased the greening areas at
our office.

During the year, there were no non-compliance cases
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, welfare and
the relevant legislation, including the Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Cap. 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

Occupational Health and Safety

Providing a safe work environment free from potential
hazards is one of the Group’s main concerns for our
employees. Our safety guidelines are in compliance with
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509
of the Laws of Hong Kong) to protect our employees
from occupational hazards in the workplace. Emergency
policies have been implemented and are clearly stated
in our employee safety guidelines to protect our staff
in the event of potentially dangerous situations, such
as typhoons and rainstorm warnings. We are glad to
announce that there were no work-related fatalities or
lost days due to work injury during the Year.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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4.4 Training and Development

At Easyknit, we provide our employees with the chance
to realise their potential and enhance their careers
by organising numerous training and development
opportunities. Through these training courses and
seminars, employees have the chance to further
enhance their professional skills and knowledge while
further developing careers.

4.5 Business Ethics

At Easyknit, we take pride in conducting our business
with high moral standards and integrity. Our Group's
expectations for acceptable conduct are clearly
outlined in the Employee Handbook and includes
the requirements of compliance in accordance with
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) and Anti-Money Laundering
and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Cap. 615
of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group's well-established whistle-blowing policy
allows any employee to raise their concerns with regard
to any unethical behaviour including acts of corruption or
bribery, while the Group's gift policy sets out provisions
for handling conflicts of interest and our standards of
conduct. Any cases of corruption or bribery observed
by an employee may be raised in writing directly to
management, and is treated with strict confidentiality.

During the Year, there were no non-compliance with
laws and regulations relevant to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

20194 %R

RE  HEREBESE
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RE  HEREBHRSE

5. Our Value Chain
5.1 Supply Chain Management

When choosing our supply chain partners, Easyknit
focuses on finding partners that align with our dedication
and commitment to sustainable development. Part of
our business policy requires suppliers and vendors
that we engage with to undergo our approval and
evaluation processes. At Easyknit, we take a holistic
approach to performance enhancement, and integrate
our sustainability practices into our supply chain
management. By using this comprehensive approach,
we are able to control and mitigate supplier risks that
may affect our business operations.

5.2 Responsible Services

As a responsible service provider, we are devoted
to delivering trusted services to our customers that
strictly comply with all relevant national and international
standards. The Group's privacy policy adheres with
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) to ensure that all personal
data is handled in strict confidence. To ensure that
the expected quality is delivered to our customers,
our extensive assurance processes include supplier
performance monitoring, quality control procedures,
employee training and development, and preventive
and corrective action plans.

Complaints from customers are handled and investigated
in a thorough manner and shall be dealt with accordingly.
Throughout the Year, there were no complaint cases
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

5. RMMNEER
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6. Our Community

The Group remains dedicated to supporting youth education,
health care awareness, environmental protection, and serving
less fortunate communities through our various contributions
and participation in engagement activities. Aside from our
own charitable group, Easyknit Charitable Foundation Ltd,
we have also raised funds to support a variety of charitable
groups as well. We raised funds in support of tutorial classes
organised by J Life Foundation and Principal Chan Free
Tutorial World which went to the purchasing of computers
and books. We also made donations to the Global Chinese
Breast Cancer Organisations Alliance to help raise awareness
through their health talk. We believe in equal opportunities
for everyone to showcase their talent and skills, which is
why Easyknit has made contributions to the Hong Kong
Paralympic Committee and Sports Association for the
Physically Disabled to help with their HK Paralympic Day
2018 and Run for Paralympians 2019 events. In total, we
have contributed over HKD$1,000,000 to different charitable
foundations and events. We are delighted to be able to
make such a positive impact through these engagements
and donations, and hope to continue to foster growth and
development in these different segments of society.

HKEx KPI Data Table

RiR - HEREBHRE

EMHdEE

AEBNBOREBSEEH L2
HEFRIBSTFHE REE#H
BERELRADELERE - BT
BMEBEEMESERKEEEES
CERAA HMEEEES UL
BEEEEEB - BAMAIREREE
HBESMEABNHEREELESR
VT AITEBEEENLEENR
REREMIRHWEEELE S - B
B ABRE NG EA BB K
EBERREEEYP RS NEE -
BEMEGEEALETYTSERERER
HAgERER BHxkEREBRRK
ANRZGEBEERALTEBEHRSRNR
HORSETHEERERA2018K
TEEEBRBE2019ES HHAH
ATREEELERETHBRBBE
1,000,000 7T o & PI1R = H 82 % &
B2 EB) R IBRE £ W E IR
FE VTHALERHERELESIRE
HEREREE-

BEREBXTBARERNERH
B x

A. Environmental
A RE
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
BEREBAIKEREE
Scope 1 emission Tonnes of COe 3238
HETHFRE M-S EREE
Scope 2 emission Tonnes of COe 13.2
HE2HFNE M-S REE
Scope 3 emission Tonnes of COe 0.2
HEHFRE M-S REE
- in total Tonnes of COe
\ 75.82
“HBES M-S EREE
- by intensity Tonnes of CO,e/FTE g5
- EEE W_StLREE ERE2BES

20194 %R
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RE HEREREE

A2.1 Energy consumption by type
RERBIMEREE
Direct Energy Consumption
BEEERES
- in total ‘000 kWh
o 108.90
-BEG TETEE
- by intensity ‘000 kWh/FTE 5 66
- UEmEE FTETRN/SA2BES '
Indirect Energy Consumption
MEEREE
- in total ‘000 kWh
o 84.75
- LB EG TETEE
- by intensity ‘000 kWh/FTE 507
- UEmEE FTETRN/SA2BES '
Total Energy Consumption
BeeRESE
- in total ‘000 kWh
o 193.65
-NBEE T @+ K&
- by intensity ‘000 kWh/FTE 17
- B E s TETER SA2BES '
A2.2 Water Consumption in total and intensity
BEKEREE
Water Consumption
FEoKE
—in total m?
R . 537.00
- EG 3K
- by intensity m3/FTE 1310
- B E s UAK/EREBES
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RIE - HERERERSE

B. Social
B.# &
B1.1 Total workforce by employment type and gender Male Female
REREARMINEINESAE 5n g
Full-time No. of people - "
£ AE
Part-time No. of people
B AE / /
Total workforce by employment type and age group Under 30 30-50 | Above 50
REREARFRANSINESAY 305% 0B & 50 5%
AR 50 5% s
Full-time No. of people
5 27 9
£ A&
Part-time No. of people
#®B A& / / /
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender Male Female
BRMBESNEERALE 5 g
% 20.00 18.75
Employee turnover rate by age group Under 30 30-50 | Above 50
RERAHNEINEERKL X 30 5% 0®EE 50 5%
AR 50 &% A £
% 40.00 22.22 0
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities
EIBAEMETHAEREE
- By number No. of people 0
- AA BE A&
- By rate %
- DA b E & °
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury
AIGREXIERE
- Staff Days 0
-BT H &
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received
ERERERRBRENRFEEA
No. of complaints
’EF 2 E °

KEEREEERAD
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RIE - HERERERSE

B7.1

Number of concluded cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the company

HANARHICELENAESHARHANEE

No. of cases

Edin 4=

B8.2

Resources contributed

EERER

Donations (HKD)
BROET)

1,064,358

8. HKEx ESG Reporting Guide Content Index 8.

EEABRXI(RE HERE

BHREESDAR RS

A. Environmental

A.RE

Al

Emissions

73787

FRMEERAEEREE-

A1 General Disclosure A
—BRERE
A1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Due to the business

nature of the

Group, this KPI

is considered not
material.
ERAEENER
MHE - WERER
ERESE AT TE
*x o

A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
RERBLHNERTE

10

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity

MELEERENRERTE

Due to the business
nature of the

Group, this KPI

is considered not
material.
ERARENER
MHE - ERER
EEER AL T E
*x o
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RIE - HERERERSE

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | Due to the
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, business nature of
per facility) the Group, this KPI
FESEEEEDEE GEHE) RONER)EE (ML (1S considered not
SEEREN - FEARMGHTE) material. Please

refer to Section
3 for the Group's
approach on waste
management.
ERAEENE
BIHEE - R
BREEER R
WAEKR-FH
KEBOEED
EEAFE B2
Bl & 38 o

A15 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved 4
LB EFERENERIAEKRR

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved
HIRBAERETEEYN L REELEENHEK
REGBHKR

A2 A2 General Disclosure

4
Use of Resources — BB
BRE : — ) .

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total
and intensity 10
REAESMEER /SEEER

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 10
BREERTE

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved 4
i REAURFEARAERR

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
MKRERKRLETAEMNBE  UAREAB KK
AEIRAMERR

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Due to the business
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit nature of the
produced Group, this KPI
HARMAREMHN R E)R(MER)EE |1 Conslldered not
EBMEE material.

ERAEBENE

BUE - R

BHERHERR

WA EK-
XEBREEERAT  2019F#H
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RIE - HERERERSE

A3 A3 General Disclosure
. 4-5
The Environment —BEE
and Natural A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
Resources environment and natural resources and actions taken to
BERARER
manage them 4-5
B EBEDURBERRAERNEATERDRKNE
BERATENTE
B. Social
B.#&
Employment and Labour Practices
BREREIER
B1 B1 General Disclosure
Employment —RRE 6
E®E
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group
and geographical region. 10
BEHA - BEEY FRAJNRKDEIDNHEBLH
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region 10
B FRANEMEISHNEERALE
B2 B2 General Disclosure
Health and Safety —BEE /
i SR Eﬁi Z e .
RERZE B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities 0
ATEBEEMTTHAB R X
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 0
AIGELXIEAH
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored
HFMRANBERRER 2 G URBABRTRE
E
B3 B3 General Disclosure
De\./e.lopment and — MR 7
Training
BV EEE]
B4 B4 General Disclosure
Labour Standards —BEBE 6
% TR

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERERSE

Operating Practices
EEED
B5 B5 General Disclosure
Supply Chain — BB 8
Management
HEEER
B6 B6 General Disclosure
Product o H = 8
. — BB
ReSDpi‘]SIblhty B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received
EmAM .
and how they are dealt with 10
EEAREMRBRBORFHEARESE H X
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored g
HREEEEHRBRLBEE URMEBARITRER
7 ok
B7 B7 General Disclosure
. . 7
Anti-corruption —BRE
k&S .
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases 10
RERBABBETAXEEERDTCEEENESTFA
RUHENHBBERFRER
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored 7
T EEEREREF URBERTREZ X
Community
HE
B8 B8 General Disclosure 9
Community — BB
Investment -
. ; B8.1 Focus areas of contribution
HERE o 9
EIEREE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area »
EEXIHEEMHAER

XEFEBREEFRA T 20195 %
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EASYKNIT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 86 to 245, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code"), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BRESEE

Valuation of investment properties
REYFZBE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significant
judgments and assumptions made by management
of the Group in determining the fair value.

Y ESEEREREBEEATERIREAZ
HEERE BRMAIBNREMEZEHER BN
REITEIE-

At 31 March 2019, the fair value of investment
properties was approximately HK$1,459 million
(consolidated statement of financial position),
with a fair value gain recognised in profit or loss
of approximately HK$126 million (consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income).

M2019%3A31H W E MW ERFEHNAB
1,459,000,0008 JT(fr & M B R K) > RBE R
RZ AT E W = 4 /126,000,000 7T (47 & B =
REMEEK LK)

KEBREEARAE  2019F#H
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B B3RS

BEETEE

FAREAFTEHERERMANE XA E -
REHAYEEMBEREINEARRSE
ENEH GELEZHRRERMEAER
HAMBBRRREABRKETRED -
BT eHELEREREBNHNER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEIMNEEBRETSEAE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:

BPMEREMEEECHBERF B

e Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers and
management of the Group about the valuation
techniques, performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted,
critical judgmental areas, key inputs and data
used in the valuations;

HEEME EEERERETHRMGERE
METHRR FRAZEERRKX T E2
MeE HEMKBZEIZH AREE:

e Assessing the integrity of information provided
by management of the Group to the Valuers by
comparing, on a sample basis, details of rentals
to the respective underlying existing lease
agreements;
FRAMBETAELBREARAERANOCHSF
Bl EEBEEEERBGEEMZER
Z TR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)

BRENETEE)

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)
REYHFZ 14 E(E)

The Group’'s investment properties are stated at
fair value based on valuations performed by an
independent firm of qualified professional property
valuers (the “Valuers”). Details of the valuation
technigues and key inputs used in the valuations
are disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
EEEKREVMEZLATEDEBRBIEGERKSE
FHEMTIEEMDEL ZEER - HEMR
KRAZHEETAREEZEH A ZCHFBEERE S
BREMFI14NHEE -

Impairment assessment of loans receivable

JFE W & 5 2z BB AT 14

We identified the impairment assessment of
loans receivable as a key audit matter due to the
involvement of subjective judgment and management
estimates in evaluating the expected credit losses
("ECL") of the Group's loans receivable at the end
of the reporting period.

RIEBMKR - T EEBCERERZERE
EEE(EHEEEBEEDR BRI REEHE
REBMG HMBNEBRERZBRENER—
HABRESEE-

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

ERETEE®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)

EMNEAOMNEEEREESSEGE

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuers; and

AEGEMNER EBIRTEME: &

e Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used
by the Valuers and management of the Group
by comparing with relevant market information
with similar properties.
FRLRRRE Y EBE TS E R T
BRIk EXEEEERAZEIFEBAZSA
B

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of loans receivable included:

BAPYRKERZRENGBZHBEEFE2E:

e Understanding the Group's policy on granting
loans to its borrowers and the related credit
control including ongoing loan monitoring
procedures and the Group's policy on estimating
the loss allowance of loans receivable;

TH EEEREERTEERAZERE
REANCEELAGNEEREERERER
R BEEBRAERERZEEREB ZBX

e  Evaluating the management’'s assessment on
the credit quality of the borrowers by examining
records including financial background, collateral
and historical settlement records of the
borrowers;
HEEREABEMAEERAVEER.
ERmRELEBRBERZCEATEERA
ZIEEBEX:

2019 Annual Report
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EARETEE®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
BREFENETEE) BB NWEEBERETSE(E)

Impairment assessment of loans receivable (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)

FE W B 5 2 6B A1 (4E)

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, in making the impairment assessment,
the management of the Group assessed the
borrowers’ financial background, collateral and the
historical settlement records, including the past
due dates and default rates, of each borrower and
forward-looking information that is reasonable,
supportable and available without undue costs or
effort. Each borrower is assigned a risk grading under
internal credit ratings to calculate the ECL, taking
into consideration of the estimates of expected
cash shortfalls. At every reporting date, the financial
background, collateral and the historical settlement
records are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered.

MMM GEMBRRMTITEE RIELTME
- ESEEEEGIMSEBRAZUBER
BEHmRBELERLE BRBHBEREHNE -
UEEE BEBAEATAIYBEATEINVLENRAE
HBHZAELEER - ZBERARBABEET
RESERBRER UAERHEEEFER Z&
NGRS eER - REREBH  EHFTM
BEEs HEAGRERELENRCDHILE EAE G
BER e &g -

At 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of loans
receivable was approximately HK$207 million, net of
ECL on loans receivable of approximately HK$4 million
(note 21 to the consolidated financial statements).
201943 A31 8 - & Y & 5 Bk T 18 £9207,000,000
BLTHBRERER2EHEESERERED
4,000,000 7T (47 & BF 7% &k M 721)) ©

KEBREEARAE  2019F#H

Checking the past due dates of outstanding loans
receivable against the loan agreements for the
terms of the loans to identify any significant
change in credit risk or default in loans receivable;
BEERBEZERGIBRERAEERKE
AOBBEH UBEETERKEREERRK
BABRZAERNENES:

Testing the integrity of information used
by management to develop the impairment
assessment of the loans receivable as at year-
end by checking the historical settlement records
on a sample basis;

AAMERELERCE  AREEERRNE
A TEBERZBETEAEARAZERZ

TR

Evaluating the expected cash shortfalls estimated
by the management by checking the expected
cash flows from the realisation of collaterals
received against publicly available information;
and
BBARAGENREEREKERRcE
HREeRETHEEERT AR ESER
K&

Assessing the reasonableness of forward-looking
information used by the Group.

Al BEEBEMERAAMEEERZAE M-
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Leung Chui Shan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 May 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEERkEMEEIER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
o83 FET FET
Revenue e
Property sales MEHE 755,880 248,106
Rental income e WA 54,892 52,958
Interest income from loan financing REEFRENE KA 18,591 29,560
Building management BFER 984 897
Total revenue BEXT 5 830,347 331,521
Cost of properties sold and HEMERRHERBAAE
services rendered (476,455) (157,352)
Gross profit El 353,892 174,169
Other income, gains and losses Htl A WEREBE 17,511 35,843
Distribution and selling expenses RN (53,044) (30,118)
Administrative expenses THEX (60,226) (55,396)
Gain on changes in fair value of REMELRATEEG K
investment properties 14 126,430 159,475
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value BRATEFABEZ
of financial assets at fair value PRMEECRATEED
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") (B8 k= (21,794) 21,859
Gain on disposal of debt instruments HERRAFEFAELMZE
at fair value through other WazEBRITAZRE
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") 58 -
Gain on redemption of convertible note BERATBRBRER 2 KE 17(b)(ii) - 1,135
Gain on modification of terms of FHTRBRERER 2 W&
convertible note 17(b)(ii) - 425
Loss on changes in fair value of EEBREATEFABRZ
financial assets designated as at FVTPL PRMEECLTE
2yEia - (3,403)
Loss on changes in fair value of TRREBZITERDZ
derivatives component of ATEEHER
convertible notes - (2,992)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHHEREZER
investments - (1,033)
Impairment loss on financial assets: PREEZRERE:
- Available-for-sale investments -AHEERE - (4,213)
- Loans receivable, net -FEBER 21 (273) =
- Debt instruments at FVTOCI -RATEFAEMEE
@z EBIA (1,505) =
- Other debt instrument at -REBERAGECEMD
amortised cost BERIA 20 (3,523) -
Results attributable to interests in BERNAEZHIHER
associates 12,593 40,993
Results attributable to interest in a joint EERNAERNHER
venture (4) =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HNBA R W 42 7,913 -
Finance costs BE KA 7 (23,043) (16,935)
Profit before taxation bR B A1 4 A 8 354,985 319,809
Taxation BB 10(a) (39,171) (22,646)
Profit for the year REE &M 315,814 297,163

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEERkEMAZEIRER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531HIL FE

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other comprehensive (expense) income H 2 H (Bﬁ FIL ON
Items that may be reclassified BHAEEF S EZER
subsequently to profit or loss: Z HA
Share of other comprehensive (expense) AEBHERRICEME
income of associates: (F 35)451 A
Share of translation reserve of DL E DR 2B K E
associates (6,527) 10,013
Share of FVTOCI reserve/investment DERAFEFAR 11@
revaluation reserve of associates HERERE B
”TZ&ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ 189 14,435
Reclassification of translation RRERXEEATEY
reserve to profit or loss upon BREEHER 7 # 5
deemed partial disposal of interests BaREFs»BZER
in associates without loss of 2B R
significant influence - 190
Reclassification of translation REBKERINGE QA
reserve to profit or loss upon BERENI»EZER
deemed acquisition of additional ZE R EE
interests in associates - (1,182)
Reclassification of investment REBREEARTEY
revaluation reserve to profit or loss BAELEHERALS
upon deemed partial disposal of EaREN>EZ2ER
interests in associates without loss CHREEMEE
of significant influence - (4,167)
Reclassification of investment NGB G R RN /N
revaluation reserve to profit or loss BalREFrBEEER
upon deemed acquisition of LEBEERFEE
additional interests in associates - 1,849
(6,338) 21,138
Net gain on debt instruments at FVTOCI BRAFEFAEMEZEKE
ZEBIAZFKS 191 -
Impairment loss on debt instruments at BAFEFAEME2EKRE
FVTOC! included in profit or loss ZEBIAZREER
BEEEZT 1,505 -
Gain on changes in fair value of available- A HHEREZ A FEEH
for-sale investments g - 18,319
Released on disposal of available-for-sale R HEf it H EX L K # K
investments - 1,033
Reclassification adjustment upon RAtEERERERZ
impairment of available-for-sale ERAERE
investments - 4,213
Other comprehensive (expense) income AEEZEMZ2AFE)RA
for the year (4,642) 44,703
Total comprehensive income for the year AFEEZ2HEWARE 311,172 341,866

KEBREEARAE  2019F#H




88

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEERkEMEEIER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

2019 2018
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
i FET FET
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: REZHEF(EBE)HE
Owners of the Company ARARE 315,959 297,163
Non-controlling interest FrEkiER (145) =
315,814 297,163
Total comprehensive income (expense) AEEZERARL) A
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ARARE 311,317 341,866
Non-controlling interest FERiER (145) =
311,172 341,866
Basic and diluted earnings per share FREAREBERF 12 HK$3.5238 HK$3.74% 7T

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE B RS IR O R

At 31 March 2019 #201943H31H

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiz FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKREE 13 83,770 88,242
Investment properties REME 14 1,458,800 1,791,200
Interests in associates RN R 15 671,921 665,666
Interest in a joint venture —fHAE R A ER 16 1,740 =
Financial assets at FVTPL BERAFEFABRZ
TREE 17 79,000 =
Available-for-sale investments AEBERE 18 - 109,665
Convertible notes ABRREE 17(b) - 19,213
Derivatives component of BRBREZREZITER D
convertible notes 17(b) - 9,792
Life insurance policy ABRE 17(c) - 10,275
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BEATEFAEMZR
a2 BBIA 19 34,614 =
Loans receivable EWE = 21 27,785 13,979
Intangible asset BREE 22 500 500
Deposits e 23 205 2,314
Other debt instrument at amortised cost BBENAGTEZHM
EHITA 20 31,712 =
2,390,047 2,710,846
Current assets MBEE
Properties held for development BELEREDE
for sale 24 1,932,432 798,009
Properties held for sale BELEDME 119,181 166,247
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABREZ
SREE 17 105,666 100,094
Debt instruments at FVTOC] BEATEFAEMZE
WHzEBTA 19 11,762 -
Convertible notes B &S 17(b) - 42,104
Derivatives component of AREEE 2 TEND
convertible notes 17(b) - 958
Trade and other receivables B LEMERFE 25 96,811 190,267
Tax recoverable G qER R 331 449
Loans receivable EWE = 21 178,889 245,282
Financial assets designated as at FVTPL EEBBERATETA
BRZeREE 26 - 29,885
Bank balances and cash RITEBREE 2 27 191,670 150,370
2,636,742 1,723,665
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables B hHEMENZIEA 28 41,932 63,260
Amount due to non-controlling A IEIERRE S E
shareholder 29 101,009 -
Tax payable JE B 18 50,514 29,354
Secured bank borrowings BEEREETEE 30 752,551 601,657
946,006 694,271
Net current assets MBEETRE 1,690,736 1,029,394
Total assets less current liabilities BEEERABARG 4,080,783 3,740,240

KEEREEBARLT 20195
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE B ISR R

At 31 March 2019 #20194F3531H

2019 2018
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
& FET FET
Non-current liability ERBDEE )
Secured bank borrowings RERRITEE 30 533,433 550,085
3,547,350 3,190,155
Capital and reserves BERREE
Share capital P 7 31 9,132 7,942
Reserves & 3,538,363 3,182,213
Equity attributable to owners of APz BEBEAEEES
the Company 3,547,495 3,190,155
Non-controlling interest FERER (145) =
3,547,350 3,190,155

The consolidated financial statements on pages 86 to 245 were = = & N2019F5H24 8 #t F R B # &
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on X586 H £246H 2 4&F & M I W& » I M

24 May 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: TIHEERKEE:
TSE WING CHIU RICKY KOON HO YAN CANDY
# ok B E " X
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERRBEIR
For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRERAER
Investment
revaluation
reserve/  Property Non-
Share Share  Capital Translation Special Contributed FVTOCI revaluation ~ Accumulated controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  surplus reserve  reserve profits Total interest Total
REEMRE/
BATE
FARM2E  NEEfR FER

kx RORE RABE ENRE HHUEE E4EB L6 fif 2itEH &t [ $:4 &t
HK8'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK§'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
fén Tz TEr  TEr  TEr TEx FEr  FEn fér  FEr  FEr  FEn

(note a) (note b) (note c) (note d)

(H#a) (W#o) (W) (H#d)
At 1 April 2017 R201754818 7942 218330 196,565 5,387) 9,800 220,937 7,603 69,872 2,126,598 2,852,260 - 2,862,260
(Gain on changes in fair AHHLEREL

valug of available-for-sale ATEEHNE

investments - 18,319 -
Released on disposal of HETRLE

available-for-sale investments RERER - 1,033 -
Reclassification adjustment RUBHEREHE

upon impairment of BIENAEAE

available-for-sale investments = 4213 -
Share of other comprehensive R UNGEY

income of associates 2ENE 9,021 1217 -
Profit for the year REEET - - 267163
Total comprehensive income KEEZ2ARAEE

for the year 9,021 35,682 297,163
2017 final dividend paid MVEFGESER]

note 11) & Hn) - - 3971)

At 31 March 2018 R2018%E3A318 3,634 43,285 2,419,790
Adjustments (note 2) AR 22) - (43,285 39,681
At 1 April 2018 [restated) H201854818
(EF51R) 7942 218330 196,565 3,634 9,800 220,937 - 69,872 2,459,471 3,186,551 - 3,186,551
Net gain on debt instruments BRATEFALLZE
at FVT0CI hEzBBIAZ
FhE - - - - - - 191 - - 191 - 191
Impairment loss on debt AABRRZBATE
instruments at FVTOCI SAEH2ENR
included in profit or loss ZEBIAY
HEER - - - - - - 1,505 - - 1505 - 1505
Share of other comprehensive MBEARNENLEE

(expense) income of associates GEll: - - - 6,527) - - 189 - - (6,338 - (6,338)
Profit (loss) for the year AEREN(EE) - - - - - - - - 315959 315,959 (145] 316,814
Total comprehensive [expensel rEEZ2ARY)

income for the year 9N - - - (652) - - 1,885 - 35959 311317 (145) 311,172
2018 final dividend paid MLEEGESIER]

(note 11) Raman - - - - - - - - (43966 (4,566) - l4ses)
Issue of new shares (note 31) ROBRA31) 1190 53550 - - - - - - - 54740 - 54740
Transaction costs attributable EERIRS

toissue of new shares A - (547) - - - - - - - (547) - (547)
At 31 March 2019 R2019%38318 9132 27333 196,565 (2,893) 9,800 220,937 1,885 69,872 2,770,864 3,547,495 (145) 3,547,350

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ2019%¥3H31HIL FE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital of the Company in October 2006.

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company and
the nominal value of the share capital and share premium of the
companies forming the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation
prior to the listing of the Company's shares in 1995.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising
from the reduction of certain reserves of the Company in August
2004.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group includes (i) the gain
on revaluation of certain leasehold properties of the Group, (ii)
share of the gain on revaluation of prepaid lease payments and
property, plant and equipment of the Group’s former associates,
both arising from the transfer of the Group's leasehold properties
or associates’ prepaid lease payments and property, plant and
equipment to investment properties in prior years, net of (iii) the
transfer to accumulated profits upon deemed disposal of subsidiaries
in prior years.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

Wik

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

KEBREEARAE  2019F#H

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities RELEEDH RERE
Profit before taxation BR B BT )% 71 354,985 319,809
Adjustments for: maE:
Interest income LB A (9,336) (26,164)
Interest expense L8R & 23,043 16,935
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERREZNE
equipment 4,675 4,119
Amortisation of premium and other AEREZRBREM
expenses charged on life insurance G
policy - 282
Dividend income from listed raREZHREKA
investments (7,409) (7,527)
Gain on changes in fair value of REWMEZRTFEE
investment properties e (126,430) (159,475)
Gain on redemption of convertible note BEAMRRERE 2 kE - (1,135)
Gain on modification of terms of FERARERER IS
convertible note - (425)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMEEEREZER
investments - 1,033
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BERRE
equipment ZEE 125 -
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of BERFEFABREZ
financial assets at FVTPL SREEZATE
BHERNE) 21,794 (21,859)
Gain on disposal of debt instruments at HERERXNFEFTAEM
FVTOCI FENREEBEIA
pa & (58) =
Loss on changes in fair value of EEAEATEFARE
financial assets designated as at LeMEELRAFE
FVTPL 2HER - 3,403
Loss on changes in fair value of ARBEEBTERD 2
derivatives component of convertible NEEEEEE
notes - 2,992
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHNEREREEE
investments - 4,213
Impairment loss on debt instruments at BATEFAEMET
FVTOCI WazEBEIAEZ
REER 1,505 =
Impairment loss on other debt REBEKAGFEZHM
instrument at amortised cost BB TIAZHEBE 3,523 -
Impairment loss on loans receivable, BWER 2 ZREERE
net 273 =
Results attributable to interests in BERAREIHER
associates (12,593) (40,993)
Results attributable to interest in a joint BELRIERZNIHER
venture 4 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEMBARZKE (7,913) -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

2019 2018
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i FET FAETL
Operating cash flows before movementsin 2 E&Z & ZH A 2
working capital KeERem=E 246,188 95,208
Increase in properties held for development 5 & i & 3 & ¥ % & /1
for sale (508,589) (476,155)
Decrease in properties held for sale BEELEDMERD 476,772 150,954
Decrease in financial assets at FVTPL BRTEFABRZZ
SRMEERD 125,511 263,042
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B 5 & H & Y 5E R
receivables (&) 95,048 (98,351)
Decrease in loans receivable e W E TR > 33,197 49,593
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 NEMENTIERD (15,841) (32,028)
Decrease in contract liabilities AHEERD (11,554) -
Cash from (used in) operations REANEEZRE 440,732 (47,737)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERNEENER (18,181) (18,122)
Dividend received RS 5,114 47
Net cash from (used in) operating activities XK 5 (BR)&ELE8 2
e F5E 427,665 (65,812)
Cash flows from investing activities REREEDZHERE
Net cash outflow on acquisition/disposal i 38 Ut i /1 & Bt B 2 7
of assets and liabilities through BA/HEEER
acquisition/disposal of subsidiaries BEZEeREFE 42(a) (268,086) -
Acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL BARANTEFAERZZ
TREE (109,583) =
Acquisition of debt instruments at FVTOCI B AR A FE A HM
FEBRECBEBIA (50,042) =
Acquisition of other debt instrument at BARBERANEZ
amortised cost HMWEBIA (19,575) =
Additions of investment properties NEREME (2,773) (3,425)
Addition of interest in a joint venture EmaeENAER (1,744) -
Purchase of property, plant and EADE BEREZE
equipment (93) (6,037)
Proceeds from redemption of financial BEEZEATEFABEZ
assets at FVTPL PRMEECHBNE 95,484 =
Interest received Fl2 A 11,957 20,057
Proceeds from redemption of debt BOEATETAEM
instruments at FVTOCI FENE EBIAY
g A 3,915 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant  HENE BEKEZEZ
and equipment FT 15 3R 404 -
Redemption of financial assets designated BRI E AR A FE A
as at FVTPL BacemiE - 585,019
Proceeds from redemption of convertible ~ BEEI Al K =& ~
notes FT 15 %R - 35,000

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
Proceeds received from disposal of HEMHRLERE Y
available-for-sale investments FT 15 %R - 20,357
Dividend received from available-for-sale A ft HERE v 2 W% &
investments - 1,239
Acquisition of financial assets designated B A E AE A FEH A
as at FVTPL BRzemEE - (620,000)
Acquisition of convertible notes BATBREEERE - (44,200)
Acquisition of available-for-sale BAHELERE
investments - (16,890)
Deposit paid for investment properties BAREWEZENES - (1,970)
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, BANE BERREBZ
plant and equipment 2RRe - (139)
Net cash used in investing activities ARREEH 2 R FE (340,136) (30,989)
Cash flows from financing activities REBETH RS RE
Repayment of bank borrowings HERITEE (522,848) (265,717)
Interest paid ERFE (33,782) (26,174)
Dividend paid 2T S (4,566) (3,971)
Transaction costs attributable for issue of 7T & 2 & 5 B &
new shares (547) =
Bank borrowings raised SERTEE 359,765 517,560
Advance from non-controlling shareholder ~ FFIER R E 2 & % 101,009 -
Proceeds from issue of new shares BITHR 2B RIE 54,740 -
Net cash (used in) from financing activites (BR) X a8 @ &5 2
BeFd (46,229) 221,698
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R & N ERIBE & EMNFHE 41,300 124,897
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FReRERES
of the year 150,370 25,473
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the FRESMNERBES
year, represented by bank balances and ERTHEBRERS
cash 191,670 150,370

KEEREEBARLT 20195
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

1.

GENERAL

Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”; the
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and the principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"”) which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
and associates are set out in notes 43 and 15, respectively.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

— iR & R
XEEEEEERARN(ARA]
AARRENBARREAAER])
EEREERMAIAZHEZAR
EELE RBROHEEABERS
FiA R AR (B A E R e &
AR ZEMBERBU R EBEE
BB RAFRIAAER] — 6 R
B -

ReEMBHRXREKRETIE
(THK$D) » AR LB ZHEER -

ARABTD—RBEEERAA - AR
RIZETEWNBRALBE R £ E
MEZEBHE D REN W F43K15 0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs and an interpretation issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the
first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment
Property

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K

mEe

B ISR AR L

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

2. ERA#MIIR
I ®|E

EETE

|

- A

REFERFEROHITR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this standard recognised
at the date of initial application, 1 April 2018. Any difference
at the date of initial application is recognised in the opening
accumulated profits and comparative information has not
been restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
standard retrospectively only the contracts that are not
completed at 1 April 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18 and the related
interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from property sales (including
the total sale consideration for the Disposal as defined in note
32) and building management which arise from contracts
with customers.

Information about the Group's performance obligations and
the accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
15 are disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

ERFIREEITER R
Bt %% 3R & 2% B (@)

RAFERSG ERNHFTR
RIETEBMB RS E W

BTN XFrat & o RAFEERH
AIREEBEEMB RS ER M2
BUAFELBEFEAEENH
BRAEMAR SEZEHEE M
BHREAFMBARBEALBEATE -

EBUBHEEEREISHEKE
BEFENZEXH]

RAFE AKBCERERER
MBHRELRFEIGK - FEETBR
SEAUEFIGREMK BB G ER
FIBWIEXR] FAEEHELF
MR IZEEHNI RAERE-

AEBCEYPERBEEY B REE
AlF165 S ERERZENNR
ARERBERA 20185441
BHER - BXERBHNEMER
RBMRAENER RXEET
HRER - REBEEEFBERS
ERFIBH 2 BRMEX NEEE
BERBZENEPEBN2018%F4 A
THRARTRZAEH - B & T
RERNTDIREZ B ST ERF 18R
NEERERE AR REEELE -

AEEERRETFANZIMER
EERUNERNREE L EZHAE
ERBIMBTEENEERE -

ERSBEREAEEMB RS ERE
BRZENEEREABRZEHR
2 BB FEE R EE -
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

2. ERAHITIRKLEITETR
Bt %% 3R & % B @)

XEEREERRAR

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 ”“Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 15

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at 1 April 2018. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

RAEAFEBRGERBHTR
RETEBMB RS E R

EEMBEHREEAEISHIKXE
EFENZEXHE)

BEAXEREEMEREERFS
I E R E Wt

ATHABEDRN2018F481B 546
FHRAEBRZ S BIEL AR
RESZEHTE2HEBNEAESR

BHEA-

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15
31 March at 1 April
2018 Reclassification 2018*
#2018 %
4AR18B R
720185 ERBBRE
3A31B 2 Al ERAE15H 2
EmMZEEE EFNSHE BREE*
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FHET
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5Kk HMEMNKRE 63,260 (11,554) 51,706
Contract liabilities aHaE = 11,554 11,554

* The amounts in this column are before the adjustments from
the application of HKFRS 9.

As at 1 April 2018, deposits received from sale of residential
units of HK$11,554,000 in respect of consideration received
from sales contracts previously included in trade and other
payables were reclassified to contract liabilities.

20194 R

L UMRZEEDAEREREMBRSE
EREOMRBEZA -

W2018F481H KB HEFXEEE
i 2 B WEIZ € 11,554,000 7T T3 @8
REESEHNZERBRREZIBE
FESREMENRBEETH DB

EANRE-
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AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 ”“Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 15 (Continued)

The application of HKFRS 15 has had no material impact on
the Group’s accumulated profits as at 1 April 2018.

The following table summarises the impacts of applying
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows for the current year for each of the line items affected.
Line items that were not affected by the changes have not
been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

ERHIREETER
Bt %% & 2 Al o)

RAEAFEBRGERBHTR
RETEBMBERSERN®

EBUMBHREERNFISHIKE
BEFENZEXHIE)

BEREREEMBEREERE1S
SEE LR E ()

EREBMEHREELFIGRE AN
£ B N2018F4 818 st Fl X &
BEAFE-

TEMAERNEEZFEMNIER -
FERE BB %EW £155% ¥ K
EBRAFELRARECRERNTE -
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ%éZﬁE%&ﬁ

Amounts
without
application of
As reported Reclassification HKFRS 15
KEREB
Bt % 3% & 2% Al
R & At EFSE F15K2EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET FE T
Decrease in trade and other & 5 K& £ h fE
payables —/’( I8 i (15,841) (11,554) (27,395)
Decrease in contract liabilities & %9 & &/ 4 (11,554) 11,554 =

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no deposits received
from sale of residential units in respect of consideration
received from sales contracts.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

MR2019F3A31H  MEEA DK
BHREmMS AEBTEHRLEE
FEBMKERES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 and the
related consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS
9 introduces new requirements for (1) the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, (2)
expected credit loss (“ECL") for financial assets and (3)
general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment) retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 April 2018 (date of initial recognition)
and has not applied the requirements to instruments that
have already been derecognised as at 1 April 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31 March 2018
and the carrying amounts as at 1 April 2018 is recognised in
the opening accumulated profits and other components of
equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9
are disclosed in note 3.

20194 R

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

2.

ERAFITREETER
Bt %% 3 5 2 Al o)

RAEAFEBRGERBHTR
RETEBMB RS E R

EBUMBHREERFINR ML
=y

F$$F AEHEEERBBBMB
BELRAFORMNEMBEMBRS
ﬁwm@m%&ug & BB B
SEAFIORSIEMEREERS R
EEMNOBELEFE QEREED
BEHEEBR(BEHEEBERDR®Q)
—REPEFTORE -

AEBEEREABVHREELEDFIR
FrEBEKRIERE ST EHREE
Bl 9% - BN ¥ M2018FE4 818 (B
REABE)TERIIERNT AR
WERSERTERTE(BERE)
Y B R20185F4 A1 H K& IE#E
RO TEEABRRBMRT  M2018F3
A31HMERMEEHREMN2018F4 A1H
mHEETEZ%%EEAHH%ﬂ%EﬁEﬂ
EEMEMAXNSDTIER A
B EE R

HRLEBRERTTRREL @5 ER
FHFIeRT AR - ERARFTE]R
oA B THREMAEEZEZR
TELL & -

EREEVHREELR
RN 3K E -

9%k 2 & &t
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9

Below illustrates the classification and measurement
(including impairment) of financial assets and other items
subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 at the date of initial application,
1 April 2018.

(i)

Available-for-sale investments

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, the Group's
equity investments of HK$109,665,000 were reclassified
from available-for-sale investments to financial assets
at FVTPL. The share of investment revaluation reserve
of associates of HK$13,390,000 and fair value gains
of HK$29,895,000 relating to the equity investments
previously accumulated up to 31 March 2018 were
transferred from investment revaluation reserve to
accumulated profits as at 1 April 2018.

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, the Group
no longer applied designation as measured at FVTPL for
the equity-linked investments which are managed and
their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, as
these financial assets are required to be measured at
FVTPL under HKFRS 9. As a result, these investments
with fair value of HK$29,885,000 were reclassified from
financial assets designated as at FVTPL to financial
assets at FVTPL.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

. ERFTREETER
B85 8 & 2 Al o)

RAFERSG ERNHFTR
RIETEBMB RS E W

EBUMBHREERFIR[THMT
A (#)

B A JE A& BB
R EHE

AT\ BEETE BB ®E LR
FORBETIHEBMEEFBEZCMEE
FEMBEREXRERABH 2018
FARIBZDBERFE(RERE) -

FERE

(i) AIHEERSE
REXERS DY B HE %L
FORCHBE AEBEZRAK
# #109,665,00078 7T & M A
LERBEEFHPBEEERATE
FFABRCERMEE 2FT &
2018 F3A3TH RN K AK &
ZHOMNBERARBREEHRERB
13,390,000 7t & 2 F & W =
29,895,000 7t - B I & E
EE B ER2018F4818 2
E

(i) FERBEAFEFABRELZ
THEE
RERXREREEY B REER
FOHF 2 AHM AEETBEMS
BERRINFEABE NG
ERAHBRE HEERKRR
AR FEEEFGE BEe
MEERABTEAUB RS E
AIFOMIB T 2 A FE AR
mAFE- At REFRERHE
A 129,885,000/ 7L 2 1B E
REAFEAABZZE®RE
EEHNBERAQAFEF AR
BZERMEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

XEEREEGRAH

Convertible notes

Before the application of HKFRS 9, convertible notes
held by the Group consisted of two components,
which are receivable component classified as loans
and receivables and derivatives component classified
as FVTPL. Upon the application of HKFRS 9, these
convertible notes were reclassified to financial assets
at FVTPL upon the application of HKFRS 9 because their
cash flows do not represent solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The
remeasurement of fair value loss of HK$373,000 relating
to fair value of the receivable component of convertible
notes as at 31 March 2018 was recognised against
accumulated profits as at 1 April 2018.

Life insurance policy

Life insurance policy will be classified as financial assets
at FVTPL as these financial assets have contractual
right to cash flows that do not represent contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. The
remeasurement of fair value gain of HK$226,000 relating
to fair value of these financial assets as at 31 March
2018 was recognised against accumulated profits as
at 1 April 2018.

20194 R

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

. ERFATREEITER
BB 8 & 2 Al o)

RAFERSG ERNHTR
RETEBMB RS E R

EBUMBHREERFINR ML
A /(#)

BEAEHEENBEHREEREI

R ERE(E)
(i) A7 % B =i

FTEAEEVBRELEREIR
A - ASERE2TBRBREES
EMEKD BRENDDSEAEE
REBURBEBRETEXD DB
BEAFEFAEBR RERS
BB REENEIRE  ZF
ATBMBREEEHSEZEATF
%;r)waﬁﬁzimﬁéfﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬁ
BEAEUMBREENFIFTAAE
RemEatfTmsa2rRBEA: X
ER#MpAez2ME2X M- B
E%ﬁ!ﬁ%)ﬁﬂzmsﬁsﬂma‘nﬁ

EBEUKKOATFEZRATF
TE JES $8373,0007% JT B 7220184
4R18 2 25 & 7 #ERE -

(ivi ASRE
ANEREBSBEAKEAFER
ABRZeREERZSEEE
ZEXNBEEREERIT T2
RMASREHBRE 2 FE X
NrzaHWBEeRE-BBEN
FFEZE SR E ER218F3
A3BZAFEEAFEKE
226,0007% Tt 2 R 2018F 4 A1H
2 R m T WE R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Impairment under ECL model

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an ECL model, as opposed to an incurred
credit loss model under HKAS 39. The ECL model
requires an entity to account for ECL and changes in
those ECL at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

Loss allowance for financial assets at amortised cost
mainly comprise of loans receivable, other receivables
and bank balances, which are measured on 12-month
ECL ("12m ECL") basis and there had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 April 2018, the additional credit loss allowance
of HK$3,457,000 for loans receivable has been
recognised against accumulated profits. The additional
loss allowance is charged against the loans receivable.

The directors of the Company considered that the
additional ECL allowance for other receivables and bank
balances as at 1 April 2018 measured under the ECL
model is insignificant.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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2 BABRRELEEEERMHIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

The reclassification of financial assets as disclosed above
as at 31 March 2018 reconciled to the opening balance of
financial assets at FVTPL as at 1 April 2018 is as follows:

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

. ERFATREEITER

I ®|E

RAFEBRSE
RETEBEMBRSE

EBUMBHREERFINR ML

A /(#)
BEAEHEENBEHREEREI
FeEZEEE)

MR2018F3A3TA 2 EXMKEZ
EREEHHEN2018F4A1B K

#E B (4

- A

&)

Lo

B

- A

NFPEFAEGEZEHRDBENOT

EI
I ()

Financial ~ Receivable  Derivatives
Available- assets  component  component Life Trade  Financial
for-sale  designated of convertible of convertible insurance  and other assets
Notes  investments  as at FVTPL notes notes policy receivables  at FVTPL
EEA
BAYE g5k EATHEG
At HABREz TEREE TRREE AtEN  ABEZ
i3 LERE SHEE ZEURK 2fiERf  ARRE RE  SREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAT FE7 AT AT FET FET FET
Closing balance at 31 March 2018 R2018%F3A3NA L
- HKAS 39 BREH
-EREHENENS 109,665 29,885 61,317 10,750 10,275 190,267 100,094
Effect arising from initial application & X ERE BB KK 5%8
of HKFRS 9 F95 Y8
Reclassification from available-for-sale BT EHEREENHE
investments (i) (109,665) - - - - - 109,665
Reclassification from financial assets ~ MET ARATEF AER
designated as at FVTPL LEREEENNE (i) = 29,885) - - - - 29,885
Reclassification from convertible notes MTEREEEHHE (i) - - 61,317) - - - 61,317
Reclassification from derivatives mABREE 2T ERD
component of convertible notes ENinE (i) - - - 10,750) - - 10,750
Reclassification from life insurance BASREENAE
policy (iv) = o S = (10,275) = 10,275
Reclassification from trade and other 2 5 R E M B8
receivables ENAE fiv) - - - - - (286) 286
Amounts remeasured through opening BRI 2 BF E &
accumulated profits TELEE (] (iv) - - - - - = (147)
Opening balance at 1 April 2018 RA18E4R 1R BA &% - - - - - 189,981 322,125

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(" H KFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the application of

all new standards

As aresult of the changes in the Group’s accounting policies
above, the opening consolidated statement of financial
position had to be restated. The following table shows the

adjustments recognised for each individual line item.

N
)Imiﬁ[

EAZIKEEﬁﬁ%IJi%IEI’\J%ﬁ

A
% 3

s

Iff 24
Jrﬁﬁ%

BIETHEB
Al &)

ﬂ
e

RETEREMBREE/ G
FE F5 B 5 3 2 R 1 B 4 77 & 1 7%
BEzT&

HR LA AEEZ @A RR2EE
HUGEaMBRAREES - AT

I RBNE BR

LR

7 B 1@ B B B

31 March 1 April
2018 HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 2018
ERRE TEUE
2018  HEEE  HEER 20184
3A31H £155 L E 4818
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
(Restated)
(EE5)
Non-current assets kRBEE
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 109,665 - (109,665) -
Convertible notes HRREE 19,213 - (19,213) -
Derivatives component of convertible  AJ 3 i 218 7§74 5 (7
notes 9,792 - (9,792) -
Life insurance policy ASRE 10,275 = (10,275) =
Financial assets at FVTPL BELATEGFAERRZ
eRMEE - - 39,009 39,009
Loans receivable fE W E X 13,979 = (427) 13,552
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables B REMENFRE 190,267 - (286) 189,981
Convertible notes MRKkEE 42,104 = (42,104) =
Derivatives component of convertible 7] 2 i% Z 1§ 7 47 4 B 17
notes 958 - (958) =
Financial assets designated as at FVTPL ¥ E AR A FE;ARZE 2
EREAE 29,885 - (29,885) -
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAFEFABRZ
SRMEE 100,094 - 183,022 283,116
Loans receivable B E % 245,282 = (3,030) 242,252
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables S REMENTE 63,260 (11,554) = 51,706
Contract liabilities AHEaRE - 11,554 = 11,554
Capital and reserves BAR &
Reserves B 3,182,213 - (3,604) 3,178,609
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. EFRA#HIREETER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG B iR &5 E e

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but EEMBERMDRERZ A
not yet effective RBEBEITIEBMERSEAR
The Group has not early applied the following new and AEBEYEREAMER T EHEME
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation that have MARERNHTRECEITBRBHB
been issued but are not yet effective: MEERRZE:

HKFRS 16 Leases’ REMBREES HE

£16%
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? EAMBREES RBAR?
F1T%
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax EAERHBERE MEREELTEER
Treatments' 2EZE%9)
-2EEBH
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to BRMBREER HEANBREER
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle' 2B 2155 £2017F
ARz EEHE
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business® EAMBREES EBHER
FIR BT
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with REMBREES AEABRBZRERTE
Negative Compensation’ FIK 2B B
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets ERAMBREES REZAHEBERLE
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FI0RREEGH RRZHEZEELE
Associate or Joint Ventures?® ERE28% 2 BT %t &®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material® EBEHENE1IRR EXNENERS
and HKAS 8 ERGHER SR
BT

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment EREENFE 9% HEABK HHKEE

or Settlement’ B3]

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in EAQHREAENRTE REERAARAELE

Associates and Joint L3 LRBER
Venture'

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January g M2019F 1 A1TBS 2 &G 2 FE
2019 HA R A&

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 R2021F1A1BR 2 EHABZEE
2021 HAFR A

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 3 O RATEWAFRzERSBZFE
determined M &

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for ¢ R BB A2020F1A1B®Z &
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the HIENEEFERYKZEERD
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 E¥BAaHREEWRE

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 5 R20200F1A1BR2EHABZEE
2020 HAf A K

KEEREEBARLT 20195
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Except as disclosed below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and amendments
to HKFRSs and an interpretation will have no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and financial
positions and/or the disclosures to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the requirements of
HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents operating lease payments as operating cash flows.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing cash flows by
the Group, upfront prepaid lease payments will continue
to be presented as investing or operating cash flows in
accordance to the nature, as appropriate.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$1,989,000 as disclosed in note 34.
A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements
will meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS
16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$196,000 and refundable rental deposits
received of HK$10,335,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may
be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits paid would be considered as additional lease
payments and included in the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received
would be considered as advance lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4 “Determining
Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease” and not apply
this standard to contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4.
Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the contracts
are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the date
of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect
the modified retrospective approach for the application of
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect
of initial application to opening accumulated profits without
restating comparative information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

”

Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
provide additional guidance with the objective of assisting
entities to determine whether a transaction should be
accounted for as a business combination or an asset
acquisition. Furthermore, an optional concentration test is
introduced to permit a simplified assessment of whether
an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The amendments will be mandatorily effective to the Group
prospectively for acquisition transactions completed on or
after 1 April 2020.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition
of Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations
in making materiality judgments. The amendments also
align the definition cross all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 April
2020. The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group but may affect the presentation
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for investment
properties and certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, at the end of the reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business combination
under common control are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
“Income Taxes"” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries not constituting
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and the financial assets and financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance
of the purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values
at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give
rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the associate/joint venture other than profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group's share of
losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. £ E8

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

(Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

(Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement
to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Interests in joint operations (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which
a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or contribution
of assets), the Group is considered to be conducting the
transaction with the other parties to the joint operation,
and gains and losses resulting from the transactions are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of other parties’ interests in the joint
operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which
a group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase of
assets), the Group does not recognise its share of the gains
and losses until it resells those assets to a third party.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

The Group recognises revenue from property sales at a point
in time when legal title of property has been transferred to
customer, being when the customer has the ability to direct
the use of the property and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits of the property.

The Group recognises building management service income
over time. The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the services transferred to the
customer to date relative to the remaining services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group's performance
in transferring control of services.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained.

The Group recognises property sales commissions as an
asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group's activities, as described
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. T Egit X @

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

(Continued)

Sale of goods and properties held for development
for sale

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and delivered to the purchasers. Deposits
and instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting
the above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Rental income

The Group's policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assets and is recognised in profit or loss.
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XEEREEGRAH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, except for the properties
transferred from property, plant and equipment, which are
measured at fair value at date of transfer. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. All of the Group's property interests
held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties and are measured using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
accumulated profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Intangible asset

Intangible asset with indefinite useful life that is acquired
separately is carried at cost less subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset
is derecognised.

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale are classified
as current assets and stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, including
purchase costs of the properties for development,
development costs and borrowing costs capitalised, are
capitalised and included as properties held for development
until such time when they are completed.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are
classified under current assets. They are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business is presented as revenue.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application or initial
recognition of a financial asset that Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
applies.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

FESTHERw®

$RIT A

T HEE

TR EEZOBRRTEREN
A2/ B IX X JEF & ER % #®
ZERIFEIF 1E)
HATHGEHENEBEER % RE
B AR

e NWHRAHNRERE/BHNM
HETRMEEZEBRATH
BZeREE R

e TRMEEZANBGANIETEH
HELZREREABR RN
RERREERASEZMNE -

HaTiEtmemEEEREZA
FEFAREMEE KD E

e FARBUNEHURBRAHNRERE
AHETREERBNMETA
TRMEEZEBEATHEEZ
TREE R

e TREEZANKGINETEH
HELAZREREABR RN
KERREERASHEZIMNE -

EEMeREEERZAFES
AR BRY)EE R K6 ER
TRMEEZAEY HMEZBEaKREL
FREES NFURBITREEY
BHRELEREIREXBK A MER
MEBAHPHEIOINARE X
SERTARELEERAEMER
WP 2 EERERFEMNER
B -

2019 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZZ2019%¥3A31H 1L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

e oninitial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e jtis a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that is required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(i) Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of
interest income calculated using the effective interest
method are recognised in profit or loss. All other changes
in the carrying amount of these debt instruments
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of FVTOCI reserve.
Impairment allowances are recognised in profit or loss
with corresponding adjustment to other comprehensive
income without reducing the carrying amounts of these
debt instruments. The amounts that are recognised in
profit or loss are the same as the amounts that would
have been recognised in profit or loss if these debt
instruments had been measured at amortised cost.
When these debt instruments are derecognised, the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

(il) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated
as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes interest
earned but excludes any dividend earned on the financial
asset and is included in the other income, gains and
losses line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including loans receivable, debt instruments at FVTOCI,
other debt instrument at amortised cost, other receivables
and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are made based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
debtors, general economic conditions and assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

For these assets, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. T ESF B EXw

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS
9 with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the borrower or debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the borrower’s
or debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the borrower or debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environments of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the borrower’s or debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZZ2019%¥3A31H 1L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESF B EXw

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS
9 with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i)

XEEREEGRAH

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if (1) it has a low risk of default, (2) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and (3) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers the credit risk of the
debt instrument mainly with reference to external credit
rating of “investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. T ESF B EXw

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS
9 with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

e  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

e the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

e jtis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS
9 with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

(v)

XEEREEGRAH

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESF B EXw

(Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. T ESF B EXw

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS
9 with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped on the basis below:

° Nature of financial instruments;
o Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of loans receivable where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account. For investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve without reducing the carrying amount
of these debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
April 2018)

The Group's financial assets are classified into financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is (i) held for trading or (ii) it is designated
as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of an identified
portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. T ESF B EXw

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

¢RI AE
EHEEE)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
and loss excludes any dividend earned or interest on
the financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZZ2019%¥3A31H 1L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESF B EXw

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
April 2018) (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

XEEREEGRAH

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including receivable component in
convertible notes, life insurance policy, trade and other
receivables, loans receivable and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Derivatives component in convertible notes

Derivatives component in convertible notes is initially
recognised at fair value and is classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition. The derivatives
component is subsequently remeasured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period with resulting gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss is recognised as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of loans receivable, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When an item of loans
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

20194 R

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZZ2019%¥3A31H 1L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

FESITHE®

R IAE®E

SHEEE)

T EERBE(R2018F4H1H
JE B & BB 75 IR & ZE R E 958 A)
(#)

BRRERKERXRZEEERBERESE
%ﬁﬂd%’%ﬁéﬂﬁFZ$E
EREERMEEZREBEMER
WML BEHR 2EEENEBHNIE
aFRERB-E-HAEEKERRAST
BE W [B] B - BN 70 36 4 BR IS - B 1 K
HOSBRENERKEIRGABRR-

E-BEAHLEESRMEERRAD
BE BEREMEZEREERLZ
Rt mBEKER D EEZH
BEEERE

IRBHEKAGEZCEREEMS -
WRERBRE G REBESBERD
KB BB D AR B %Waﬁm
HMEBERMEBENEMF BT
ERWBREBENBS P ED - H
EREEXNBOREZE ANE@E
THEBEALEERAMET 2 ##HK
o

AHEERAKREZREBEST
CERBRBRAZBERTELD - EM
HMEBEBRZ AFEEMNNEM
EEKREANERLRRNREEMERHE
B RE e

141



142

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amount due to non-controlling shareholder and secured bank
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire
or, when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets to another
entity. On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of an available-for-sale financial asset,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and only
when the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of tangible assets and intangible
asset with indefinite useful lives

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of tangible and intangible assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment of tangible assets and intangible
asset with indefinite useful lives (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interest in a joint venture, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.
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XEEREEGRAH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset. Other than investment properties measured
under fair value model, such costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of lease
classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To the
extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases and amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) are charged as expenses
when employees have rendered services entitling them to
the contribution.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount
already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the management
has reviewed the Group's investment properties portfolios
and concluded that while the Group’s investment properties
located in Hong Kong are depreciable, they are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in determining the Group's
deferred taxation arising from these investment properties
located in Hong Kong, the management determined that the
presumption that these investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered through sale is not
rebutted.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.

Investment properties

Some of the Group's assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated
team to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
key inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group's investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent they are available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers to perform valuation of the
Group's investment properties. At the end of the reporting
period, the management works closely with the independent
firm of qualified professional property valuers to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key
inputs for fair value measurements. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the Company.
Information about the valuation techniques and key inputs
used in determining the fair value of the Group's investment
properties is disclosed in note 14.

Impairment assessment of loans receivable

Management regularly reviews the impairment assessment
and evaluates the ECL of the loans receivable. Appropriate
impairment allowance is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment of loans receivable
(Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the loans receivable as at the reporting
date with the one as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the loans receivable from borrowers
are assessed by the management of the Group, based on the
financial background, collateral and the historical settlement
records, including past due dates and default rates, of each
borrower and forward-looking information that is reasonable,
supportable and available without undue cost or effort.

Each borrower is assigned a risk grading under internal credit
ratings to calculate the ECL, taking into consideration of
the estimates of expected cash shortfalls which are driven
by estimates of possibility of default and the amount and
timing of cash flows that are expected from foreclosure
on the collaterals (if any) less the costs of obtaining and
selling the collaterals. At every reporting date, the financial
background, collateral and the historical settlement
records are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The

information about the ECL and the Group's loans receivable
are disclosed in notes 41 and 21 respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Determination of net realisable value of properties
held for development for sale/properties held for
sale

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of
the Group's properties held for development for sale/
properties held for sale, which are situated in Hong Kong
and with an aggregate sum of HK$2,051,613,000 (2018:
HK$964,256,000) at 31 March 2019, with reference to
current market environment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets may exceed its net realisable value. Appropriate write-
down for estimated irrecoverable amount is recognised in
profit or loss when the net realisable value is below cost. The
estimates of net realisable value are determined based on
the evidence available at the time the estimates are made,
less the anticipated costs to completion (where appropriate).
Actual realised amount may differ from estimates, resulting
in a decrease or an increase in the net realisable value of
the properties held for development for sale/properties held
for sale and additional write-down or reversal of write-down
previously recognised may be required.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of the amounts received
or receivable in respect of property sales, rental income from
property leasing, interest income from loan financing and
building management during the year. An analysis of the
Group's revenue is as follows:

FTESHHEHERTAEE
2 EERE®

THREMT 2EEZERRGE)

BEFFHERRYE FEH
EYXz I8 HFE

EEETHENALEEZEFELE
BRUE /BEHEDEZAT KD
gEh B REENR2019F3 A31H
2 % % % 52,051,613,0005% 7T (2018
F 1 964,256,000/ L) ' Jh 2 E R B
TEREBEZEHXNBEREE B RZ
BEZFHEXTRAEJEZEF
BeZHABEFEMBMEK AR &
AR EeE o BARERER
PR - BETHAAUERFAEDE
RIEHBFERZABESE  0R
EERERIBFAA(WER) B
KA EEeHESITRHBAEER
MEBSEHEBRRYDE FHEHE
W ¥z Al #IRFE R D R KA
EEZERBEIMBEXBRBEAR

3

EXEEFANEHE KAELH
MEHESBA - KEERBRE KB
FTEREMNBKRAZE KK EWKFKE
ZRB-AKEEZEEXBEAITWOT

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FE T

Property sales Y E i E 755,880 248,106
Rental income el A 54,892 52,958
Interest income from loan financing RKEBZ@E R B WA 18,591 29,560
Building management BFEIE 984 897
830,347 331,521
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised at a point
in time when the completed property is transferred to
customers, being at the point that the customer obtains
the control of the completed property and the Group has
present right to payment and collection of the consideration
is probable. The Group receives deposits from customers
pursuant to the payment terms of the sale and purchase
agreement.

For building management services, the Group bills a fixed
rate for services provided on a monthly basis and recognises
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and that corresponds directly with the value to the
customers of Group's performance completed. The Group
acts as principal and is primarily responsible for providing
the building management services to the property owners,
who simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs,
the Group recognises the fee received or receivable from
property owners as its revenue over time and all related
building management costs as its cost of services. The
Group elected to apply the practical expedient by recognising
revenue in the amount to which the Group has right to
invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Rental income and interest income from loan financing
fall outside the scope of HKFRS 15 and the revenue from
contracts with customers for the year ended 31 March 2019
amounted to HK$756,864,000.
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group's chief executive officer,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"),
for the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on types of goods delivered
or services provided. This is also the basis of organisation,
whereby the management has chosen to organise the Group
around differences in products and services.

The Group's operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are (i) property investment,
(ii) property development, (iii) investment in securities and
(iv) loan financing.

/'\7k ﬁ*ﬁl_
HERSEEDERRTEMS
ERGEAEB ETEKERRES
FBTRAR(ZTELEREE]DZE
B D&EHRRE MmN RS REMH
ZEBE - TN REBCEE ERE
EBEREALMEBAEBRERIRB 2
ZRo

BEEBSVBEHRELENFESH K&
DE| AEEZEERERSBE
E()MERE (VWEER  (i)E
ERERVERRRE -
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(a) Segment revenue and results (a) 7 BEXHERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and BEENERD LT AE
results by operating and reportable segment: LEEBEEENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019 B FE2019F3A31HILFE
Property Property  Investment Loan
investment development in securities financing Consolidated
NERE NEER EERE ENRE Ge
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
TEx TEx FEx TEx TEx
(note)
(Hit)
SEGMENT REVENUE NEERE
External sales SREE 55,876 755,880 - 18,591 830,347
RESULTS £
Segment results DEEE 162,264 213,292 (19,575) 14,889 370,870
Unallocated corporate income & A& 2 2 A1 A 264
Unallocated corporate expenses &N H 7 A8 f % (5,695)
Results attributable to interests B & 7\ 7] # %
in associates AEEE 12,593
Results attributable to interest  — A% A Al EH
in a joint venture PMEEE 4)
Finance costs BEKK (23,043)
Profit before taxation b W AR F 354,985
I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued)

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &
2EER @
(a) P EEFRERFE®

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B £2018F3HA31HIEFE
Property Property Investment Loan
investment  development in securities financing  Consolidated
NERE NEER EHRE ERRE ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(note)
(Hi)
SEGMENT REVENUE PEEXH
External sales IR E 53,855 248,106 - 29,560 331,621
RESULTS ES |
Segment results EES 202,052 40,379 38,026 27,987 308,444
Unallocated corporate income A& 7 A A M A 471
Unallocated corporate expenses &2 B 2 A alF X (13,164)
Results attributable to interests B & A 7] &
in associates Gk 40,993
Finance costs BERA (16,935)
Profit before taxation B 1 A i A 319,809

Note:Rental income generated from properties held for
development for sale was included in property investment
segment.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group's accounting policies described
in note 3. Segment results represent the profit earned
or loss incurred by each segment without allocation
of results attributable to interests in associates and
interest in a joint venture, finance costs and unallocated
corporate income and expenses. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

20194 R
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7 HER®
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b) 7 EEERAEE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and REERERDBONMAE

liabilities by operating and reportable segment: ZEERBEWNOT :
At 31 March 2019 HR2019%3531H
Property Property  Investment Loan

investment development in securities financing Consolidated

NERE NERR BERE EXRE g4

HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET

ASSETS BE
Segment assets PEEE 1,463,348 2,142,526 222,221 242,213 4,070,308
Interests in associates BeENF#ER 671,921
Interest in a joint venture —MAERAER 1,740
Tax recoverable G qak 331
Bank balances and cash ROOEHERE 191,670
Unallocated corporate assets ~ EHE 2 AFAE 90,819
Consolidated assets GREE 5,026,789
I
LIABILITIES B
Segment liabilities NEBE 18,117 118,679 286 4,544 141,626
Secured bank borrowings EERBIEE 1,285,984
Tax payable R FiE 50,514
Unallocated corporate liabilites &/ &2 A7 & & 1315
Consolidated liabilities RRAaf 1,479,439
I
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At 31 March 2018

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194F 3831 H L F &
6. 7 EE &l
b) P BEERERBH
HR201843 H31H

Property Property Investment Loan

investment  development in securities financing  Consolidated
NERE NEER EHRE ERRE ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

ASSETS BE
Segment assets PEEE 1,800,157 1,155,774 313,431 259,867 3,529,229
Interests in associates BanAER 665,666
Tax recoverable ] Y B R 449
Bank balances and cash ROEBRRSE 150,370
Unallocated corporate assets ~ EN B 7 AAEE 88,797
Consolidated assets BREE 4,434,511

I

LIABILITIES BE
Segment liabilities EERE 23,687 35,455 219 2,552 61,913
Secured bank borrowings EHRBIEE 1,151,742
Tax payable fEfBE 29,354
Unallocated corporate liabilities ZE2E 2 A& & 1,347
Consolidated liabilities KRR 1,244,356

I
20195 5k
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c)

6.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than interests in associates,
interest in a joint venture, tax recoverable,
unallocated bank balances and cash and assets
used jointly by operating and reportable segments.

— allliabilities are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than secured bank borrowings,
tax payable and liabilities for which operating and

reportable segments are jointly liable.

Other segment information

7EE R
b)) " EEEREEB®H

RERDBRBELRD FEE
BOEMS

- BBEATEE —HMAZ
AN ATRE B
SRETEBER S R
BRE2BHOBARER
BESN FAAEESEE

- BREAEEWRTEES BA®
BUARRERZ2Z®D B H
REEzABHN FABEARE

ENEERERERD M-

(c) Htt 7 BEH

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B FE2019¥3A31A L FE
Property Property  Investment Loan
investment ~ development in securities financing  Unallocated Consolidated
NERE NERR E5KE  HYRE EAR &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEn TEn TEx FEn FER
Amounts included in the measure 2R 2EHELET,
of segment assets or segment NEXEHEZSE:
results:
Capital additions BREN 4815 827 - - - 5,642
Depreciation of property, plantand 9% BERZEZ
equipment e 1,644 1,373 80 - 1578 4,675
Loss on disposal of property, plant ~ HE#%%  BERZE
and equipment LE# 125 - - - - 125
Gain on changes in fair value of RENEINTE
investment properties e (126,430) - - - - (126,430)
Loss on changes in fairvalue of R ATEFABHEZ
financial assets at FVTPL SREEZATE
2HER - - 21,794 - - 21,794
Impairment loss on loans ERERZEREER
receivable, net - - - 2713 - 273
Impairment loss on debt instruments RATFEFAEH2E
at FVT0C| hERBEIAL
REER - - 1505 - - 1,505
Impairment loss on other debt REHAAGEZER
instrument at amortised cost EBXTAZHESE - - 3,523 - - 3,523

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &
6. 7 EER®
(c) Hitt 5 BE B (&)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Other segment information (Continued)

XEEREERRAR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BHE2018F3HA31ALFE
Property Property Investment Loan
investment  development  in securities financing ~ Unallocated ~ Consolidated
nERE NELR BHRE  ERRE EOR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TET TAT FET
Amounts included in the measure BB 2ENEEES
of segment assets or segment AEREHELER:
results:
Capital additions BREN 4,605 464 20 = 4373 9,462
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% BER#&E 2
equipment nE 1,589 1,196 83 - 1,251 4119
Gain on changes in fair value of RENEINTE
investment properties 2y (159,475) - = = - (153475)
Gain on changes in fair value of BATEHABRY
financial assets at FVTPL PRHEELATE
29hE - - (21,859) - - (21,859)
Loss on changes in fair value of EEEATEGAER
financial assets designated asat 22 BEEZA TR
FVTPL 2958 - - 3,408 - - 3,403
Gain on redemption of convertible BB A EHFEHE 7 K&
note - - (1,135) = = (1,135)
Gain on modification of terms of ~ EHABRER K7
convertible note W& - - (425) - - (425)
Loss on changes in fair value of MRREE 2T EM B
derivatives component of JATEZHER
convertible notes - - 299 - - 2,992
Loss on disposal of available-forsale HEFEEERE 7
investments EB = = 1,033 = - 1,033
Impairment loss on available-for-sale 7 & H£ %% 7
investments REER - - 4013 - - 4213

20194 R
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(d) Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong (place
of domicile).

The Group’s revenue from external customers based
on location of its customers and information about the
Group's non-current assets (excluding financial assets at
FVTPL, available-for-sale investments, debt instruments
at FVTOCI, other debt instrument at amortised cost,
convertible notes, derivatives component of convertible
notes, loans receivable and life insurance policy),
analysed by the geographical area in which the assets
are located, are as follows:

7EE R @

(d)

Revenue from
external customers

REBZZ2ENNREE(ER
i) o

BONREPZHRE D AEE
CEEBERNREEZMELR
B o MAKBEZERDEE
(TERERAFEFABRZZSE
BMEE AIHHEERE BAF
Bt ARtz EKRE2EB T
B BBHERAAEZHMER
TE -A@MEREE JEARERE
ZOTERD  BREFURAS
RE)ZEHBAT:

Carrying amounts
of non-current assets

REIREFZEXEH RBEEZREE
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE T FET FHE T
Hong Kong BB 830,347 331,521 2,216,936 2,547,922
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e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 7 BE R
(e) Information about major customers (e) XEXEFZEH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years EPFRMEBFEERMRAEER
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group EEEBRIOYANEZEESE
is as follows: LN
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FAEIT
Customer A’ B2EA 680,685 -
Customer B! = FB! - 52,850
Customer C' BEEC - 49,248
Customer D' BED - 47,405
Customer E' BFEE N/A? 45,406
TiE A2
Customer F' ZEF N/A2 40,917
T iE A2
t Revenue from property development. L REVEBR 2 EERE -
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% 2 HESEYRETESE M A E®E
of the total revenue of the Group. EEEBBI0% MU E-
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. B E KA
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZHNE 34,058 26,653
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost & - RE EREE
of qualifying assets BEARb 2 &% (11,015) (9,718)
23,043 16,935
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the FAMBBEEERILEERAKTY
general borrowing pool and were calculated by applying a HHE RN EF E1.82% (2018 F -
capitalisation rate of 1.82% (2018: 2.56%) per annum to 256% ):tEEBEERBREEZH Y

expenditure on qualifying assets.

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. KRB AR R
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Profit before taxation has been arrived & ¥ 5 3% F 2 1 % -
at after charging:

Directors’ emoluments (note 9(a)) BEME (M 29%) 41,554 6,233
Other staff costs, including retirement £ fh B Tk A& » 845

benefits scheme contributions RAK R F A &) 5 22,093 17,931
Total staff costs i SR N 63,647 24,164

Amortisation of premium and other RASREZRER
expenses charged on life insurance Hih 2%

policy - 282
Auditor’'s remuneration % 6N B & 2,459 2,149
Cost of properties recognised as ERIEAIZWERN

expense 473,671 154,270
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BMERZB2ZITE

equipment 4,675 4,119
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME BMELKRE

and equipment el Sk 125 -

and after crediting to other income: I ERHEMK A A

Dividend income from listed KB EMEKREZREKA
investments 7,409 7,527
Interest income from A EWARE
Accretion from receivable AR R K D 2
component of convertible notes B R IEE - 11,539
Life insurance policy ASRE - 376
Other debt instrument at amortised REBHEK ARG EZEM
cost BEIA 2,153 =
Debt instruments at FVTOCI ERAFEFAEMEZE
WamzEBBIA 1,240 -
Bank and others R1T R A Ath 5,943 14,249

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report
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9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Information regarding directors’

emoluments

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company

for the year ended 31 March 2019 are as follows:

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

9.

EX BERTHRARKE
B
(a) FREEHME2EH

B E20195F3A3MBEFEEAR
AEEMeFBEOT:

Independent
Executive directors non-executive directors
HTES BUFYTES
Tse
Wing Lui Koon Jong Tsui Hon
Chiu Yuk Ho Yan Koon Chun Tam
Ricky Chu Candy Sang Kong Chun Total
#xE  BE% 0 EUR  EEE  REE  BES oL
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FiEx FiEx TEx FiEx FiEx FEx FEx
(note (ii))  (note (iii))
(B (i) (B i)
Fees ExHe - - - 140 140 140 420
Other emoluments Hi i 4
- salaries and other ~HeRHEM
benefits =¥l 1,500 3,132 1,846 - - - 6,478
- performance-related -RRAAB
bonus A% - 34,500 - - - - 34,500
- retirement benefits ~BREF
scheme contributions E T 18 120 18 - - - 156
Total directors’ emoluments  EEH 4 2% 1,518 37,752 1,864 140 140 140 41,554

XEFEBREEFRA T 20195
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EX BHETHARIKE
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS Ez#MEm
(Continued)
(a) Information regarding directors’ (a) EREEMe 2 E R @
emoluments (Continued)
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company HE2018F3A3MBLEFEARARD
for the year ended 31 March 2018 are as follows: AIEEMEeFBOT
Non-
executive Independent
Executive directors director non-executive directors
Ei3 Ko
Higs EZ BUFHAES
Kwong Tse
Jimmy Wing Lui Koon Lai Jong Tsui Hon

Cheung Chiu Yuk  Ho Yan Law Koon Chun Tam

Tim Ricky Chu  Candy Kau Sang Kong Chun Total
BRE #k8 BX% EAR  BER HEE KR B3F  4E
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr FHAx TEr FErn  TEr FEr TEr  FEn TAX

(note (il) ~ note (i) (note (i) (note (iv))
(WEG) (26 (i) (W)
Fees Exfe - - - - 7 140 140 140 477
Other emoluments Hiti &
- salaries and other -HEREBER
benefits 55 1,150 3,228 1,246 - - - - 5,679
- retirement benefits ~RIRRH
scheme contributions BELE 1 18 90 18 - - - - 127
Total directors’ emoluments EEHEBE 56 1,168 3,318 1,264 7 140 140 140 6,233
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9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Information regarding directors’
emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

XEEREERRAR

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim was also the Chief
Executive of the Company and his emoluments disclosed
above includes those for services rendered by him as the
Chief Executive. On 18 April 2017, Mr. Kwong Jimmy
Cheung Tim resigned as an executive director and ceased
to be the Chief Executive of the Company.

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu, Ricky was re-designated from a non-
executive director to an executive director and becomes
the Chief Executive of the Company with effect from
18 April 2017. His emoluments disclosed above for the
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 includes those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

The Group has been providing accommodation to Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu for use by her and her family members.
Rentals of the residential unit were included in “salaries
and other benefits” above. In May 2017, the tenancy
agreement expired. The Company determined to provide
residential units and carparking spaces of properties held
for sale to Ms. Lui Yuk Chu rent-free for use by her and
her family members. Properties held for sale amounting
to HK$75,288,000 were transferred to property, plant
and equipment during the year ended 31 March 2018.
With effect from 1 March 2019, the Company further
determined to provide these residential units and
carparking spaces to Mr. Koon Chun Ting, a son of Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu and a director of subsidiaries of the Company,
free of rental and charges for as long as he is employed by
the Group. Aggregate rateable value of these properties
as set by the Hong Kong Rating and Valuation Department
was HK$2,370,000 (2018: HK$2,366,000).

Mr. Lai Law Kau resigned as a non-executive director on
18 April 2017.

20194 R

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

9. EX HETHARIRE

E 2 &

(a) EBESEME 2 EHE)

&t

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BEAEENBARBZEHRE
THRERERENEEBEZHNE
BREBEEAERITHRABHRANIE
MR- R2017F4 5188 -
BEALEFRTRTEERT
BAARARIZEFBITHRER -

B2017F48188 # 4 % #
XBEERIIEDTESTHATA
WITESERNARRBZEE
THRER -BALBBEZBHE
B % B £20194F K 201843
A3BLEEEERERITHE
HAETRMEZ RAE -

AEBRBEMLESE E®RZ L -
EABERBZREKEBFERH-
ZEEEU2MELEBREE £
MmzlEFHeREMBEN] AR
201758 BEEMELAIE - K
ARAARATETAHERERIELED
¥CZEEEMNREFEENELRSE
FTHRLAETREREKEFER-
#H E®201843A31H It F &
¥ {E H & ¥ % LA75,288,0007%8
TEREDNE BEREHE-
B2019F3A1H A XA
AlE— L REMEBEEBE T E
EERLEITNRTHIAERRQA
MBARES REZEEE
BUREEMN TIEFRIE
RAEEBHHBEHEHERE
B-REBSEZENVWEGLES
Fra ZSWEZERE=MA
& 42,370,000 Jt(2018% :
2,366,000 JT) °

W8 7B BR & 4 201744 A18H
BEERITES -
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Information regarding directors’
emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services as directors of the Company and
the Company’s subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

Information regarding employees’
emoluments
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during

the year included three (2018: three) directors. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2018: two) highest

9. EX HETHARRE

E 2 &

(a)

(b)

FHEEHM=2ER®

FRBEBRZHRTEEHES T2
SRREEBARARAEERE
BEBZRSE -

PHRBRZFEATESFTHE =
EREEER/RARARANRT
MEBARESZRE -

bt BEOR 2 %8 3L 3F $ 1T E = B
EETERBEER/RARAES
Z MR e

FHREEME &N

FR AEERLERSHFALE
B=%2018F: =Z=R)EF-H
BB (2018F MB)LFES

paid individuals, not being directors, are as follows: ZREHALTZE SN T
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$000
F#T FAEITL
Salaries and other benefits He MHEMER 4,406 3,443

Retirement benefits scheme RIKAE R 2 &

contributions 36 38
4,442 3,481

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Information regarding employees’
emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments of these employees fall within the
following bands:

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

9. EX HETHARIRE

E 2 &

b)) EBEEEME 2EHE)

o

%5

R ZBEN T NI EE

\

Number of individuals

BEAH
2019 2018
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T & 1,500,000 % 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 & 7T % 2,500,000 & 7T 2 1
2 2

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors and the other two (2018: two)
highest paid individuals, as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss in
office. In addition, during both years, no director waived
any emoluments.

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K

R EFE - A& ERAE S
& TEFKHMMEB(2018%F :
ME) EREFEZ AT EAEMN
AR AR & B & 2 2ZE sk
ERBREBBE 2FE- LI R
WMEFE 2B ESHETMHH
@o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

10.TAXATION 10. %% 18
(a) 7 B B H

(a) Current tax

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHETT FET
The charge (credit) comprises: X GEFA) B
Hong Kong Profits Tax BAEMEH
Charge for the year REERX 39,191 21,720
(Over)underprovision for prior BEFE(GBRREES)
years BHETE (20) 926
39,171 22,646

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed the Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the "Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of assessable profits of qualifying group
entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits
of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate
of 16.5%.

Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at a flat rate of
16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

MN2018FE3A21B FHE L EE
BB T7TEBBUERT) (B75%)
BHER) [ZENER])MHE
SIAFIBHEMEH - ZIEHER
MN2018E3 A28 K% 2 4 %
THREBRAEFHRTE -REFSG
RMmASH AEREBREBE
2,000,000 7T HY & 3% B A 4 3%
8.25% 2 T R MM T I - I 5t 48
i@ 75 2,000,000 7T B FE BB B OH
F 5 12 16.5% < Bt 2 80 4 B 18 -
REBEBTHEFNESHMEHE
B E MR E MR A A E R
16.5% < T & & 4 7 1A -

EBENGHIREHE201843
AR IEFE Z s ERB A
F2165%5 & -
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e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &
10. %% 18 ()
(a) 7 Bp B 18 (@)

AEERARGEERREf
2EKRSE R ZBRBANE N Z Y

10.TAXATION (continued)

(a) Current tax (Continued)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit

XEEREERRAR

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: BT
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Profit before taxation B %4 A1 A 354,985 319,809
Tax charge of Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEHNE165%
at 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) (20184 : 16. 5%)2%}1’@%32 58,573 52,768
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A EHHHA S 2 HBEZE
for tax purposes 4,885 2,700
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERTVWAZRETYE
tax purposes (26,857) (29,701)
Tax effect of results attributable to BERNBEEDHERELZ
interests in associates By E (2,078) (6,764)
Tax effect of results attributable to EERAIERDHEREL
interest in a joint venture HIB¥ & 1 -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KERHIEEIE 2 HEFZ 2 4,889 2,758
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses PFRABERERBTIEBE
previously not recognised B E (57) (41)
(Over)underprovision for prior years BEFE(BEBRBEETR (20) 926
Others Hh (165) =
Taxation for the year REERE 39,171 22,646

20194 R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

10. TAXATION (Continued)

(b) Deferred taxation

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
(assets) recognised and movements thereon during the

current and prior years:

10. %% I8 (%)
(b) IE 7E ¥ 18

RAFERBEFEZEER
TEELEHBRBEEIREE
BT

Accelerated

tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
MEREITE BHEER W
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
FAET FAET FAET
At 1 April 2017 R2017%F481H 192 (192) -
Charge (credit) to profit or loss #1825 1 (31 A) 639 (639) =
At 31 March 2018 R2018%F 3 A31H 831 (831) -
Charge (credit) to profit or loss #1182 1 k& (51 A) 535 (535) =
At 31 March 2019 R2019%F 3 A31H 1,366 (1,366) =

At 31 March 2019, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$57,816,000 (2018: HK$28,120,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset had
been recognised in respect of HK$8,279,000 (2018:
HK$5,036,000) of such losses as at 31 March 2019.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$49,537,000 (2018:
HK$23,084,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profits streams. The tax losses can be carried forward

indefinitely.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

201938318 K"N&EE A &
E) F %18 & 18 557,816,000 JT
(20184 : 28,120,000 7t) 7] B
R S R R s Bl o B AP R 2019
F3A31H i HEEHES,279,000
# 7T (2018 4 : 5,036,000 7T) &
MRAELEHIEEE - AR K&
TE &R K & AR A BN 4R RE
2 # T 49,537,000 T (2018 4F :
23,084,000 L) c HIBEE &
BELEMEEE HEBEBITER
HA 45 8 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

11.DIVIDEND 1.8 B
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT TFET
Dividend recognised as distribution REREERRE 2R E
during the year
Final dividend paid of HK$0.05 B £201853H31H Ik
per share for financial year ended MBREFEZENRERE
31 March 2018 (2018: HK$0.05 ABRR0.05% T
per share for financial year ended (20184 : H = 20175
31 March 2017) SANRBHIEMEEFE
78 1%0.05% 7T) 4,566 3,971
Dividend proposed BREER
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.05 B E2019F3A318 1t
per share for financial year ended FHEEZZEIRBERE
31 March 2019 (2018: HK$0.05 A8 0.05% T
per share for financial year ended (20184 : L = 20184
31 March 2018) BABIBILEMEFEE
78 1% 0.05% 7T) 4,566 4,566
The final dividend of HK$0.05 per share in respect of the B EE201963A3MB IEF E 2
year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$0.05 per share) has §%0.05% T 2 K Hi fx B (20184 :
been proposed by the directors of the Company and is BROGBET)EHAAAEESEZE
subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company in WEREERRBFRE LEHAE
the forthcoming annual general meeting. NAERR R 2 B o

KEBREEARAE  2019F#H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

12.BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER
SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

REREXAR#BFTERRN

ARTBRREL 2 SREAREE
BRTRENTERE

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHETT FE T
Earnings for the purpose of calculating #t 5t & & & & 4N & # 5% 2 7
basic and diluted earnings per share T & 2 & F| (XA AR E
(profit for the year attributable to FEAE A F & F)
owners of the Company) 315,959 297,163
2019 2018
Weighted average number of shares et E SR E A L #E & F|
for the purpose of calculating basic imE 2 EFHIRG,EE
and diluted earnings per share 89,820,677 79,420,403

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the conversion of the associates’ outstanding
convertible notes and share options since their exercise
would result in increase in earnings per share.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

BREBRMNZFELILERRL
BBERARARMALBZABRRER
ERABHEEETESEMNERA
Al o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

13.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 ¥ BERXHE

XEEREERRAR

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
properties equipment vehicles Total
B -#E
BOME S ET ] RE nE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FE T FHET
COoST N
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4718 3,319 7,584 3,933 14,836
Additions NE 4,373 1,664 - 6,037
Transfer from properties held HREERBELENE
for sale 73,242 2,046 - 75,288
At 31 March 2018 R2018463 A31H 80,934 11,294 3,933 96,161
Additions NE - 232 - 232
Acquisition of a subsidiary Yo g — R B A A
(note 42) (Hfitaz2) - 28 639 667
Disposals He& - (284) (715) (999)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHHBAR
(note 42) (B it42) - (501) - (501)
At 31 March 2019 R201963 A31H 80,934 10,769 3,857 95,560
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Z:ti7 &
At 1 April 2017 R2017%54A18 1,528 1,071 1,201 3,800
Provided for the year KEEEE 1,310 1,974 835 4,119
At 31 March 2018 R2018463 A31H 2,838 3,045 2,036 7,919
Provided for the year AEEEE 1,747 2,208 720 4,675
Eliminated on disposals & 8 - (160) (310) (470)
Eliminated on disposal of a HE—HHBARREK
subsidiary (note 42) WS iFa2) - (334) = (334)
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3 A31H 4,585 4,759 2,446 11,790
CARRYING VALUES EmE
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3 A31H 76,349 6,010 1,411 83,770
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3 A31H 78,096 8,249 1,897 88,242

20194 R
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

13.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis according to the following
useful lives:

Leasehold properties Over the duration of the leases
or fifty years, whichever is
the shorter

Leasehold improvements, b5 years

furniture, fixtures and
equipment
Motor vehicles 3 to b5 years

The leasehold properties are situated in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group transferred
residential units and carparking spaces from properties held
for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$75,288,000
to property, plant and equipment upon change in use of
these properties as directors’ quarters and other benefits
(see note 9(a)(iii)).

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13.ME BEERKXRE®

T EEYME BELZREBE HUE
BEBBUAT ZAIERFHAGTER
5

ORI BREHZ FHK
E+& UK
mEE

#21E - RM - b4

HEREE
qE 3ELE

BOMETDLREE -

REZE2018F3A831HIEFE  RY
XNERAERESTAAKEMER
K - ASEBHRBELREDEZEE
B & EAM A H AR E(E75,288,000%
TEBEEYE HERZE(RWE
9(a)(iii)) °

14.% B Y #%

HK$'000
FAEIT

FAIR VALUE ~NEE
At 1 April 2017 M2017F4A1H 1,628,300
Additions NE 3,425
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss NEBEZERZ N FEE N 159,475
At 31 March 2018 R2018%F 3 A31H 1,791,200
Additions nNE 4,743
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss  RIEBZH R 2 A FE L M 126,430
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 42) HE - B AR (HiE42) (463,573)
At 31 March 2019 R 20193 A31H 1,458,800

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

All of the Group’s leasehold interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

All of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March 2019
and 2018 are situated in Hong Kong. The fair values of the
Group's investment properties at 31 March 2019 and 2018
were arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out as at
these dates by Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited, an
independent firm of qualified professional property valuers
not connected with the Group.

The unrealised gain arising on changes in fair value of
investment properties as at 31 March 2019 of HK$114,542,000
(2018: HK$159,475,000) was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of the investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs used),
as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
is observable.

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZZ2019%¥3A31H 1L FE

14.3%2 E Y ¥ (&)

EASEREEEANETRRE
eI HBEORE AR FERA
AAERINEREMEIR-

R20194F K& 2018F3 A31H * Fi AR
EEIREMENMNREE - A&
R2019%F &2018F3A31H 2 #%
B ERNFET R EAKE BB
EHEZBIYUAERBEDEMGRE
MiTe hEBRYEBR(EB) AR
ANARNZEHPETHBEZEEE

=

iE ©

M2019F3A31H 2 & & ¥ #
ZAFEEHEENKEBRK
% 114,542,000% JL(2018%F :
159,475,000/8 T ) B R & =20194 3
B3BLEFEMBRTER-

FTRIFMABERENELAT
Bz ARERR FERB2MEE
ERBA) URBREBHAZTBRE
REEHSNATESREIEEIR)
ZAFEIE-

Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
rEARAZRENE ATERIA3NA AYEER HEFERIZHEA EATTREHA HBE
2019 2018
HK$000 HK$000
TET FEL
Commercial units 1,297,900 1,202,400  Level 3 Income approach Term yield, taking into account of yield generated by ~ The higher the term yield and

- term yield

market average selling price and the market
average rental from comparable properties and

reversionary yield, the lower
the fair value

adjustment to reflect the conditions of the
building, which is ranged from 2.0% to 3.0%
(2018: from 1.8% t0 3.1%)

AREM £34 WAE - &

THRE ZEULBRNELTETHERR  RHRERESKERS
THRTHREEE RERRBREENER RY¥ERE

ZAE N TH20%E30% (20185 : $1.8%
23.1%)

20194 R
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. 8 E Y %)

Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March  hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
rEABEZRENE ATERIA3A DATEER HEFERIEAAN EXFTEEEA HRE
2019 2018
HK$000 HK$000
TET TET
Commercial units - reversionary yield Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield
(Continued) generated by market average selling price and the
market average rental from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the risk associated with
the future rental, which is ranged from 2.25% to
3.5% (2018: from 2.3% to 3.5%)
AREM -ESha ERNE ZRTLENEZTETHEER
(%) THETHEEZUERRRARELARZ
AR N TH225%%35% (20185 : $2.3%
23.5%)

Monthly term rental for each unit is derived from the =~ The higher the monthly term
rental, the higher the fair value

- monthly term renta
average of the rental as stated in the existing
rental agreements, which is ranged from HK$23
to HK$417 per square foot (2018: from HK$23 to
HK$442 per square foot)

SREELSARHESIRERERNMI. BATHALASE ATEAR
THEEEL BTHRANFABETENT
BL(2018%F BT HRA2BETEMIET)

-EAEHES

- reversionary rental

-ERES

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

Market monthly rental rate, which is ranged from
HK$28 to HK$535 per square foot (2018: from
HK$25 to HK$510 per square foot)

m5EARE STARNFH28% T E535
BrL(2018F BT HRABETES0ET)

The higher the reversionary rental,
the higher the fair value

f5HEeRR ATEAS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. &Y %)

Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March  hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
rEABEZRENE ATERIA3MA ATEER HEFERIEBAA EXFTEEEA HRE
2019 2018
HK$000 HK$000
TET TET
Industrial units 160,900 141,800  Level3 Direct comparison Price per square foot, using market direct The higher the price per square
method - based on comparables and taking into account of location, foot and price per car park, the
market observable age and other individual factors, which is ranged higher the fair value
transactions of similar  from HK$8,300 to HK$8,460 per square foot (2018:
properties and from HK$6,400 to HK$6,700 per square foot), and
adjusted to reflect car park of HK$2,400,000 each (2018:
the locations and HK$2,200,000 each)
conditions of the
subject properties
TXEf EXE ERNBE-ERAE STHREE RATSERTHENZRNE. ETH/REEREUEEAR

REE
NEZTHTEE BRUOREMEANER &5 RN T8300 AFERR
REREALENRE BT ES460HT(2018F : FF 5 RN T6,400
AENEZNER BLE6,70087) WM & E L F 12,400,000

P 7% (20185 : 582,200,000/ 1T)
Industrial units N/A 447,000  Level 3 Income approach Term yield, taking into account of yield generated by  The higher the term yield and
- term yield market average selling price and the market reversionary yield, the lower
average rental from comparable properties and the fair value

adjustment to reflect the conditions of the
building, which was 3.0% at 31 March 2018

TXEf TER ERE WA - & B ERMGE ZRAHBNEZTSTHERR CTHUSREGUER
TETHESELZUBRRBBENER RTER
A% R2018F3A31E R3.0%

ot

=R
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation techniques

and key inputs
HEREREEGA

14. 3R B W) % (&)

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTARERA

Sensitivity
HEE

Investment properties Fair value
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy
rEABEZRENE ATERIA3A DAYEER
2019 2018
HK$000 HK$000
TET TET
Industrial units
(Continued)
TRERN
(%)
1,458,800 1,791,200
I

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

- reversionary yield

-EERE

- monthly term renta

|

gAT
m
il
55
=2
k>

- reversionary rental

-ERES

Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling price and
the market average rental from comparable
properties and adjustment to reflect the risk
associated with the future rental, which was
3.25% at 31 March 2018

EHEUE LRTHBNEZTSTHER
RiSTHEEZUBRRBERRESER
ZHE R2018F3A31H A3.25%

Monthly term rental for each unit was derived from
the average of the rental as stated in the existing
rental agreements, which was ranged from HK$9.7
to HK$14.7 per square foot at 31 March 2018

BRENEARHELIRERAANMI 2
THREB/E  R2018FIANBEEHR
NERITETEUTET

Reversionary rental for each unit was compared with
direct market comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual factor, which was
HK$15 per square foot at 31 March 2018

BREELzESES HREETHILREE
HEREENERAMANAE:
R2018F3A3NBABTHRIBET

The higher the monthly term
rental rate, the higher the fair
value

ot
ot

BRTHRLER ATER

The higher the reversionary rental,
the higher the fair value

REBEREWEZRAFER WX
ZERERERABEERDAERK Z
ERTA-
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

15.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 15. 8 & 1 7] % &
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Cost of listed investments in B NA EWIREZKA
associates 402,886 402,886
Addition of equity interest upon the RAEBEBSUEGERR
Group's conversion of convertible AR EDETZ
note issued by Eminence Enterprise ] # % Z # B 12 1 ~ f% X
Limited (“Eminence”) w2 K EF17(b)
(see note 17(b)) 16,980 16,980
419,866 419,866

Share of post-acquisition profits and 43 {5 U B 14 % 7 &2 E b

other comprehensive income: 2k :
— At beginning of the year -RET 245,800 183,669
— Share of profits and other -DEEMNREMEE RS
comprehensive income 6,255 34,646
- Deemed partial disposal of -RAELHENHRAER
equity interests - (188,513)
— Gain on bargain purchase at date =g 8 /N
of deemed acquisition of FEINEZHEZ
additional interests in associates 1w U BE W &= - 215,998
- At end of the year -REKR 252,055 245,800
671,921 665,666
Fair value of listed investments in g A LMIEEZATAE
associates (note) (Kt at) 46,578 47,317
Note:The fair values of the listed shares are determined based on Bat- Em R Z A FEE T IRE G
quoted market bid prices available on the Stock Exchange. ZHMBBEREET -

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

15.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group had interests in
Eminence and the following principal subsidiaries of

15.86 & N B #E &= ()
MR2019 F k2018 F3A31H K&
BERrmlUtErRTISLEEZE

Eminence:

Name of associate

Place of incorporation/
establishment
and operation

B0 B 2 S

Proportion of nominal value of
issued share capital/registered
capital held by the Group

Principal activities

MY/ EEEBEERORE/
BeEAREH BYREEHE ot AR A [ B B 4 TEEH
2019 2018
Eminence? Bermuda 24.93% 24.93%  Investment holding
BB E BRE REZK
Capital Well (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong 24.93% 24.93%  Property investment
EMER)BERAA R NERE
Chancemore Limited British Virgin Islands 24.93% 24.93%  Property investment
(“BVI")/Hong Kong
EBRLES NERE
((RBEEXES]/
BB
City China International Limited Hong Kong 24.93% 24.93%  Loan financing
WA BERERAA BB EXEE
Clever Wise Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong 24.93% 24.93%  Property investment
BREZERER LA RERAHE/BA NERE
Daily Leader Limited BVI/Hong Kong 24.93% 24.93%  Property development
RERIHEES/FE MEER
Empire Sail Limited BVI/Hong Kong 24.93% - Property investment
FMARRAE EBRAHE/BE MERE
Excellent East Limited Hong Kong 24.93% 24.93%  Property investment
BRERRA B MERE
Fanju Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong 24.93% 24.93%  Investment in securities
RHEBREBERAF RERAHE/BA EHERE
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong 24.93% 24.93%  Investment in securities
KEERRRA B FHERE
Giant East Limited Hong Kong 24.93% 24.93%  Property investment
ERAERRA B MERE
Goldchamp International Limited Hong Kong 24.93% 24.93%  Property investment
HEBRAER QA B NMERE
Golden Top Properties Limited Hong Kong 24.93% 24.93%  Property investment
BEEXBERAR B NERE

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

2019 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Name of associate

Place of incorporation/
establishment
and operation

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZZ2019%¥3A31H 1L FE

15. 5 & N Al E & @)

Proportion of nominal value of
issued share capital/registered

capital held by the Group

Principal activities

AR/ EEERBECRARES

BERNTER BRIREEHE ot AR A [ B B 41 TEXEK
2019 2018
Grow Well Profits Limited BVI/Singapore 24.93% 24.93%  Property investment
and investment in
securities

RERTES/MME NERBREFRE
Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong 24.93% 24.93%  Property investment
EBEXBERAA B NERE
Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 24.93% 24.93%  Property development
HRCERRAA B NEER
Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 24.93% 24.93%  Property investment
BHEEERAF B NERE
Total Expect Limited (“Total Expect”) BVI/Hong Kong - 24.93%  Property development

(note 42)

RERUHBE/BA (Htit42) NEER
Treasure Arts International Group Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong 24.93% 24.93%  Property development
BEEBAREEARAA EBRAHE/BE MEER
Wealth Plan Development Limited Hong Kong 24.93% 24.93%  Property development
REZRERLA B NEER
Wellmake Investments Limited Hong Kong 24.93% - Property investment

(“Wellmake Investments”) (note 42)

BEREAARAR(RERE]D B (Bt it42) NERE
Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) Co., Ltd. People's Republic of China 24.93% 24.93%  Property investment

("Enterprises Huzhou")*

KEBXORAMBRRATHEMNEERD

HE

’* Eminence’s shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

* Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in the People's Republic of China, to be operated

for 50 years up to 14 December 2054.

The above table lists the associates of the Company, which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a substantial
portion of the assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors of the

Company result in particulars of excessive length.

KEBREEARAE  2019F#H

MERE

OB EEZERERB R LT -

L MMEERS -HER B BEMKZZIN
ERELE REHR/0F - BEE

2054412 8148 -

A EFIRFSIR 2 ANRBBEERA]
BARBESZER ZEXEF
NZEBEIBRNAEHEEZETR
MY - MARREFTZEREARR &

HEMBERR ZFE @< 3F

BFBERITE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

15.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associates is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in
the consolidated financial statements of Eminence and its
subsidiaries (the “Eminence Group") prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs. The associates are accounted for using
the equity method in the Group’s consolidated financial

15.

e NTERE

BERASEZBE AR BLMBE
B an ™ o LA Bt B 5 B B TS
Y TRRBREBFEMBREENHEE
ZRmUtEREHMBRARTS LD
XEEDEAUBBRR -BERAT
RASBEz2HEAV BRI AR X
Rk e

statements.
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current assets MEEE 2,616,093 2,067,689
Non-current assets FMBEE 1,418,452 1,944,228
Current liabilities mEaRE (547,109) (589,314)
Non-current liabilities FRBaE (753,266) (707,315)
Net assets attributable to owners BLUCERREDIEEEFH
of Eminence 2,734,170 2,715,288
Revenue I %5 62,228 49,605
Profit for the year E % F 50,510 53,539
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Huz2mE(FE)KRA:
Exchange difference arising on BESHNEERTBHRE
translation of financial statements JIERZEER
of foreign operations (26,179) 37,095
Change in fair value of debt BAFEGAEMZE
instruments at FVTOCI WamvBEBIAEY
NEEEH 577 =
Impairment loss on debt instruments FABRRZEATE
at FVTOCI included in profit or loss AEMEEWZZ
BREITAZRAEEBR 181 =
Change in fair value of available-for- AHHERE LR TFE
sale investments g - 45,029
Reclassification adjustment upon AHEERERRERZ
impairment of available-for-sale EFOBRAE
investments - 3,406
Release upon disposal of available- HEANTHEERERBER
for-sale investments - (45)
Other comprehensive (expense) income AEEHEAM2EFE ) KRA
for the year (25,421) 85,485

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

15.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 15. 8 & X E &

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET Fi&T
Total comprehensive income for the AEE2EEA
year 25,089 139,024
Group's share of profit of associates AEBE DB E R % T 12,593 13,508
Group's share of other comprehensive AEESEBERAEM
(expense) income of associates 2EFEI)ERA (6,338) 21,138
6,255 34,646
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information LA b BE B 75 & B R RS BT W

to the carrying amount of the interests in associates

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

REER 2B L N A HEm R (E R

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Net assets attributable to owners of SILTXEBERE D5
the Eminence Group BEEFH 2,734,170 2,715,288
Proportion of the Group's equity AEBRBLULEEE
interest in the Eminence Group &% A #E 2= 2 b 24.93% 24.93%
681,629 676,921
Less: Net assets of the Eminence B AEBRANES WL
Group not shared by the CEEEEEFS
Group (9,708) (11,255)
671,921 665,666

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

— BE A BN\ T RE 3
16.INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 16.— B &€ AR
2019
HK$'000
FET
Cost of investment in an unlisted joint venture R —RIELrmAa& A7 ZHE KK 1,744
Share of post-acquisition loss SIEUEE 1B B 18 (4)
1,740
Details of the Group's joint venture at the end of the reporting RBEBAR AEB2EE QAlF
period are as follows: BIE

Place of Proportion of Proportion of
Name of joint venture incorporation ownership interest voting power held  Principal activity
FELEER oA L B BERERLA FRERLH TEEK

2019 2018 2019 2018

Bonita Springs Global Limited BVI 50% - 50% - Investment holding

BERIHES REEZR
No financial information of the joint venture is disclosed in HREELEHASEYESE R
the consolidated financial statements as the joint venture is Z2 HWITERSAETBEREBEES
not material to the Group. EENTBER -

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

17.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 17.ZAFEFAEBERZSE
mEE

2019 2018
HK$000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Financial assets at FVTPL: BRATFEFABRZ
EHEE -
- Listed equity securities in Hong -REB LT ZRAFE
Kong (note (a)) (Bt 7t (a) 105,666 100,094
- Convertible notes (note (b)) - —J MR ER (W (b)) 28,033 -
— Life insurance policy (note (c)) SREHE () 11,051 =
- Perpetual bonds (note (d)) - 7'J< R BEH (W itd)) 39,916 =
184,666 100,094
Analysed as: A=
— Current portion - BB D 105,666 100,094
- Non-current portion -EREE 79,000 =
184,666 100,094
Notes: B aF -
(a) The fair values of the listed equity securities were determined (@) ETRABHFZAFEDIRERI
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock FTAizmBHEET -
Exchange.
(b) ()  On27 March 2014, the Group subscribed for convertible (b) () M2014F3AH27H XE B R
note issued by Eminence (the “2014 CN"). The principal EhRmLbERTZAIREKEE
amount was HK$100,000,000 which carried interest at B2014F AR EE] - A
2% per annum and payable semi-annually in arrears. The K & € ¥ /4100,000,0007% JT
maturity date of the 2014 CN was on 27 March 2019 and FRE2%2FERGFFHR
would be redeemed at 100% of the principal amount. The FRNEI D) 2014¢ AR ER
2014 CN could be converted at any time from the date of Z % H B A2019F3H27H &
issue to the maturity date. Since the subscription, certain IR 100% 2 AN & & 58 - 2014
of the 2014 CN with principal amount of HK$80,000,000 FABMBREBEATAETRALES
were converted into 128,869,707 ordinary shares of FBALEARNEBEAER B

~

Eminence. R 1% KN& <% A80,000,000
%ﬁZa?mmiT%% = 1%
B} # 4128,869,707 & & 1L &
EEBERIRG -

r

Upon completion of a series of rights issue and share EmItEER —ERHERK
consolidation by Eminence, the last adjusted conversion BhedtE RELEAEZR
price was HK$22.72 per conversion share with effect BRERERILBKRMKG2272F T
from 9 October 2015. 72015410 A9 £ -

On 27 March 2019, the principal amount of the 2014 MR2019F3A27H A& & B A
CN amounting to HK$20,000,000 was redeemed in full 20,000,000 JT <2 20144 7] #
together with all accrued interest. BREBERMATRANEE BHK

& O] -

KEEREEBARLT 20195
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

17.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Notes. (Continued)

(b)

(i)

(if)

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the fair value of the 2014 CN
was determined based on the valuation provided by
Greater China Appraisal Limited, an independent firm
of professional qualified valuers not connected with the
Group.

On 7 October 2015, the Group subscribed for convertible
note (the “2016 CN") issued by a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, with principal amount of HK$60,480,000
which carried interest at 8% per annum payable quarterly
in arrears with maturity on 7 October 2018 at redemption
amount of 100% of the principal amount. The 2016 CN
could be converted at any time from the date of issue to
the maturity date with conversion price of HK$0.14 per
share. In addition, both the Group and the issuer had the
option to early redeem the 2016 CN at any time from the
date of issue to the maturity date at 100% of the principal
amount outstanding under the 2016 CN together with all
accrued interest.

On 1 August 2017, the issuer and the Company entered
into a deed of amendment to revise the terms of the
2016 CN. According to the deed of amendment, both
the issuer and the Company agreed to the early partial
redemption of the 2016 CN in the principal amount of
HK$35,000,000, resulting in a gain on redemption of
convertible note of HK$1,135,000 recognised in profit
or loss during the year ended 31 March 2018. Both
parties further agreed to adjust the conversion price from
HK$0.14 per conversion share to HK$0.06 per conversion
share. The transaction was completed on 11 August 2017.
The gain on modification of terms of convertible note
amounting to HK$425,000 was recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31 March 2018.

On 7 October 2018, the principal amount of the 2016
CN amounting to HK$25,480,000 was redeemed in full
together with all accrued interest.

As at 31 March 2018, the fair value of the 2016 CN
was determined based on the valuation provided by
Greater China Appraisal Limited, an independent firm
of professional qualified valuers not connected with the
Group.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

1722 FEFAEBERZZ S
mEE®

W et (&)

(b)

(i)

(i)

MN2018F3 A31H » 20145 /] #
BEEZDFETIREEZEF
BEERAR —HMELXE®BR
EHEZBVAERIBEME
MiTIREZHEERE -

R2016FE10878 A= B RE
—ERB R EH oz AR T
2 AR A% R (2016 4F A # A%
Z]) - A% % ¥ 560,480,000
BAMEF R B8%ZFER
BEFERI M KR2018F10A
7EHE HEEEI100% 2 N & &
Bo206F AR EHEA A %
THREIHMA L2 FAER
WER0N4AB T ZHIBEL I -
B AEBRETAHAAB
FTHRBREHEHA 2 ERE
MAEEEFEEIRTEED20164F 7]
B RN HZ210% K & &
BEFTABREANE -

R2017F8A1H » BT A KK
ANRIEETE ] 24 A ¥ 22016
FOBRBRERZER BIEE
R BITARARRYE
ERAMBRESNHASESEA
35,000,000/ 7T 2 20164 A] #
BEE ERERTBRRKREE
I 251,135,000 7T X & =2018
FIAMBLFEZEZER -
EHiE—FREAEHLBRER
ERHEBBRNOILABTEETR
HBBRMHOWBB T 25N
2017 8A 1B TRk kA
% Z 4 {5 3k Uk 25 425,000 7 T
RN E E2018F3A31H Lt FE
ZIEEER-

MR2018F 107 A& &£ B A
25,480,000 7T 2 20164 A] &
BREBERMATRANEE EBH
fE O -

R2018FE3 A31H ' 2016 4F /] #
BEEZRAFEIREEZF
BEAERAR —HWERNEBR
ERECBYEGEREEME
iTIRE ZHEET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

XEEREEGRAH

(iii)

(iv)

On 11 May 2017, the Group subscribed for convertible
note (the “2017 CN1") issued by Eminence, with principal
amount of HK$16,000,000 which carries interest at 3%
per annum and payable semi-annually in arrears with
maturity on 11 May 2022 at redemption amount of
100% of the principal amount. The 2017 CN1 can be
converted at any time from and excluding the date of
issue to and including the date falling on the fifth last
business day prior to the maturity date with conversion
price of HK$0.16 per share. The Group may redeem the
2017 CN1, at any time three months after the grant date,
at 100% of the principal amount outstanding together
with all interest accrued thereon up to and including the
date of redemption. Eminence may redeem the 2017
CN1 on any business day prior to the maturity date at
100% of the principal amount outstanding together with
all interest accrued thereon up to and including the date
of redemption.

The fair value of the 2017 CN1 is determined based on
the valuation provided by Greater China Appraisal Limited,
an independent firm of professional qualified valuers not
connected with the Group.

As at 31 March 2019, the 2017 CN1 with principal amount
of HK$16,000,000 (2018: HK$16,000,000) remains
outstanding.

On 26 September 2017, the Group subscribed for
convertible note (the “2017 CN2") issued by Eminence,
with principal amount of HK$28,200,000 which carries
interest at 3% per annum and payable semi-annually in
arrears with maturity on 26 September 2020 at redemption
amount of 100% of the principal amount. The 2017 CN2
can be converted at any time from and excluding the date
of issue to and including the date falling on the fifth last
business day prior to the maturity date with conversion
price of HK$0.06 per share. The Group may redeem the
2017 CN2, at any time three months after the grant date,
at 100% of the principal amount outstanding together
with all interest accrued thereon up to and including the
date of redemption. Eminence may redeem the 2017
CN2 on any business day prior to the maturity date at
100% of the principal amount outstanding together with
all interest accrued thereon up to and including the date
of redemption.

20194 R

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZZ2019%¥3A31H 1L FE
1722 FEHFAREZE
BE E

W et (&)

(b)

(iii)

(iv)

MR2017FE58118 & & B R
BoaLUCEBRTZ2IRRER
([EE—D2017TFEHRIREE])
A 4 % # 416,000,000 7T R
FEFHRIMANFRNE B3%
2 A B K R20229F5 8118 5
HHEBEEI100% 2RSS 5 F
— 2017 F R EHET AT
AERTAEEREINPANE
FELEA ERE 2 TR
NEBRR0I6B T Z HIRE L -
AEBABEETABE=ZM@MAZ
EREMEREEDSE— %2017
FOBmREE MBS Z100% K
CEBERMAMRABEEEZR
PRERNA#SH -mLcETR
AR ITMEERREE
O] 25 — {72017 F 7] 32 IR = & &
#%Z2100% AR & & 8 & T A &t
RAEBEEZELRBEERAS-

FE—2017F A BB ER 2 A
FEDRBZEFEERAT
—HEAEBRLEHEEZLEY
EEREEMEMTRMAZ M
BEEE -

MW2019%3A318 £ — #
017F AR EEHNBAE S
%8 /16,000,000 JT(20184F :
16,000,000 JT) °

MN2017FE9H268 K & B R
Be LR T2BERER
([E D201 7FEJ BRI ERE])
N & 4 %8 /528,200,000 TT A
REEFHARAINFENE HE3I%
2 M B K& MR2020F9 82608 3
HEEERI100% 2 AE S HE - 5
— 2017 F A BRKREEAT AL
AERTAEZERBENPANE
FEEE B (EERE 2 T e
AER0.06B Tz HiREH -
AEBAUERTABR=ZM@AZ
ERERREREEDS — %2017
Fal B IR ZEH & 8 2100% K
CEBERMABMRABEER
PEEDA#SH -mLEEATR
N AfsEMEERREE
B % - M2017FE IR E &M
B}Z100% A& & B8R A G
RAEEELBEERDAS-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

17.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL Continweay 17.B 2 FEHF AERZZE
& =)

Notes: (Continued) Bt (&)

(b) (iv) (Continued) (b)

On 18 October 2017, the conversion rights attached to the
2017 CN2 with principal amount of HK$16,920,000 were
partially exercised and a total of 282,000,000 conversion
shares were issued by Eminence to the Group upon
conversion.

The fair value of the 2017 CN2 is determined based on
the valuation provided by Greater China Appraisal Limited,
an independent firm of professional qualified valuers not
connected with the Group.

As at 31 March 2019, the 2017 CN2 with principal amount
of HK$11,280,000 (2018: HK$11,280,000) remains
outstanding.

The convertible notes as at 31 March 2019 are recognised

(iv)

(#)

M2017F10A188 % — #%
201 7F Al | R R B M BE 2 A
REEDI> TELRAESEAE
16,920,000/ jT I I 5 # B &
1 1 3 & 3 %% 17282,000,000 f%
HEalmh FALEHE-

B M7 FABEREREZA
FEDBEEZEFEBRAF -
—WHEAEESEBEZE Y
AERBEGMEMITREZMG
BEET-

MW20195%3A318: % — #
2007 HRBREBEHGB LIS
%8 /11,280,000 JT(20184F :
11,280,000 JT) °

MR2019F3 A31H B 7] # I = 4% #&

as follows: BT

HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2018 (restated) (note 2) R2018F 4 A1 B (K EF)) (K iF2) 71,694
Redemption f& ol (45,480)
Interest received 2T 2 (2,739)

Gain on changes in fair value recognised in REZFRNERZATFTEZEFH KT
profit or loss 4,558
At 31 March 2019 MR201943 A31H 28,033

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report
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e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

17.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

1722 FEFAEBERZZ S
mEE®

W et (&)

(b)  (Continued) (b)
The convertible notes as at 31 March 2018 were recognised M20185F3 A31 H & 7] 4 & R 4% i
as follows: R
Receivable Derivatives
component component Total
PE W AR 13 PT £ B 17 wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHE T FET
At 1 April 2017 R2017%F 4818 67,418 6,167 73,585
Additions NE 29,437 14,763 44,200
Accretion of interest MEZBAREE 11,539 - 11,539
Redemption & O (31,166) (2,699) (33,865)
Gain on modification of terms B M & 3k 2 Ug 2% - 425 425
Conversion Bz 0! (12,066) (4,914) (16,980)
Interest received 2K 8 (3,845) - (3,845)
Loss on changes in fair value REZANERZ AFE
recognised in profit or loss HE)EE - (2,992) (2,992)
At 31 March 2018 R2018F 3 A31H 61,317 10,750 72,067
Analysed as: DR
— Current portion - B E D 42,104 958 43,062
— Non-current portion - 3k B =B 10 19,213 9,792 29,005
61,317 10,750 72,067

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

17.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

1722 FEFAEBERZZ S

mEE®

Notes: (Continued) o iE
(b) (Continued) (b)

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the
convertible notes are as follows:

VALUATION OF CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The convertible notes are measured at fair value using the
Black-Scholes model with Trinomial Tree method, at initial
recognition and at the end of each subsequent reporting period.
The inputs into the model as at date of subscription and the
end of the reporting periods are as follows:

(&)
(%)

FAEGETARER P ARRBR
m :

TREEBEZGE

EBREERINEERRRNERE
BREMRTIEMRR - A B E
AR=ZXBEUARAFEHSE - RR
BEYEREHABEXNEBzEH A
]ENOT

2014 CN 204FE R ERE
Date of
subscription
At 31 March 27 March
2018 2014
REBAH
R20184 2014 F
3A31H 3A27H
Stock price iz (B HK$0.064 7% 7T HK$0.57 7 7T
Conversion price HiE HK$22.72 7% 7T HK$0.6878 7T
Volatility & IR 53.2% 43.14%
Dividend yield &% F) & 0% 0%
Time to maturity 2| B B RS 1 year & 5 years F
Risk-free rate = 3 B AR 3R X 1.1764% 1.56190%
2016 CN 2016 F AT R E B
Date of
modification Date of
of terms subscription
At 31 March 11 August 7 October
2018 2017 2015
5ok g B A REBAH
20184 20174 20164
3H31H 8H11H 10A7H
Stock price f&% & HK$0.045 7 7T HK$0.061 7 7T HK$0.187 7T
Conversion price HiE HK$0.06 7% 7T HK$0.06 % 7T HK$0.147 7T
Volatility g 70.93% 37.97% 50.79%
Dividend yield & F & 0% 0% 0%
Time to maturity BI| HA B 7S 0.5 year & 1.2 years & 3 years
Risk-free rate i 3 P BL IR K 1.0474% 0.6064 % 1.0430%

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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17.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

VALUATION OF CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

mEE®

W et (&)

1722 FEFAEBERZZ S

TRERRBEZGEEGE)

2017 CN1 E—H2017FABRKREE
Date of
subscription
At 31 March At 31 March 11 May
2019 2018 2017
REAH
#2019 F #2018 4F 2017 &
3A31H 3A31H 5H11A
Stock price & & HK$0.063 7% 7T HK$0.064 /& 7T HK$0.1397% 7T
Conversion price Hi(E HK$0.16 78 T HK$0.16 7% 7T HK$0.16 78 7T
Volatility iR 76.66% 73.86% 75.15%
Dividend yield A& F & 0% 0% 0%
Time to maturity BI| HA B 7S 3.1 years 4.1 years 5 years
Risk-free rate 4 | P BL IR K 1.3563% 1.7022% 1.1572%
2017 CN2 EZH2017FARKRERE
Date of
subscription
At 31 March At 31 March 26 September
2019 2018 2017
RERH
#2019 F ® 20184 2017 4F
3A31H 3A31H 9A26H
Stock price f& & HK$0.06378 7t  HK$0.0647% 7t  HK$0.06478 T
Conversion price HmE HK$0.06 & 7T HK$0.06 7% 7T HK$0.06 78 7T
Volatility bl 56.74% 64.62% 80.66%
Dividend yield A% F1 = 0% 0% 0%
Time to maturity 3| HA B RS 1.5 years 2.5 years & 3 years F
Risk-free rate M & g Bh IR X 1.4113% 1.4723% 1.0164%
2019F 3R

XEEREERRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

17.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Notes. (Continued)

(c)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company entered
into life insurance policy with an insurance company to insure
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, a director of the Company. Under the
policy, the Company is the beneficiary and policy holder and the
total insured sum is United States dollars ("US$")10,800,000
(equivalent to HK$83,808,000). The Company is required
to pay an upfront deposit of US$1,283,000 (equivalent to
HK$9,956,000) including a premium charge at inception of
the policy amounting to US$76,980 (equivalent to HK$597,000).
The Company can terminate the policy at any time and receive
cash back based on the cash value of the policy at the date of
withdrawal, which is determined by the upfront payment of
US$1,283,000 plus accumulated interest earned and minus the
accumulated insurance charge and policy expense charge. In
addition, if withdrawal is made between the first to eighteenth
policy year, there is a specified amount of surrender charge.

Life insurance policy is classified as financial assets at FVTPL
as these financial assets have contractual right to cash flows
that do not represent contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.
The remeasurement fair value gain of HK$226,000 relating
to fair value of these financial assets as at 31 March 2018
was recognised against accumulated profits as at 1 April 2018
(note 2).

At 31 March 2019, life insurance policy amounting to
HK$11,051,000 (2018: HK$10,561,000 with HK$286,000
included in trade and other receivables) were pledged to a
bank to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

Life insurance policy is denominated in US$, a currency other
than the functional currency of the Company.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

1722 FEFAEBERZZ S
mEE®

W et (&)

(c)

REE2013F3A3MBHILFE AR
AE-—BRBE AR —EASRE
BURBRAARAESEEAIMZ -
BEZRE AR AEIZHZARR
BEAEAKRRIKIREA10,800,000%F
Jo(I3 7t ]) (#8 % 783,808,000/ 7T ) °
NN AE XA R $1,283,0003%
7t (8 % 729,956,000 T ) B #E R
MYREFAXNZRET6,980%
7t (#8 & 72 597,000/ 7T ) A A & 7]
REMBEKEZRERBERR
BZREZESEEAERERES It
Ty iR ¥ 78 5 71,283,000 3 T & BT B
M2z R2FFERNBRZARE LR
BEAMAIMET -t MARRE
F—FEFTNFER BEETE
SHEARRAX -

ABRENDEERATFEF ABER
CERMEE ARSSMEEZA
HEZZHEREIAIRRAERE A
TR A RAEBEELAEINEZE
B RE- FHEZSEREER
2018F3A31TA Z A FEHMEFH
g 7 A F{E UK 226,000 T B B
2018418 R & & & A #& R(H
F£2) o

MR2019E3A31B A E R B A
11,051,000% 7t (20184F : 10,561,000
BT E 286,000 TRIEEE H &
HiEWHEARN) DB FRTIE
ABEBRFAEER —RBTHEEZIR
ﬁc

ABREUADBEEBE LI Z
B ETIIE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) The fair values of the perpetual bonds as at 31 March 2019,
which amounted to HK$39,916,000, are determined based
on the quoted market closing prices available on an overseas
recognised stock exchange with fixed interest at a range from
5.50% to 6.25% per annum.

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &
17.2 2 FEHFTABERZZ S
mEE®
Bt (&)
(d) R2019F3A31H kKABHZRAF
8 439,916,000 7T * Jy 1% — B 38 4b

RABHERGHZAHRETENER
FEFEMEN FHLL0%E6.26%EF °

The perpetual bonds are recognised as follows: KABHERAT :
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 April 2018 201854 A1 H =
Additions NE 39,583
Interest received B W F B (1,132)
Gain on changes in fair value recognised in I8 28 R AFEZH KR
profit or loss 1,465
At 31 March 2019 M201943 A31H 39,916
d: A N NN
All perpetual bonds are denominated in US$, a currency other z #H ;’: Hf KA ﬁﬂzﬁ & 5 f’i 18
than the functional currency of the relevant group entity, at ’f:é‘ 270 BE I W LS O R X
JL & °

the end of the reporting period.

18.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

1BAREERE

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAEIT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, R&EB LM 2R AKE % -
at market value B A - 109,665

At 31 March 2018, available-for-sale investments were stated
at fair values. The fair values of the listed equity securities
were determined based on the quoted market bid prices
available on the Stock Exchange.

Upon initial application of HKFRS 9, available-for-sale

investments were reclassified to financial assets at FVTPL
which are detailed in note 2.

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K

MN20184E3A31H AT HE R E A
NEBENE - LTBRAZLSRZAF
BENREBIMAMGzMmEHESE

[}

IE ©

RNEERABTREY KRS ERNEIR
B AfEEREEFIBRERA
EPTEEJH\TE#Z%%E:%E BB
O IR FE2 -
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

19.DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI 9.2 2 ¥ EFFAEME2ME

WmzBEH LA

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAEIT
Debt securities listed in Hong Kongor REB KGN T2 ERKE
overseas with fixed interests ranging % ' B F FEF=E N FH3.75%
from 3.75% to 6.35% per annum %£6.35% ' | HiH /20204
and maturity dates ranging from 1H198 £2026%F12A815H -
19 January 2020 to 15 December BAFEE
2026, at fair value 46,376 -
Analysed as: DT A
Current portion B &B 1 11,762 =
Non-current portion EMEN B 1 34,614 =
46,376 -

As at 31 March 2019, debt instruments at FVTOCI are stated
at fair values which are determined based on the quoted
market closing prices available on the Stock Exchange or
overseas recognised stock exchanges.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI are listed bonds with the
credit loss allowance measured on 12m ECL basis as the
credit risk on these financial instruments has not increased
significantly since initial recognition. The Group assessed
the ECL for debt instruments at FVTOCI by reference to
credit rating of the bond investment published by rating
agencies or internal credit ratings, macroeconomic factors
affecting the respective industry for each issuer, corporate
historical default and loss rate and exposure of default of
each bond investment. An impairment loss of HK$1,505,000
was recognised in profit or loss for the ended 31 March 2019.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 41.

All debt instruments at FVTOCI| are denominated in US$, a
currency other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entity, at the end of the reporting period.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

R2019F3A31H  HAFEFAHE
thermkEzEBETERAFET
BRTBEBEBEIMKEINRATESR
SHZATREMEET -

BEAYEFAEMZARS BB
TEZNBAEHREEFBEEEL
EEEFERBE - LTES BB
NEERAREBMITAZEERR
WEBZE M AEBER2ZEFTRIK
BEGBEHFREZEETFRIAIBE
BEdfR TESBETAZTBTEZ
FELER=Z PERBRLEAOEXRR
BRAEURSEHFEEEDRRB -
FEEAFEFAHEMEZE KRS
ZJEBITACZEHEEBR -HZE
20193 H3MB EF E - B EEIAE
1,505,000 TR 1B M HER ©

BB ER G2 F B R M E4 -
RBREPR MERIFEFAH
femlacEHETAANEREH

BB T 8 M B LA S 0 B 2 T A
B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20.0THER DEBT INSTRUMENT AT

AMORTISED COST

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZZ2019%¥3A31H 1L FE
20. 2B RN ATE 2 HAtd
BB ITH

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Unlisted debt instrument in BEAFLEMEY
Hong Kong TE
Fixed-rate junior note (the TE I & 4% &
“Junior Note") classified as (TR ERE]) D E
non-current assets RBIERBEE 35,235 =
Less: Impairment allowance B R B B (3,523) -
31,712 -

In August 2017, Charming Flash Limited (“Charming Flash”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Golden
Glow Limited (the “lIssuer”), an independent third party
incorporated in the Cayman Islands, entered into a loan
agreement with principal amount of US$2,000,000 with an
interest rate of 19% per annum. The carrying amount of the
loans receivable was approximately HK$15,660,000 as at
31 March 2018.

In October 2018, Charming Flash entered into a subscription
agreement with the Issuer, pursuant to which Charming
Flash subscribed the Junior Note issued by the Issuer in
the amount of US$4,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$35,235,000) and settled by the existing loans receivable
amounting to US$2,000,000 and an additional cash payment
of US$2,500,000. The Junior Note is at an interest rate of
14.65% per annum and with maturity date on 30 October
2020 with an extendable maturity date of one year after the
maturity date.

The Junior Note is measured at amortised cost since the
Group's business model to hold this debt instrument is to
hold for collection of contractual cash flows, and the cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

20194 R

R2017F8A AR Al —BE2EME
‘A & Charming Flash Limited([ Charming
Flash NEERAFESHS MR LB L
% = 77 Golden Glow Limited (21T AJ)
RN B R A< % A2,000,000%E
JT M E F K 519% © 7201843 A 31
B EWE R ERMEE 415,660,000
T e

M 2018410 A * Charming Flash 82
TARTMREWZE - Bt Charming
FlashA € % /A4,500,000% 7t( % &
#935,235,000/8 7T ) R BB B 1T A
THINREE IUBRAERKRER
2,000,000 Jt & %8 4N 38 £ 2,500,000
ENEEE-VMBREBFANEX A
14.65% M 2 B3 B A&2020F 10 H30H -
AR ERBBHE —F-

NEZRBETRBHERAGFE BX
SEMBZEBSTAZEBEEAS
REEKBRENRESRE MRERN
EERASNRRKREERSEN
B e
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

20.0THER DEBT INSTRUMENT AT

21

AMORTISED COST (Continued)

The Junior Note is denominated in US$, a currency other
than the functional currency of the relevant group entity.

The Group assessed the ECL with reference to the internal
credit rating of the Issuer and its holding company. An
impairment loss of HK$3,523,000 was recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 March 2019. Details of impairment
assessment are set out in note 41.

20 ZBERARGTEZE M

B I EAEwm

NREBEUNREEERBRIEER
AN Z EHEERTTINE »

AEEBL2ERTAREERAAZ
ANHBEEFRTIHEHAEERBE-
HE2019F3A3MBIEEE  BEE
3,523,000 TN E=NER B
BB BTG 2 IEH R 4T -

=k

.LOANS RECEIVABLE 21.EIRE R
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FAEIT
Fixed-rate loans receivable FEREEWE XK 200,091 228,080
Variable-rate loans receivable % &8 E i & =% 10,313 31,181
210,404 259,261
Less: Impairment allowance JB R B B (3,730) =
206,674 259,261

Analysed as: DA

Current portion B ERD 178,889 245,282
Non-current portion JE M B =B 10 27,785 13,979
206,674 259,261

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21.LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The movement of impairment allowance for loans receivable
for the current year is as follows:

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZZ2019%¥3A31H 1L FE

21.EIN E R

AEEREREZRZBREREBEZE
T

Impairment
allowance for
loans receivable
under 12m ECL

1218 A FE 8
FEER
BTEREXR
ZRERE
HK$'000
FHE T
At 31 March 2018 R2018F 3 A31H =
Impairment allowance recognised (note 2) PR EREMNT2) 3,457
At 1 April 2018 (restated) M2018F481H(EE) 3,457
Changes due to loans receivable recognised R 20184 1B E R EWEFH
as at 1 April 2018 T Bt &9 % &)
- Reversal upon settlement by other debt -REEREHEKNATEZ
instrument at amortised cost (note 20) HiERKTE 2 BE(H720) (783)
- Reversal - [ (179)
Impairment loss recognised for new loans HERFTERERREER
granted 1,235
273
At 31 March 2019 R2019F 3 A31H 3,730

At 31 March 2019, the range of interest rate on the Group's
fixed-rate loans receivable is 2.3% to 18% (2018: 3% to 19%)
per annum and the range of interest rate on the Group's
variable-rate loans receivable is prime rate less 1% to prime
rate (2018: prime rate less 2.95% to prime rate plus 2.0%)
per annum.

Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group assesses the
potential borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits
granted to each borrower. The credit limits attributed to the
borrowers are reviewed by the management regularly.

KEBREEARAE  2019F#H

MR2019F3A31H A& B 2 F &
FEWMEREBFMNEN F23%E18%
(20185 (3% ZE19%) R A& B 2%
ERWBERBFMNENTHREERF
KR 1%ZE & B B H E(2018F © &
BEF REH295%E K EEF XN
2.0%) °

ERHBERTINRER  NEHEF
HEEERAZGEEZREER
TEUBERAZGEER - EEEX
HadERAZERER -
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No aged analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the aged analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of business of loan
financing.

The Group's loans receivable denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group
entities, which is US$, amounted to HK$12,645,000 at 31
March 2019 (2018: HK$15,660,000).

Impairment assessment (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transition in accordance with
note 2)

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$210,404,000
at 31 March 2019. During the year ended 31 March 2019, a
net impairment loss of HK$273,000 was recognised in profit
or loss. At 31 March 2019, the accumulated impairment
allowance for loans receivable amounted to HK$3,730,000.
There are no loans receivable which are past due at the end
of the reporting period.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the loans receivable as at
the reporting date with the one as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the loans receivable
from borrowers are assessed by the management of the
Group, based on the financial background, collateral and
the historical settlement records, including past due dates
and default rates, of each borrower and forward-looking
information that is reasonable, supportable and available
without undue cost or effort. Each borrower is assigned
a risk grading under internal credit ratings to calculate the
ECL, taking into consideration of the estimates of expected
cash shortfalls which are driven by estimates of possibility
of default and such as the amount and timing of cash flows
that are expected from foreclosure on the collaterals (if any)
less the costs of obtaining and selling the collaterals. At every
reporting date, the financial background, collateral and the
historical settlement records are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are considered.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

21.LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 21.E W E K@)

REBREREDT BARAES
RE REXREEXEBEEAMS K
BoOMALREBINEE-

AEBNEBEEBEZEREIaEEE R
ETXI)NIIMNEEIEMNEKREXR
M20199F 3 A31H A&12,645,000/8 JT
(20184 : 15,660,000 7T) °

BMEFH(BRENT2RER
ERAMBEHREENFEIFEB
&)

EEE R R EZEN2019F3A31H
8F [ 42 15210,404,0008 T 2 e &
MZIEEEZX- B E2019F3A31H
IEFE - B EE 8 F5273,000% T
RIERER N2019F3A31H - &
W& %z & 58 E % % 43,730,000
BT -RMEBRKR THEDBEEK
B e
FTEEERREVEERARRES
BELAR AEELEEREKRER
RERE B H B A E DN E R EE K
EXRVEERBSEELEENNR
R EL MK ASEBEEREEFN(G
EERAZERERTIBEEGH
EE HERERBEERIHE BE
BHAERENXR UREREZTBEEN
BRASZ DERNAREAR KA
EEER SERARBEATEE
FRESRERRERAGTERERE
BEEBE TKEEBEHREERZ
HEr DRBHFELOZ JENE K
PInEHERREBECR AN S
ERFE(IMAB)REZRE RS E K
HRZEA REREBH BBE
S BEHEREBTEERZSHRESEN
A Y EEAIEEERNES-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21.LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Impairment assessment (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transition in accordance with
note 2) (Continued)

The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collaterals,
if any, in the absence of default by the borrower. There
have not been any significant changes in the quality of the
collateral held for the loans receivable.

Impairment assessment (before application
of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

The management closely monitored the credit quality of
loans receivable and considered loans receivable amounting
to HK$259,261,000 at 31 March 2018 that were neither
past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality and the
impairment loss was negligible. At 31 March 2018, no loans
receivable were past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.

The Group had a policy for assessing the impairment on
loans receivable on an individual basis. The assessment
also included evaluation of collectability of accounts and
management’s judgment, including the financial background,
current creditworthiness, collateral and past collection history
of each borrower.

In determining the recoverability of loans receivable, the
Group considered any change in the credit quality of the loans
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to
the reporting date. This included assessing the credit history
of the borrowers, such as financial difficulties or default in
payments, and current market conditions.

20194 R

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

21.EIN E R

AT AR B M 2R E A
ERMEREEDFIREB
E) (&)
EEZIATEEHNZBERT AL
ERSHEXBERAZSERS (M
B RERERMBEEZERDY
BV EEAEAED -

WEFE(HA2018F4818 &
AERMBHREERNEIH Z
Al)
EEERERELRRERZEEE
=  RAENR2018F3A3MAZEKE
3£259,261,000/ ;L8 B BT A R
FEEEERBEBRAMTRE-
R2018F3A31H  AEBRREH
R EEWERBEH WETRER
BEEE -

7N & B 1R Bl & 2 BOR GE R
ERZBE - ZIXENEREEFPA
WERRZFFERERERE 2 H 6
BREBRAZIHBEER BERF
2 HAARBEEREESSE -

REERKRERZATHKEMR K
SEEZERKEFREZVELEE
FHEERSAHAZEEERZE
Mk -BEhBREFEERAZE
EESL MMBRESENENR R
B M ISR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

22.

23.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, intangible asset represents a
trading right with carrying value of HK$500,000 that confers
eligibility of Constance Capital Limited (“Constance Capital”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to trade on
the Stock Exchange for the purpose of securities dealing
and broking. The trading right has no foreseeable limit to
the period that Constance Capital can use to generate net
cash flows. As a result, the trading right is considered by
management of the Company as having an indefinite useful
life because it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows
indefinitely. The trading right will not be amortised until
its useful life is determined to be finite. It will be tested
for impairment semi-annually and whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired. At 31 March 2019 and

2B EE

7R2019F k2018F3H31H B &
ENAKRTILHEEARBR R AT
WEK]) ARRz—HE2EWNBAR
Al BERAURBRAMEBE IR B #
2 8K T {8 500,000 JT ° sh #E & A& 7]
FRAESEHRZXIENELERS
MEFH AW AX2REEERE
RGELSEREAFHRERBEBHAT
EEHEBMBEREFR - X HE
TEREEEZHTRSTHET R
ER-UEXFGEBREBFEREE
BLREAURBERETRENS -
7R2019F X 2018FE3 A31H * AR A
ERENDREEFEAEBEE LK

2018, the management of the Company determined that BARAZRZELARE-
there is no impairment of Constance Capital’s trading right
based on its value in use.
P-|
DEPOSITS 23.12 €
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Statutory deposits (note) EERE (W) 205 205
Deposit paid for acquisition of BAME BEMEZHBZ
property, plant and equipment Bfti&ke - 139
Deposit paid for investment properties &YW X 2 B &4 - 1,970
205 2,314

Note: The amounts represent Constance Capital’s statutory deposits
with Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited and the
Stock Exchange.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

Wi ZeBDRLBKERFERREE

BARXRGHAERRBAZEERS -
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25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE

The Group’s properties held for development for sale are
situated in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2019, the amount of properties held for
development for sale which is expected to be completed
more than twelve months after the end of the reporting
period is HK$886,606,000 (2018: HK$400,649,000).

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group performed
assessment of net realisable value on its properties held
for development for sale with reference to valuations made
by independent qualified professional property valuers not
connected with the Group. The valuations were arrived at by
using the residual method. As the estimated net realisable
values of the properties held for development for sale are
higher than their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
no write-down on these properties is considered necessary.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

2. FFHEBRRYE

AEBZHEHREERDEDLR
BB

P2019F3A31H FEHAEER 2
ELHEREMERBREHRE T =
@ A A ERK Z & %8 £886,606,000/5
7T (2018 4F : 400,649,000 JT) °

7R2019F & 2018F3H31H A& H
ERBHELHEERYEETTYER
FEAGHN2EZHARNEE R BEHE
CEBUAEBEREEMEMEBEMTZ
HE-ZFEHETDREF &G EZE
S -ARBELREERMEA
FRFESRNERFERRZ2ER
B AR EEREZRSVEES
EERFE -

25.2 5 & H it FE WK 1B

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$°'000
FET FHE T
Trade receivables: H 5 kWA
0-60 days 0-60H 243 405
61-90 days 61-90 H - 13
243 418
Life insurance policy (note 17(c)) ANSREMF17(c) - 286
Escrow deposits for properties held BIEHEMEILERS
for sale - 14,448
Amounts recoverable from joint *KEHRBRAEERZ
operator (note (a)) A e B & 58 (47 32 (a) - 81,602
Prepayments RN 710 1,368
Interest receivable FE U A B, 3,803 1,015
Dividend receivable FE W% 2 1,139 =
Refundable stamp duty (note (b)) Al iR O ENFE B (B aF (b)) 89,400 89,400
Other receivables H b & W 5RIE 1,516 1,730
96,811 190,267

KEEREEBARLT 20195
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

25.

26.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The Group did not grant any credit period to its tenants. The
aged analysis of trade receivables is determined based on
invoice date which approximates revenue recognition date.

Notes:

(a)  Under the terms of a joint operation arrangement for a property
redevelopment project, each of the Group and the other
joint operator agreed to pay for and bear the redevelopment
costs incurred on the project in proportion to their agreed
proportion. The other joint operator undertook to promptly
make contributions when called upon to do so by the Group.
As at 31 March 2018, the amounts recoverable from joint
operator represented redevelopment costs incurred which
were attributable to the proportion agreed to be paid for and
borne by the other joint operator for which the Group had not
called for payment. The amounts were fully settled during the
year ended 31 March 2019.

(b) Inaccordance with the provisions of the Hong Kong Stamp Duty
Ordinance, the Group will apply for refund of the stamp duty
paid when the property redevelopment project commences. At
31 March 2019, the amount is included in the Group’s current
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position as
it is expected that the refund of stamp duty will be received
within twelve months.

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS
AT FVTPL

The Group acquired equity-linked investments with financial
institutions in Hong Kong. The equity-linked investments
as at 31 March 2018 contained embedded derivative, the
return of which was determined with reference to the
closing price of one equity securities listed on the Stock
Exchange. As at 31 March 2018, the aggregate principal
amount was HK$30,000,000 with fixed coupon interest
rates and remaining time to maturity within two months.
The equity-linked investments contained terms enabling the
issuers either to deliver the underlying equity securities on
maturity if the market prices of underlying securities were
lower than their respective predetermined reference stock
prices or cash settlement of the principal and interest if the
market prices of the underlying securities were higher than
their respective predetermined reference stock prices. The
equity-linked investments were subject to the option for early
termination at the discretion of the holders.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

5.2 5 &k H it FE R FXIE ()

26.

AEBRERTEHEPEMEES -
BEHRUFABERBERRZEERD
- DRERODKEEARDR 2%
SHHIREE-

W&t

(a) BRE—"BEEEVESEEBEZHER
EETHER AEEREMER
AENBBRERBEHAREZRL
BT RDEBEEZEERAN &
tERAENFAFCREAEE SR
iRt & € - W2018E3A318
REHRAEAZAKESED A
HEMARAEAZBESARELLH
FEXAERSEMAEEL R EK
TRZEERA - ZFSEREE
2019 3A3IALLFEEBELE -

b) REFBANEREMN 2GR &
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27.

28.

XEEREERRAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS
AT FVTPL (continued)

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018,
the Group no longer applied designation as measured at
FVTPL for the equity-linked investments, as these financial
assets were required to be measured at FVTPL under
HKFRS 9. As a result, the fair value of these investments
of HK$29,885,000 were reclassified from financial assets
designated as at FVTPL to financial assets at FVTPL (note
2). As at 31 March 2019, all equity-linked investments were
either redeemed or converted into listed equity securities as
the share price on or before maturity date of the underlying
securities reached the strike price.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, at prevailing market interest rates ranging
from 0.001% to0 2.6% (2018: 0.001% to 0.91%) per annum.

Included in the bank balances as at 31 March 2019 are
amounts of HK$80,689,000 (2018: nil) and HK$51,172,000
(2018: nil) denominated in New Zealand dollars (“NZD")
and USS$ respectively, currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities.

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

26 EEARRLDFEHTAE

27.

BmZETEMEE®W
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Bif \BmZzeREEEN»ESE
REATFTEFABZZEHEE (T
2)° R2019%F3A31MH FTEREH
EECER S #ER A FHRRAE
5 RAEBEEFBRERIHARZ
AMEZERBAEIE-

RITERRRE

BOEBKRLRBESBEAEEFTEZ
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28.E5Z R HAMtt ENRIE

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$'000

FETT FAEIT

Trade payables =N A 1,993 9,151

Retention payable (note) FE SR &S (BT 7E) 11,204 10,325
Rental deposits received and rental BEkfekehkEKHAS

received in advance 10,551 13,725
Deposits received from sale of HEFEENZERES

residential units - 11,554

Property management fund payable ENMEEEES 7,277 7,655

Interest payable TE R B 674 735

Accruals and other payables TEIE & H fb fE A R IB 10,233 10,115

41,932 63,260

20194 R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

28.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(Continued)

Note:As at 31 March 2019, retention payable of HK$11,204,000
(2018: HK$10,325,000) is expected to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

The aged analysis of trade payables determined based on
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

SESZNREMENSKE MW

Bt R2019F3A31H B 4 R & &
11,204,000 7T(2018 4 : 10,325,000
BB BERREPRE+ =M
AAX e

REZZAH BHENRERR
THRZEEDTWT

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FE T

0-60 days 0-60 H 1,534 8,251
Over 90 days H B0 H 459 900
1,993 9,151

During the year, deposits received from sale of residential
units amounting to HK$11,554,000 which was included in
contract liabilities at the beginning of the year was recognised
as revenue.

29.AMOUNT DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

29.

RAFE BEEFVNZAHNEBEZ
tEFEEM 2B KIZE 11,554,000
BITEBERABRA -

ENFERBERREHE

ZEBARBER RS REHMRK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

30.SECURED BANK BORROWINGS

I.EEMARTHEE

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Carrying amount repayable as follows FEEZEmMABAWNT
(based on the scheduled repayment (RIBEEHNRE XKW &
dates set out in the loan agreements): & F{E&E A H) :
— within one year -—F R 752,551 601,657
— between one to two years - —EMWE 29,349 65,188
— between two to five years -—EZRF 247,756 97,122
- more than five years - F#& 256,328 387,775
1,285,984 1,151,742
Comprising: =
Amount due within one year shown BRRRHAEAGBZ —FR
under current liabilities R EA & 58 752,551 601,657
Amount shown under non-current BRARIERDEBE 2SR
liabilities 533,433 550,085
1,285,984 1,151,742

The Group's secured bank borrowings carry interest at Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus 1% to HIBOR
plus 2% (2018: HIBOR plus 1% to HIBOR plus 2.65%) per
annum, with effective interest ranging from 2.26% to 3.66%
(2018: 1.82% to 3.64%) per annum. The loans are secured
by certain assets as disclose in note 33. The proceeds were
mainly used to finance development of properties.

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K

AEBZEBRBRETEESFEAUR
BIRTAEFRB(EBRITRAER
BEDMI%ZFBRTRAEFREM2%
(2018F : BB RITEEFE MN1%
ERABRITRAEREMN2.65%)5TE -
B ERKRTIH2.26% £3.66%(2018
F:182%%E364%)° ZEE R
LA TEEFAEMILHENKZE
W-FERBEBLTEZAERNEEDY
%0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

31.SHARE CAPITAL 31. 1% &<
Nominal
value Number of
per share shares Amount
BREE KM EA o]
HK$ HK$'000
AT FET
Authorised: ERE
At 1 April 2017, 31 March M2017F4AH18 -
2018 and 31 March 2019 201843 A31H
201943 A31H 0.1 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREE:
At 1 April 2017 and R2017F4R81H &

31 March 2018 201843 A31H 0.1 79,420,403 7,942
Issue of new shares (note) BATH R 0 (MY 7E) 0.1 11,900,000 1,190
At 31 March 2019 R2019F 3 A31H 0.1 91,320,403 9,132

Note:On 17 May 2018, the Company allotted 11,900,000 ordinary Bat 720185 817H » & A & B %

shares of HK$0.1 each by placing to not less than six placees 11,900,000 f% & A& 0.1 7 JT & i@ A% I

at a placing price of HK$4.60 per placing share. The Company MmN EIREE K MHE S B 1K4608

raised HK$54,193,000 (net of expenses) with the intention TREFALDRNEBERA RAQ

at the time of placing for acquisition of properties. The new A% 15854,193,000/8 T (B B X 18)

placing shares were issued pursuant to the general mandate REERITEREKRED X - i

granted to the directors by a resolution of the shareholders of ERMIIIR20177FE8RA7TERE KRS

the Company passed at the annual general meeting held on 7 BHARNABRELF 2 —RIXEETT-

August 2017.

All shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2019 Fr B RN E E£2019F3A318 It FE
rank pari passu with the then existing shares in issue in all BOIROPRSHFTEHERBEBETR

respects. MEERZEF -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32.JOINT OPERATIONS

On 16 June 2014, the Group entered into a development
agreement (the “Agreement”) with an independent third
party (“Third Party”) to jointly develop a site (the “Project”).
Under the Agreement, the existing building of the site should
be demolished and redeveloped as a residential building for
sales purpose. The Group and Third Party owned 75% and
25% interest of the Project, respectively.

The aggregate amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses recognised in the consolidated financial statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZZ2019%¥3A31H 1L FE

.68 XK

MR2014F6 160 AEE BB E
=HFUE=ZFDETERBZE(H
FZFHOLAERBRER —WE&(THEAB])-
BEZBE SHRZ{BEZREE
FREZEAE " BREZEFEHEH
B AREBERE=ZFDHNEARAEEHL
2 75% N 25% HE 25 ©

BRASEERLEXRBIRAENK
EYBRRER2EE BE K=

in relation to the Group's interest in the joint operations were ERASXHBSENT :
as follows:

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Assets BE N/ATEH 591,405
Liabilities Bf&E N/AT & A (563,010)
Revenue W 25 _ _
Expenses &3 (950) (4,470)

On 16 March 2018, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (as one of the vendors) entered into an
agreement for the disposal of the entire issued share capital
and the shareholder’s loan of a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, which holds 75% interest of the Project, for
an attributable consideration of HK$690,000,000 out of the
total consideration of HK$920,000,000 (before consideration
adjustment) (the “Disposal”). On 16 October 2018, the
Disposal was completed and the residential building was
substantially ready for strata title sale. The directors of
the Company determined that the total sale consideration
(after consideration adjustment) for the Disposal, amounting
to HK$680,685,000, should be accounted for as revenue
from property sales and the cost of properties held for sale,
amounting to HK$424,034,000, together with expenses
directly attributable to the property sales through the
Disposal of HK$1,903,000 shall be accounted for as cost of
properties sold.

20194 R

M2018F3H16H A A 7 — B &
BE2EBEWNBRARAUEAEFR —&
7)) E & A2 R E920,000,000
BT AEREFAB)ZERELHRE
690,000,000 st H&E AR A — A2
EfBE2HEBHITRARBREER
BHEZ2EMNBARZEZEER
75% Em= ([ E FIE]) - R20184F 10
A16B L EFEBE K M&E
EEFEERNEERENETODE
ERBEE- AR EEEBEFTHES
BH2REERBKREAER) R
680,685,000 7. - IEE B %5 &
WHm M BIEHEMERAARER &
R 424,034,000 T ER M EHE
BEFEMGDESEEZEHM1,903,000
EILERELEMERRAR-

201



208

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

33.PLEDGE OF ASSETS 33. & E i
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of RBEHR AEEBERTRTE
the Group were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities RERTAEEGERBEZEEN
granted to the Group: N
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$°'000
FHETT FET
Leasehold properties HEWHE 74,676 76,364
Investment properties wEYE 1,297,900 1,649,400
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong ER LT ZREZRS 40,366 -
Life insurance policy ASRE 11,051 10,561
Perpetual bonds X AMEFH 39,916 =
Debt instruments at FVTOC] BAVEGFAEMEE
WaHzEBIE 46,376 -
Properties held for development for sale #{EH €2 E ¥ % 1,463,166 798,009
Properties held for sale BEELEME 91,174 110,449
Financial assets designated as at FVTPL {§F AR A FHEE ABzH 2
TRMEE - 29,885
3,064,625 2,674,668
In addition, rentals in respect of the above investment foh FHiEEMEZEH S K £
properties and future sale proceeds and rentals in respect BELEEEMELRBELEYWE
of the above properties held for development for sale and ZARRBEMBRERE S MK F
properties held for sale are also pledged to banks. TR AT o

34.0PERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 34.&& 80T H

The Group as lessee AEBERAEEAA
2019 2018
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T

Minimum lease payments recognised REANRIBEERZ
in profit or loss during the year & K 414 5% 1,632 1,502
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34.OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

KREHNZTH

AEBEERERAM@E

BB EEER AL BRET T MM
BEROZRARSERONFEE
HRMT

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$°'000

FET FAEIT

Within one year —F R 1,281 1,124
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZERFNRA

(BEEEMSE) 708 =

1,989 1,124

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office premises and directors’
quarters. Leases are negotiated for terms of two to three
years (2018: one to two years).

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease
payments are fixed and no arrangements have been entered
into for contingent rental payments.

REBONREAEEREE T H
REREFERMZ2ENES - HH
BEAH _—_E==F(2018F: —EM
F) e

REAKSBEITZ Z2EH BHMNK
BREERYEFTZXAEE MK
ZHE e

The Group as lessor AEBEBEAEHAA
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET

Property rental income earned R E A BRER 2 W %

during the year el A 54,892 52,958
Less: Outgoings X H (2,179) (1,834)
Net rental income e WA FE 52,713 51,124

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

34.0PERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 34.8 & #H A & Hu

(Continued)
The Group as lessor (Continued) AEBEAEAA®E
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RBERR NEEEMP A
with tenants for the following future minimum lease TARERKEBEOMNK:
payments:
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F R 10,150 40,617
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZEERFNRA
(BEHEEEMF) 2,587 3,616
12,737 44,233
Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease BEAEEFT L 2BL - HOMFK
payments are fixed and no arrangements have been entered AEERYEIITUSRBESNRE
into for contingent rental payments. The properties held have - BEVMEZHORH —ZE2=F
committed tenants for terms of one to three years (2018: (2018F : —ZE M) o
one to four years).
At the end of the reporting period, operating lease rentals RBEBHR AR2RIETES2H
committed by close relatives of certain directors of the B AEZELEER S 2 BHR W
Company fall due as follows: ™
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°'000
FHETT FEL
Within one year —F R 160 160
At the end of the reporting period, operating lease rentals RB|EHR SILAREEMAE
committed by the Eminence Group fall due as follows: LEEHEHE 2R T
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Within one year —F R 2,496 2,496
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZFRFRN
(BREERMF) 1,040 3,536
3,536 6,032
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e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

35.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

35. 5 K& B

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Capital expenditure contracted for EFTHNERRREGESE VB
but not provided in the consolidated MEPBEBEBEZIREMEZ
financial statements in respect of =N
investment properties - 844

36.RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

37.

XEEREEGRAH

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum
of HK$1,500 and they can choose to make additional
contributions. The employer's monthly contributions are
calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries or up
to a maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory contributions”).
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
mandatory contributions upon their retirement at the age of
65, death or total incapacity.

The aggregate employers’ contributions which have been
dealt with in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2019
amounted to HK$706,000 (2018: HK$632,000).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 July 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 El
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company.
Under the 2012 EI Scheme, the directors of the Company
may at their absolute discretion grant options to all directors
(including any executive and non-executive directors), full-
time employees and consultants of the Group to subscribe
for shares in the Company. The 2012 El Scheme is valid
for ten years commencing 5 July 2012, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended.

20194 R

36.3E 1Kk & F 51 2

37.

AEBREBERE RS ERE TS
Pl 2HEEBEEETE -

REE2FET BEEEARESA
HEHAE%KEE A1,6008 T B
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#H3x]) o B B W65 R IKE - BT 3k
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& M K2 100% ©

H E2019F3A31H It F ERNIE R
Rz {E £ H 45 A706,0007% T
(20184 : 632,000/8 7T) °

BRESE

M2012F7 A58 A& A7) & R #t & —
HEREE([2012F k& BB E
f&% #E 5T &l D) o B #2012 k & B K
BERETE ARQFESAURLYED
BRMBES(BREREMAIT RIER
TES) A5Ez22BEELEM
HEERE URBEXARRZBRG -
2012F x E BB B REST S BRIEMN
HamXeEsEsiiEs & A H2012
F7ACHBHTFRN—EER-



212

The purposes of the 2012 El Scheme are to encourage
eligible participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 El
Scheme must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the
date of adoption of 2012 El Scheme. The overall limit on the
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2012 El
Scheme and other share options schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time.

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates shall be subject to the approval of
the independent non-executive directors of the Company.
Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their respective associates, would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted to such person in the 12-month
period representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares
of the Company issue and having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
each grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of
options shall be subject to shareholders’ approval with the
connected persons of the Company abstaining from voting.

Subject to the aforesaid, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to each grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further
grant of options in excess of the limit shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval with such grantee and his associates
abstaining from voting.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

37.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 37.RE S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise period of the share options under the 2012
El Scheme is determined by the board of directors of the
Company and shall end on a date which is not later than ten
years from the date of grant of the options. At the time of
grant of the share options, the Company must (a) specify the
minimum period(s), if any, for which a share option must be
held before it can be exercised in whole or in part, and (b)
specify the minimum performance target(s), if any, which
must be achieved before the share options can be exercised
in whole or in past. The amount payable on acceptance of
an offer for grant of share options is HK$1.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option
of the 2012 EI Scheme shall be no less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company's shares on the date
of offer.

No share options were granted under the 2012 El Scheme
or exercised during both years.

20194 R
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZZ2019%¥3A31H 1L FE

37. B EFE
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

38.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES IBREMETE 2EBEZ
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 7 8 &
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TRHANAEEXREMEZH Z A
arising from financing activities, including both cash and B2 DEHEeRIEETH R
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities EREFSH 2 BENEHRERE
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows Z - dARKRREREFTEIHARA
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of SEzHmEAReRERZIKEME
cash flows from financing activities. EBCRERE -
Amount
due to non-
Dividend Interest  Secured bank controlling
payable payable  borrowings  shareholder Total
BEA EMFEER
EfKRE ERHE BITER BRREE 2y

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

At 1 April 2017

Bank borrowings raised
Repayment of bank borrowings
Interest paid

Dividend paid

Non-cash changes:
Interest expense on bank
borrowings
Dividend declared

At 31 March 2018

Bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

Interest paid

Dividend paid

Advance from non-controlling
shareholder

Non-cash changes:

Acquisition/disposal of assets
and liabilities through
acquisition/disposal of
subsidiaries (note 42)

Interest expense on bank
borrowings

Dividend declared (note 11)

At 31 March 2019

R2017E4R18 = 673 899,482 = 900,155
EEBIER - - 517,660 = 517,560
BEBITEE - - (265,717) - (265,717)
B# & - (26,174) - - (26,174)
BRRE (3,971) - - - (3,971)
(3,971) (25,501) 1,151,325 = 1,121,853
¥Re2E:
BITEECHBERY
= 26,236 417 = 26,653
BEEMRE 397 = = = 3,971
R2018E3 8318 - 735 1,151,742 - 1,152,477
EERIER - - 359,765 - 359,765
BEBIEE - - (522,848) - (522,848)
B# & - (33,782) - - (33,782)
BERRE (4,566) - - - (4,566)
FERERDY
- - - 101,009 101,009
(4,566) (33,047) 988,659 101,009 1,052,055
¥Re#E:
BRNE/LENE
ARNE/MERE
ke&EWZ42)
- - 296,988 - 296,988
BITEECHEBERY
- 33,721 337 - 34,058
BEBREMZ) 4,566 - - - 4,566
R2019%3A31H - 674 1,285,984 101,009 1,387,667
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

XEEREERRAR

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

.BEEATXSE BEXS

During the year, the Group had the following transactions (a) RERN - AEFERFLGESE
with the Eminence Group: ETWMTIRS :
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental income & WA 2,496 2,496
Disposal of a motor vehicle HERE 405 =
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director and substantial shareholder EEURLT AXRAEERTE
of the Company, is also a director of Eminence. R mMASLUEEES-
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, a director and substantial BRAMZLT XRABEERTE
shareholder of the Company, was also a director of BRE - IASLLEESEER®
Eminence until she resigned as an executive director BAMEE2017F4818H B (£
of Eminence with effect from 18 April 2017. AN EHITES-
As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group holds (b) %2019% &2018%3A3180 A&
convertible notes issued by Eminence, details of which EEEERSILUNERT 2 AH]
are set out in note 17(b). BEE FBEHINAKFE17D) -
Compensation of key management (c) EEEEAE Z2HM
personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key BEERHEHMETEEREXRERE
management during the year was as follows: AZWMawT:
2019 2018
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Short-term employee benefits EEES WA
Salaries and other benefits HekHEMEFR 15,933 15,565
Performance-related bonus HRBEEHE RS 34,500 =
Retirement benefits scheme RN AR A E &R
contributions 303 340
50,736 15,905

20194 R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Compensation of key management
personnel (Continued)

The Group has been providing accommodation to Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu for use by her and her family members.
With effect from 1 March 2019, the Company further
determined to provide these residential units and
carparking spaces to Mr. Koon Chun Ting, a son of
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a director of subsidiaries of the
Company, free of rental and charges for as long as he
is employed by the Group. Details of this arrangement
are set out in note 9(a)(iii).

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee and the
executive directors, respectively, having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

In January 2011, the Company entered into an
employment agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee to act
as general manager of the Company. The employment
agreement, which constitutes a connected transaction,
commenced on 21 February 2011 but may be terminated
by either party at any time by three months’ notice. The
monthly salary has been adjusted twice to HK$180,000
with effect from 1 April 2017. The remuneration
of Mr. Koon Wing Yee as general manager of the
Company during the year was HK$2,340,000 (2018:
HK$2,340,000) and was included in the “compensation
of key management personnel” in (c) above.

Mr. Koon Wing Yee is the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
who is a director of the Company. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
also holds 19.09% (2018: 21.95%) equity interest of
the Company through an entity wholly-owned by her.
At 31 March 2018, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu was one of the
beneficiaries under a family trust holding 36.74% equity
interest of the Company.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

N

.BEEALIRS HBEXS

(&)

(c)

(d)

FTEEBABZHFMNE

AEBERBEMALERTRZ T
ERERBEZREKREBFER -8
20193 A1H B E W KA RQF
E—TPAERMEEREEZLE FE
KZLTHRFIHRABARARAWB
RAEEREZSFEEEULR
FEM TREREIERAEE
WEEYRERER - B R
PER)FF 1B B & A Y 3R 9(a) (i) ©

EERTETBRAEBEZHME D
EFMEEERATESRR
REMALZERREERMHBE
i & € °

R2011F1H8 - ARAIEE K&
AUV ERHBE BABEARN
ARRAIZBER -ZEBWE B
REER S m2011F2A21H
Fis B HEPEA—FRE
MEEME T =@ABMML L -
B 545 A B WX £180,00058 It
B2017F481H £ - B K&
EERFERNERA QG B KE
2 B & 52,340,000 7T (20184 -
2,340,000 L) REBEEKR
FOBEZIZEERBABEZHH
ﬁqo

BEXEELEBEEH®R LT ZE
B - HAEAARIEFT - FEH L
ThhEB—HMEE2rEHAZE
B2 3% H K A A]19.09% (2018 4F :
21.95%) % 7N # z ° 7201843
A3MB EEXE%R TRt AHP —
ZRGEEEZIRZAN BHEARDQAF
36.74% A% AN #E 25 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

XEEREEGRAH

During the year, the Group received rental income
totalling HK$240,000 (2018: HK$240,000) from certain
close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy.

During the year, the Group paid HK$1,594,000 (2018:
HK$747,000) to Wing Yee Football Team Company
Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Koon Wing Yee,
which is recognised in profit or loss as “advertising”.

During the year, the Group paid HK$200,000 (2018:
HK$691,000) to Easyknit Charitable Foundation Limited,
a company controlled by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon
Ho Yan Candy, which is recognised in profit or loss as
“donations”.

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
acquired 100% equity interest of Total Expect and
shareholder loan from the Eminence Group for a
cash consideration of HK$1,035,000,000.

(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
disposed of its entire 100% equity interest in
Wellmake Investments and shareholder loan to
the Eminence Group for a cash consideration of
HK$470,000,000 resulting in a gain on disposal of
a subsidiary of HK$7,913,000.

(iii) The cash consideration payable to the Eminence
Group amounting to HK$586,040,000 per (i)
above was offset with the cash consideration
receivable from the Eminence Group amounting to
HK$317,954,000 per (ii) above, which gave rise to
a net settlement of HK$268,086,000 by the Group
to the Eminence Group.

Details of the above are disclosed in note 42 and the
announcement and circular issued by the Company
jointly with Eminence dated 21 November 2018 and 12
February 2019 respectively.

20194 R

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZZ2019%¥3A31H 1L FE

PBEEATXRE BEXS

(&)

(e)

(f)

(g9)

(h)

RERN AEBRDERH®RZT LT
FEAMZETAETHERAZES
W A & 240,000/ JT (20184 :
240,000 JT) °

RERN NEE X 1,594,000 %
7t (20184 : 747,000 7T ) F 7k
ERHRBEERAR —HMEKE
EEEHZ AR RIBREERE
[BEERX]-

R E R AN KB X 1200,000%
7L (20184 : 691,000/ JjT ) F K
EREHASEARLAA —HEH
EEHRLZETRE A RLZ T2
ZRAR -REZERAEIBERI-

i BN B Z2019F3A318 1k
FECAEBURSAE
1,035,000,000% 7T A & I
1 % & & I B Total Expect
100% 2R AEZRRKRRE

N
A

(i) B & Z=2019F3A318 1t
FE - AEBURSARE
470,000,000 7T H & & ®K
BEERE 72 E100% /% A&
Bkt TELULESEE
LERREFR BHHE—H
BB 2~ 7 U %% 7,913,0007%
=

%

(i) FAOESSLEESEE
2 # & X (586,040,000
BB B E@E KRS WL
TtEEBRESRESHE
317,954,000 ;T $5 - K&
BAmLPESEESKF
%% ¥ 268,086,00078 Tt °

BB ERFBERMFLZEERARD
A2 B B H A2018F 11 A 21
BHN2019F2 8 12H EE U %
HEFEH DS KB ERPHEE -
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes secured bank borrowings disclosed in note
30, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
accumulated profits and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
aregular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and raising or repayment of
bank borrowings.

Constance Capital (see note 22) is regulated by the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission and is required to
comply with the financial resources requirements according
to the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules (the "SF(FR)R"). Management closely monitors, on a
daily basis, Constance Capital’s liquid capital level to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirement
under the SF(FR)R. Constance Capital has no non-compliance
of the capital requirement imposed by the SF(FR)R during
the year.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

40.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40.5 < & bz B =

AERASEETERIULEERTE
L AREBYPHEAETEE B
BEEEEIMRAEHERRETE
mMARRKRFNSEeE®H A& EH
PEBRXEABTITEERBTIE -

AEBMEARBESERFIRA
REFBEERNEI0Z A BRRT
BE B RkERRE RARAR
REGEZ ETERBRCETRA
REFREM MR-

ARRAEBEEEHRRIEARE - F
Eﬁﬁ%*%ﬁ’i%%%ﬁﬁ&
ARERNWEBEER- ﬁﬁ%%%
2H ASESEERTEE
ﬁk@&i%i1ﬁﬁﬁ%% M
FE@EBEEARARE-

ShHEE ARN(R M 5E22) 0 % &8 % 3
MEEKERZEGEENREAR
TREEBEFFLBAE(HHER)
RATES RPE G HRER) A A
ZHBERERK-BEEEEHRY
ERILHEERZ RBE S KFURE
REFEZFFLRAE(HBER)R
ElJZE{K/}ILEé j: EAiﬁq%A
EﬁéZlKIﬂHTﬁmm%?&Hﬂf(ﬁﬂEﬁl
BRIFRAZESERK -
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e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

M. IT HE
(a) €M T EZER

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Financial assets tHMEE
Loans and receivables (including EZRERZE(RERS
cash and cash equivalents) RERBEE)
- Trade and other receivables -ESRHEMERIE - 97,483
- Life insurance policy -AERE - 10,561
— Loans receivable -EWREX - 259,261
- Convertible notes - BARER - 61,317
- Bank balances and cash -RITEHRERE - 150,370
- 578,992
Amortised cost R RDIN
— Trade and other receivables -B SR EMEW A 5,381 =
- Other debt instrument -RBERAFELZ
at amortised cost HuEBKTA 31,712 =
- Loans receivable -FEWRE R 206,674 -
- Bank balances and cash -RTEBREERS 191,670 =
435,437 -
FVTPL BAFEFAEZ
— Financial assets at FVTPL -EBAYEFABEZ
TREE 184,666 100,094
- Financial assets designated as -EBEAEAFETA
at FVTPL ERzemERE - 29,885
184,666 129,979
FVTOCI BZAFEFAEMEZE KRS
- Debt instruments at FVTOCI -BAFEFAEMLE
HlmcBEBIA 46,376 =
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESLREE
— Available-for-sale investments -AEHERE - 109,665
Derivative financial instruments TESmIA - 10,750
Financial liabilities cHas
Amortised cost XD
- Trade and other payables -BS R EMENRE 34,059 42,971
- Amount due to non-controlling -EREERBRREE
shareholder 101,009 -
- Secured bank borrowings -BERRTEER 1,285,984 1,151,742
1,421,052 1,194,713

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include other
debt instrument at amortised cost, debt instruments
at FVTOCI, available-for-sale investments, derivative
financial instruments, trade and other receivables, life
insurance policy, loans receivable, convertible notes,
financial assets at FVTPL, financial assets designated
at FVTPL, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, amount due to non-controlling shareholder
and secured bank borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure that appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to certain bank balances, bank
borrowings and variable-rate loans receivable. The
Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate loans receivable. The Group
has not used any derivative contracts to hedge
its exposure to such interest rate risk, however,
the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider other necessary action when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk on
financial liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of HIBOR arising from bank borrowings.

41. £/ T B
(b) EEBEEERAERBEE

AEBZIZeRIABER
BERATAEZHMEK LA
BAFEFAEMEZE RS 2
EHTE AHLERE T4
TRITE B N&EMEKRK
H ASRE BRER A #&
REE BAFESAEZZE
MEE-EERERFEFTA
BREZeMEE RITEHKRLR
T BEHREMEMNRE BN
FEERReBEMAEMRT
BE-ZEE2RMIAZHBER
BRHEBAMTEARA -MzEFe/T
EpEkzEBIALBEEZSER
RZBRAUHEHNOT -EEEE
BRERZEERNERER
RABMWRBGEE B -

i %5 3 B
(i) &= g

AEBAXHERE TR
e RITEERFEREEK
ERZREREMEEAR -
AEBNAXBEARE BE
WERzAFEMNERR -
AEBIXYZEEBEMM
EAANHE PRI ERER -
A EEBERMNEER
E#EREBRHRAEKRT
HE BB THRREM
HETH -

AEEREBRAEABEZHAE
RBRERAMEZ R E
TRRBREE -SAFL- K
SEzHEERENXER
TE2EFRERITEREZ
BEERTAERE KD -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) BEBREEEBEFERBX

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Total interest revenue/income from financial assets
that are measured at amortised cost is as follows:

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

41.£ 8/ T Hu)

(&)

%5 B ()

(i) Pz (&)
REHEKAFTEZERE
BB A BEN

T
2019
HK$’000
FET
Interest revenue M B U =
Financial assets at amortised cost BEHENAGFTEZ
TREE 18,591
Other income H fb Yz A
Financial assets at amortised cost B#BEKNEFTEZ
TREE 8,096
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BERAFEGAEA
PEMNZZ2EBHITA 1,240
Total interest income M E U A 4B 5 27,927
2018
HK$'000
FAEIT
Interest revenue PSR
Loans and receivables B & e W A 29,560
Other income H b Y A
Loans and receivables (including bank ERREWKRZE(BIERIT
balances and cash) EHEIRE) 14,417
Financial assets designated as at FVTPL KEAZATFEF AER
LEMmEE 11,747
Total interest income B U A 4858 55,724

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for certain
bank borrowings and variable-rate loans receivable.
The analysis was prepared assuming these
balances outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. 50
basis points (2018: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease represents management’'s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
If interest rate had been 50 basis points (2018: 50
basis points) higher or lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's profit for the year
ended 31 March 2019 would decrease or increase
by HK$5,326,000 (2018: profit for the year would
decrease or increase by HK$4,678,000).

The bank balances are excluded from the sensitivity
analysis as the management of the Group considers
that the interest rate fluctuation is not significant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the

exposure during the year.

(if)  Currency risk

All of the Group’'s sales and purchases are
denominated in the group entities’ functional

currency.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign
currency denominated monetary assets at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

MTEIT B
(b) MBEREBREZERERKE

(&)

i 5 m B (&)

(i)

(ii)

T 2 iz ()
BRE D

KT Z@ERED>NDIER
**?f&'ﬁfﬁﬁ&ééﬁuﬁz
RZHERBEE - 7R
ZK MBI LERRSE
HRZEBRE2FERFE-
50 & % 25 (20184 : 50 1@
EEZE M RERE
BEFGHANEZAEAE
FB) o i F K= R K R 50
T%ﬁ%ﬁ(2018¢1501%
EE)MM B EMEZER
& K& B R E £2019
FIANABLEFEZEMNB
B > sk 3 hn5,326,0007% JT
(20184 : F E & 7 # &k
3% 1% 704,678,000 7T) °

RITERTEBEREHFRE
PHABRAEEEEER
RMNRZRHATERKN -

EEERS ZBRBEDMN

ERAREBEMNEER -
A& 5 R AR R R
FARK -

B

BAEEERZY
518 -

REmEBRR AINEFEZ
SEERBCEREE LR
[ERERUNE

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$'000

FETT FETT

uss$ 192,872 26,221
NZD 80,689 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(if)  Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate
risk on HK$ against US$ and NZD for the foreign
currency denominated monetary assets. Under the
pegged exchange rate system, the financial impact
on exchange difference between HK$ and US$ will
be immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in HK$ against NZD.
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. A positive number below
indicates decrease in post-tax profit where HK$
strengthen 5% against NZD. For a 5% weakening
of HK$ against NZD, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the
balances below would be negative.

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

41. €/ T B
(b) EEBEERAERBKEK

(&)

%5 B ()

(ii)

B (&)
BRRE DT
AEBRINEINBEZEE
EEZERRBREZERZRK
BEATRELERFABIT -
RPN BEXRGE  FBHE
THETIERZRE 7B
FEITER BILERER
BHRRE Do

TEREINAEEBRL B TR
FABTHAEXREELIZ
BEEFHBE - 5% A EE
EEABRNIZRINER
@ﬁﬁZ@WFmT iﬁ
KEBREBHIINEEX

AR B A TWZE
@ﬁm%nﬂﬁ@%mﬂ
BE5%8 B BEFRD -
BIL A B T B BE5%H -
EHBEHEZNESEAR
MRz2EE  MIATEHRE
BB

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$°'000

FET FAEIT

Decrease in post-tax profit bR i 12 = AR 3,369 -

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy to eliminate the currency
exposures. However, the management monitors
the related foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arise.

KEBREEARAE  2019F#H
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iif) Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its
investments in debt instruments at FVTOCI,
perpetual bonds, listed equity securities measured
at FVTPL (2018: classified as FVTPL and available-
for-sale investments) and equity-linked investments.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles and the Group has a team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise. The Group's price
risk is concentrated on equity securities listed in
Hong Kong and these investments are diversified
into several different industries.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to price risk at
the end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the debt instruments at FVTOCI
had been 10% higher/lower, FVTOCI reserve for
the year ended 31 March 2019 would increase/
decrease by HK$4,638,000 (2018: N/A) as a result
of the changes in fair value of debt instruments
at FVTOCI.

If the prices of the perpetual bonds had been
10% higher/lower, post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 March 2019 would increase/decrease
by HK$3,992,000 (2018: N/A) as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(iif) Price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the prices of the listed equity securities had been
10% (2018: 10%) higher/lower, post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 March 2019 would increase/
decrease by HK$8,823,000 (2018: increase/
decrease in post-tax profit by HK$8,358,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL.

If the prices of the underlying equity securities
of the financial assets designated as at FVTPL as
at 31 March 2018 had been 10% higher/lower,
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2018
would increase/decrease by HK$2,495,000 as a
result of the changes in fair value of financial assets
designated as at FVTPL.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified
as available-for-sale investments as at 31 March
2018 had been 10% higher:

° investment revaluation reserve as at 31 March
2018 would increase by HK$10,967,000 as a
result of the increase in fair value of available-
for-sale investments; and

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified
as available-for-sale investments as at 31 March
2018 had been 10% lower:

e  post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March
2018 would decrease by HK$160,000 and
investment revaluation reserve as at 31 March
2018 would decrease by HK$10,807,000 as a
result of the decrease in fair value of available-
for-sale investments.

KEBREEARAE  2019F#H
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZZ2019%¥3A31H 1L FE

4M1.€@ T B
(b) EEBEERAERBKEK

%5 B ()
(iii) 18 1% /2 B2 (%)

B E 2T (8E)

i ETIRAZBHER EFHS
T B#10% (20184F : 10%) °
HE2019F3A31HILLFE
BRREZABREREZQFE
AABREZERMEEZRAF
B & &) 3% 0,7 48,823,000
75 L (20184 « Bk T 18 & F
1% 40,7 4> 8,358,0005% 7T) °

HIEEAEAFET AR
HmZeMEBEEZHBARA
B A B MN2018FE3 318
EFHTE10% B E2018
FIANABLEFEBRRE R
¥ EAEETEBZDFER
AEBEBEZERMEEZAF
B & &) 3% 0,8 4> 2,495,000
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WAERHEERE 2 £
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EEHBFEBEBEREITMHD
EREZRFEEINM
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WoBEAAHEERE Z
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F3A3TH FEK10% :
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AHEERECATE
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7T & R2018%E3A31H
ZHREEHFEEBREM
A 410,807,000 T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

1./ T A

L ()

b) BEBREEEBEFERBX

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets
except for listed equity securities, as detailed in note
17. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risk associated
with its financial assets, except that the credit risks
associated with loans receivable is mitigated because
they are secured over guaranteed money, marketable
securities or properties.

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

(%)
1= & & B2 K & 18 &F 14

20194 K% 201843 H31H @ K
EERAXIEFRBRTEME
ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%Z?ﬁ%g

ERITELEESEECERE M
ﬁFZ%ﬁﬁ&mhﬁ % B
SN R M 17 AEE Y E
A TME TR E EE MmN
BEEREABREEE SR
EEMENEERR - ﬁﬁfw
EREENEERRB M-
ERRES BEF %&%%ﬁ
o

AEBHAEEERRFRF
EEENATERN:

Internal Other

credit rating Description financial assets
ABEETHR Mk HthemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not 12m ECL

have any past-due amounts

15 & B RBZHFHEORBREE - B & F /8 H5K0R

2B AFEMEEREE

Medium risk Debtor frequently repays but usually settles after due date 12m ECL

7 [ g EEAKLEERELERINPERESR NEAABBREEER
High risk There have been significant increase in credit risk since Lifetime ECL —

initial recognition through information developed internally not credit-impaired

or external resources

= E & B AR AN BB TR EUIS ) B KL AT AE

B 8 DA 2R BR & 48 0

RiEafn FEANEHEES

B-®BEERE

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL —

credit-impaired

&8 ERBRIAZEECFEEERE FEHRNEHREES
B-FEEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off

financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect

of recovery

i 55 ERBRTNEBABABREVEREEASERSE MEEHTE

-G dE 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
In addition, the Group has applied different loss rates

to the internal credit rating category according to the
classification and nature of respective financial assets.

The table below details the credit risk exposures of
the Group's financial assets, which are subject to ECL

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

41.€®@ T Hu)
(b) EEBEERAERBKEK

(&)

1= & & B2 K a8 &F 14 (&)

o AEEERBEEEREE
ZoBEREE MY ABEE
REHERIREBERER-

TRHAINAEBEEREEZE
ERR YEAETHMEEBR

assessment: BRI
External Internal Gross
credit credit  12mor Loss rate carrying
2019 Notes rating rating lifetime ECL range amount
12853
N g FEBH BE=Z
M EEFR GFEFR REGEER H#E HRER
HK$'000
FET
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
BRATEFAEG2ERE 2
BHIR
Investments in listed bonds 19 B (i 12m ECL 2.06% to 46,185
5.59%
RER LTS REARREERS 2.06%%
5.59%
Financial assets at amortised cost
REBSRAHECEREE
Loans receivable 21 N/A Low risk  12m ECL 3% t0 5% 193,604
ERER T ERR NEARSEEESR 3% Z5%
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL 100% 16,800 {iii)
TER BiE FERNEHEERSE
Bank balances 27 AltoPrime-1 N/A 12m ECL N/A 191,668
RITER MEREE-1 THR NEARHEEESE ¥y
Other debt instrument at amortised cost 20 NJA Lowrisk  12m ECL 10% 35,235
REEKAGECEMERTIAR TER ERR NEARHEEERE
Other receivables 25  NA (ii) 12m ECL N/A 5,138
eI FE T NEAERHEERE ¥y

KEBREEARAE  2019F#H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

1. €@ T )
(b) EEBEERAERBKEK

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Notes:

(i)  Forthe purpose of internal credit impairment assessment,
the Group estimates with reference to external credit
rating adjusted by a premium on probability of default rate
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

(i)  Forthe purpose of internal credit impairment assessment,
the Group considers if there is any past due record or
other relevant information available without undue cost
or effort to assess whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

(iii)  The loans receivable was fully collateralised, and therefore
no impairment allowance was recognised.

Debt instruments at FVTOC/

The Group assesses the credit risk of debt instruments
at FVTOCI at the reporting date. The Group's debt
instruments at FVTOCI mainly comprise listed bonds
that are graded by credit-rating agencies as per globally
understood definitions and certain bonds without
external credit rating are assessed by internal credit
ratings.

(&)

1= & & B2 K 6 18 &F 14 (&)

Wt

i) BALEEREFETS K
SEZ2ZIHNHEEFRMGER
ZARBEDNER R 2HBER
BEALBIUBERALE HE
MZABEEERBE-

(i) MALEEREFETS > K
SEEZERTAEEAEAREE
AEAEALEETIBERAR
BAHER 2 Kt iE B E KA
HEERRBNEERUARE
BARELET-

(i) MREREBHEMR LI 8
FE SRR (B 7 4 -

BRFEFAEMD K
ZIEHTLTA
AEEBRREBBMITERAT
Bt ANHEMBE2EKEIZEBH T
AvEERR AEBEKRATE
AR EAKZZER I A
TEORMEETAKELRR
PHREMCZEBEEIHZLTE
% METFUEIBEETRZ
EH AR AEEETRTME-

12m ECL

1218 A & #

FEEEE

HK$'000

FE T

At 1 April 2018 R2018F4 A1 H =
Impairment allowance recognised REBEFSREE

for new financial assets purchased R EBE 1,605

At 31 March 2019 R 201943 A31H 1,505
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZZ2019%¥3A31H 1L FE

4M1.€@ T B
(b) EEBEERAERBKEK

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

XEEREEGRAH

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Loans receivable

The Group had concentration of credit risk in relation
to loans receivable amounting to HK$206,674,000 at 31
March 2019 (2018: HK$259,261,000) with 55% (2018:
60%) of the balances secured by marketable securities
or properties. The largest borrower of the Group by
itself and together with the other four largest borrowers
of the Group accounted for approximately 19% and
64% respectively (2018: 15% and 54% respectively)
of the Group's loans receivable at 31 March 2019.
As at 31 March 2019, all loans receivable are either
fully collateralised or neither past due nor impaired
and the borrowers are assessed to have satisfactory
credit quality with reference to financial background,
current creditworthiness, collateral and past payment
of each borrower. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management has reviewed the recoverable
amounts of the loans receivable regularly to ensure
that adequate impairment is made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk on loans receivable
is significantly reduced. During the year ended 31 March
2019, impairment loss for loans receivable amounting
to HK$273,000 was recognised in profit or loss. At 31
March 2019, the accumulated impairment allowance for
loans receivable amounted to HK$3,730,000.

Bank balances

No allowance for impairment was made since the
directors of the Company consider that the probability
of default is negligible as such amounts are receivable
from or placed in banks with good reputation.

20194 R

(&)

1= & & B2 K a8 &F 14 (&)

fE W E %

A &£ B R2019F3A31H B @
FRERZEFREERR S E
7/3206,674,000/8 JT(2018% :
259,261,000 T ) H #55%
(2018 : 60% ) E R A B EE FH
IMEERB - NEBARE 2 &
RKERARERKEBEE Y
HHERARAEBRAD R AERR
20193 A31H 2 EWE 4
19% K 64% (20184 : % FI15%
K 54%) > R20194F3 318 Ffr
B e YR 3R 0 B I Bk 3 &
BHERE T2EHBEE S
HEEEE2 HERESERAZ
BEEFRBERAIEERAESA
MEEEER ARBRZEER
B EEEBEETHEIREKER
Z A Y E &5 ARER S AT U [
CHEARCHMBERE AL &
PRRAIEEREAEERERE
RZEERBERARD -RE
E2019F3A3THILFEE YK
B 2 R B &8 £273,000% T
ERETANER - R2019F3 A
3R BWE R BaT R E#
% /3,730,000 T °

R 1T 4 B

MEFLREREB RARAE
ERRBHAREUEMTRESR
RZEFTBEDKBXTFRARE
EERZRITZRMFIA-
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policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other debt instrument at amortised cost

The Group assesses the credit risk of other debt
instrument at amortised cost at the reporting date. The
Group's other debt instrument at amortised cost mainly
comprise the Junior Note and the Group has assessed by
internal credit rating determined by financial background
of the issuer. During the year ended 31 March 2019, an
impairment loss on other debt instrument at amortised
cost amounting to HK$3,523,000 was recognised in
the profit or loss. At 31 March 2019, the impairment
allowances for other debt instrument at amortised cost
amounted to HK$3,523,000.

Other receivables

No allowance for impairment was made since the
directors of the Company consider that the loss given
default is minimal after assessing the counterparties’
financial background and creditability.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations. The management
also monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

At 31 March 2019, the Group has available unutilised
bank loan facilities of HK$308,395,000 (2018:
HK$339,587,000).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

1./ T B
b) MEEBEEBEEREKE

(&)

1= & & B2 K 6 18 &F 14 (&)

BHEEK AT EZEMERE
TA

AEBRREHBAFHILEE
KAFECHMEB LA ZE
BERR ANEBEZBHENAGTE
CHEHMEBRITAZTEZEBENR
ZE - WEAEBEEREBEZEITA
LB ESEMEE L AEBEE
FFAREITE RE E201943
AB1TBILEFE  ZEHEKAFTE
CEMERITAEZREBEA
3,623,000 TERNIEmANER o
M2019F 3 A31H « 8 K K
FEsHMGER T A 2 RER
{% /3,523,000 T °

H b JE W R

HRARREBEFEMNGEHE T L
MBEEEREERRRENE
BERd RAELEFELRERE-

ARBEcRBREEMT A&
BERAMBEEEEARREN
KEFZRERFRREAHEAR
SEREMFT - EEBNER
EEZHRALEREBTER

fife 3K

MN2019F3H31H - N & B F K
&) A $R 17 B X %8 € A 308,395,000
7 7t(2018%F : 339,587,000 7T, °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) A.£® T B

(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) BEBREEEBEFERBX
policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) T B B £ R (E
The following table details the Group’'s remaining TERHIWAEBz2E&MBEZ
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non- Fler & W BB - RIETES
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn MEBEMS ZXxDEXREEHT
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial WERKNRNEREIHBEHS
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group MEERTRRESREIN R -

can be required to pay.

Liquidity risk tables B E 2 7 fg &
Weighted
average On demand
effective or Total  Carrying
interest  lessthan 3 months 1t05 Over5 undiscounted amounts at
rate 3 months  to1year years years  cashflows 31 March
mELY REOME AHBERE R3ANA

ERAZ  HM3EA 3EAEIE  1E5F  RBBSE  REAE ZEEE
%  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000
TET  TAT  TET  TEZ TEL  TAL

2019
Trade and other payables % 5 Jx Lt JE 7 318 N/A 33,600 459 - - 34,059 34,059
TEA
Amount due to non- ERABRRREE N/A 101,009 - - - 101,009 101,009
controlling shareholder TER
Secured bank borrowings  FERRITEE 3.24 290,023 489,088 319720 304,764 1,403,595 1,285,984
424632 489547 319720 304,764 1,538,663 1,421,052
2018
Trade and other payables & 5 R E e 58 N/A 36,146 6,825 - - 42,97 42,971
TEE
Secured bank borrowings  ERETEE 2.55 15235 611465 200,731 439,909  1267,340 1,151,742

51,381 618,290 200,731 439,909 1,310,311 1,194713

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value

(i) Fairvalue of the Group’s financial assets that

1./ T B

(c)

AT {E

(i) RELEMEEELZ X F

are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs

BitBzA KBz @ E
EZRFHE

AEBEH »EREENR
THREAFEFE TX
MAERKERDMEETE
ZETREEAFELHE
ECORAZBEEDEREE

used). B A) o
Fair value  Valuation techniques
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March hierarchy  and key inputs
tHREE AF¥ER3IA3A AVEER REFERIEBA
2019 2018
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets at FVTPL
BRATEFABRRZEREE
- Listed equity securities 105,666 100,094  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
-FTRAE S ERE RERBT IS MR HE
- Convertible notes 28,033 N/A  Level 3 Black-Scholes model with Trinomial Tree
(note (a)) method (note 17(b))
-ABRREE THERA F3IR mER-HHBEAR=XEE
(3t (a) (B & 17(b)
- Life insurance policy 11,051 N/A  Level 2 Quoted asset value provided by
financial institution (note (b))
-ABRE THEA F2R CREBRUECHBEERE
(it (b))
- Perpetual bonds 39,916 N/A  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
-k AEF THA F1R RERTSMBRZLE
Debt instruments at FVTOCI 46,376 N/A  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
BRATEFAEMZERS 2 TEA R RERBT IS MR HE
EHIA
Available-for-sale investments N/A 109,665  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
AL ERE TER ERE RERTSMBRLE
Derivative component of N/A 10,750  Level 3 Black-Scholes model with Trinomial Tree
convertible notes (note (a)) method (note 17(b))
AR ER 2 OTER D TER ERE hER-HMBENAR=XEE
(Kt (a) (B iz 17(0))
Financial assets designated N/A 29,885  Level 2 Quoted prices provided by bank (note (b))
as at FVTPL
BEERRRTEFARRL TEA EWE RITRB2FIREB (M Zb)

TREE

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

XEEREEGRAH

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

Notes:

(@) The financial impact on changes in key inputs was
immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity analysis had
been performed.

(b) Quoted prices provided by bank or financial
institution represent the fair value based on the
quoted prices on the underlying investments.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and
3 in both years.

Upon initial application of HKFRS 9, convertible
notes, life insurance policy, available-for-sale
investments, derivative component of convertible
notes and financial assets designated as at FVTPL
were reclassified to financial assets at FVTPL,
details of which are set out in note 2.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to
their fair values.

20194 R

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ZZ2019%¥3A31H 1L FE

41.€®@ T Hu)
(c) & FE @)

(i)

(ii)

REEEMEEERLF
BitBzAEEz @ E
EZ R FEE

Hrat -

(a) REZH AL S 2 B 5
FEUWTEKR hILEE
THREDW -

(b) $RFT S AR L2
BB BBERALE
AT -

14 B2 KR EIH 2 ME
WEBRMEFEER -

RMEEREASVBRSE
ERIEIH B AT MR EE -
AEBRE JHEEKRE -
?“;‘ﬂ EBRZ2TEKRD &
? F%TTZ’D\SFEE#J\TEMB&
LERMEBEEDEHOES
ERAFEFABERZZ S
BE FRBEHINAME2-

RERBEEEMEER
AFPEFTEZEHEE
KRe@EEZ L FE
TRMEEREBEENR
FERREBENBAAESRD
TR -—REMANEER
BEE-
ARBAEZERR R&EEHM
MR RS KA R
TREENREBEEMNRE
EEELANFERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

42.ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH

ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Acquisition of Total Expect and disposal of

Wellmake Investments

On 8 March 2019, the Group completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Total Expect from a
subsidiary of Eminence for a cash consideration of
HK$1,035,000,000 and the disposal of its entire 100%
equity interest Wellmake Investments to a subsidiary of
Eminence for a cash consideration of HK$470,000,000.
The principal asset of Total Expect is the residential
properties development project located at Inverness
Road, Kowloon and the principal asset of Wellmake
Investments is the industrial building located at No.
609 Tai Nan West Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon.
Total Expect was acquired mainly for the purposes of
redevelopment of properties for sale. This transaction
had been accounted for as an acquisition of assets
as the acquisition does not meet the definition of a
business combination.

2.ZBRE HEWE QA
kg HELEEREE

(a) W BETotal Expect H &

BEREAE

MR2019F3A8H AE B 5
LWy —HEHRNBARAFNUES
X & 1,035,000,000 % JT ¢ AKX U B8
Total ExpectZ 2 #5100% & LA 3R
% A f8470,000,000% JT 58 AKX H
EENBERE Z2E100% MK
Az TFELtEz —HKB
N7 o Total ExpectZ T EEE A
MR BEEXELTENTEED
XHREREE MELSREZEE
BEMRILAERDPEBARAEA
#6095 v T ¥ K E - W i Total
Expect EZ B R ERZYEMN
EHE BHRBKEIRTE XK
EHZER BURFIEEAK
BEEAR-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42.ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Acquisition of Total Expect and disposal of
Wellmake Investments (Continued)

The net assets of Total Expect at the date of acquisition

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

e MR R M

2.ZBRE HEWES QA

W HEEEREB®

(a) W B Total Expect H &

EEBRE®E

R U EE B Hi - Total Expectz & E

were as follows: FEMT
8 March 2019
201943 H8H
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERHZE 667
Properties held for development for sale BEHERREDE 1,044,525
Trade and other receivables B 5 &k H g WK IE 329
Bank balances and cash RITEHRER® 102
Amount due to Eminence ERELtESE (456,269)
Trade and other payables B 5 & HE it RIE (10,623)
Secured bank borrowings HBEFEITEE (448,858)
Net assets acquired EEEEEFHE 129,873
Net cash outflow on acquisition: W ZH RO FRE
Cash consideration paid BENBRESERKE 1,035,000
Bank balances and cash acquired BWERTEHRRIE S (102)
Secured bank borrowings BHEBETEE (448,858)
Net cash payment on acquisition of 1l 8% Total Expect Z
Total Expect e RFE 586,040

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

42 .ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Acquisition of Total Expect and disposal of
Wellmake Investments (Continued)

REBWE HEHEB QT
W HEEEREGB®

(a) W BETotal Expect H &
BEERE®E

The net assets of Wellmake Investments at the date of RWEBH BEREZEETF
disposal were as follows: BT :

8 March 2019

20193 A8H

HK$'000

FHET

Investment properties REME 463,573
Property, plant and equipment WE BE K& 167
Trade and other receivables B REMEKKIE 2,378
Tax recoverable ] i Bl 7 78 288
Bank balances and cash RITEHRRRA S 176
Amount due to ultimate holding company ER&EERRAEHE (4,232)
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMENKE (4,495)
Secured bank borrowings BEEBRITEE (151,870)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 305,985

|

Cash consideration BeRE 470,000
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE (305,985)
Amount due to ultimate holding company N4 32 UNET A - (4,232)
Secured bank borrowings BEBRITEE (151,870)
Gain on disposal of Wellmake Investments HEZERERE 7,913

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

HESIBZRERAFR

Cash consideration received EHBREKE 470,000

Bank balances and cash disposed of HERTEBREAS (176)

Secured bank borrowings EHEBETEE (151,870)
Net cash received on disposal of HEREREEUWE 2 FE

Wellmake Investments 317,954

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition and disposal:

WBERHESNRZAER

Net cash payment on acquisition of Total Expect U B8 Total Expect 2 B & {1 5 F 58 (586,040
Net cash received on disposal of HEREREBEZERASFE
Wellmake Investments 317,954
Net cash outflow on acquisition/disposal of assets ~ FBUE HEWBATWE LEEE
and liabilities through acquisition/disposal RBBEZBREREEE
of subsidiaries (268,086)

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

42 .ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Acquisition of Success Active Limited

I kg,

2.ZBRE HEWES QA

HEEERBEE®

(b) U B8 Success Active

(“Success Active”)

On 27 July 2018, the Group completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Success Active, and
shareholder’s loan from an independent third party for
a cash consideration of HK$154,713,000. The principal
assets of Success Active are property purchase
agreements entered into by Success Active with
respective property vendors regarding 35 units of five
buildings at 470, 472, 474, 476 and 478 Chatham Road
North, Kowloon. Success Active was acquired mainly
for the purposes of redevelopment of properties for
sale. This transaction had been accounted for as an
acquisition of assets as the acquisition does not meet
the definition of a business combination.

The net assets of Success Active at the date of

Limited ([ Success
Active |)

R2018F7H278 &~ &£ B #
—EZBIYIF=ZHAUBEERE
154,713,0007% 7T 52 A% UK B Success
Active Z100% ks ANt R IR R B
e Success Active? T E B E &
Success Active L Z M EE 5
%3] B B AL N BE R B8 16470
5%~ 47258 - 47455 - 47657 4785k
AEEFANBEEML 2 YEE
B 1 5% o W Success Active = 2 B
WAEEMENELE - BRI
KETHAEBAMHZEE W
WX BEEAKEEEAR-

A U B B H - Success Active 2

231

acquisition were as follows: BEEFEBELT:
27 July 2018
20187 H27H
HK$'000
FET
Deposits paid for acquisition of WESELERRMEL
properties held for development BftiEs® 154,713
Amount due to the vendor HEREHEHE (123,667)
Net assets acquired BB EFHE 31,046
Net cash outflow on acquisition: W iE 2B & m i FRE
Cash consideration paid BERNBEERE (154,713)
Settlement of amount due to the vendor BRBERER 8 123,667
(31,046)

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

42 .ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c) Acquisition of Global Chance Holdings
Limited (“Global Chance”)

On 23 June 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of
100% equity interest in Global Chance, and shareholder
loan from an independent third party for a cash
consideration of HK$129,788,000. The principal assets
of Global Chance were property purchase agreements
entered into by Global Chance with respective property
vendors regarding 11 units of properties located at
Nos. 93, 93A, 95 and 95A Waterloo Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. Global Chance was acquired mainly for the
purposes of redevelopment of properties for sale. This
transaction had been accounted for as an acquisition of
assets as the acquisition does not meet the definition
of a business combination.

The net assets of Global Chance at the date acquisition

REBWE HEHEB QT
W HEEEREGB®

c) WBERHBHRERBRQ
A ([EREREH# )

MR2017F6 238 & & #
—EZBIAUEF=ZFUNBEETARE
129,788,0007% JT 58 AX UK 8 IR Bk
P Z100% R AR RBKRREE
HoRKAM I TEEE BRI
MREXEBAMEE T EI A
BAUREBNEBITEZE3%R
93A%E - 955% K 9BASE 2 11 @ 2
UMEZMEEEHE  WER
KEREITEENAREEDEIN
EHE - BARUHKBITEER
e ER BMURIEERAK
BEEAR-

REBEH REEEZEETF

were as follows: BT :
23 June 2017
201756823 H
HK$'000
FHE T
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties WHEFELHEEXREDE 2
held for development for sale B s 129,788
Amount due to the vendor ERELE2® (102,304)
Net assets acquired BB EFHE 27,484
Net cash outflow on acquisition: W ZHEREFE:
Consideration paid BfRE (129,788)
Settlement of amount due to the vendor BRBERET &R 102,304
(27,484)

The cash flows impact regarding the acquisitions of
Success Active and Global Chance for the years ended
31 March 2019 and 2018 were presented as operating
cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

EBE £2019F K 20184 3 A 31
H It F E Y B Success Active &
BHEEHKzESRETYEER
HRERSEREREINALER

P =
ﬁmui °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

BIEMBRARAZHFR

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation

43.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

Nominal value of
issued share/
registered capital

M20194F %2018 3 A31H * AR A
TEMBRARIZEBOT

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share capital/
registered capital held directly/
indirectly by the Company

Principal activities

ERAE L/ BRT/ ARAER/MEBECRORE/
MEARER RIRLEwYE ZMRAEE & B A R L TEEH
2019 2018
Ace Winner Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
EXRREERDTA 3G LERIBER EHRE
Arrowfield Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
EBRAER/ EBRIER EHRE
Asia Million Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BEREERDTA 3G LERIBER NERE
Charming Flash Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
EBRAER/ EBRIER EREE
Coconut King Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
EBRAER/ EBRIER EHRE
Constance Capital Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment in securities
HK$46,000,000
LEERBERAR 3G LER EHRE
46,000,000 7
Day Glory Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
FRREERDA 3G LERIBER NERE
Easyknit Properties Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property management
Limited
KEMEERERARA 3G iR 10,000% T WEER
Everjet Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property development
KEREBRAF 3G iR 10,000% T NEER
Flourishing Day Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
LERBRAR EBRAER/ EBRIER EREE
KEBMEBBRAT  2019F3K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

43.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

3. TEHME Q2R Z2HFB@®

Place of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ Nominal value of value of issued share capital/
establishment issued share/ registered capital held directly/

Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital indirectly by the Company Principal activities

EME L/ BRI/ ARNAER/MESBERORE/
MEAREE RIRSeEhs HMRAEE o 1B 2 7 Bt TEXH

2019 2018

Global Chance Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
RRARERERAA ABRARES/ LBR1ER EA
Gold Asset Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Property development
CEREBRAT B LRRIET EE
Gold Winner Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
FREZERDA B LRRIET BrR:
Golden Star Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% - Property management
eHEREERAA B LRRIET NEER
Good Merit Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property holding
EEEEBERAF B LRRIET NEER
Goodco Development Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERERERDA ZBRARES/ LBRI1ER REER
Grandcorp Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
REERBRARA B LRRIET NERE
Great East Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
KEREBRARA B TRRIET NEER
Great Sail Global Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
BRERERDF ABRARES/ LBR1ER ERRE
Happy Light Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
HEREARAT ABRARES/ LBR1ER EA
Main Profit Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
HEREERAT B ERR1ET ERmE

Easyknit International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation

43.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

Nominal value of
issued share/
registered capital

e

B ISR AR L

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

3. TEMME QA ZFBW@

Proportion of nominal

value of issued share capital/
registered capital held directly/
indirectly by the Company

Principal activities

EMEL/ BRI/ ARNAER/MESBERORE/
WEAR LR RIRGeEhs HMRAEE & 1B 2 Bt TEXH
2019 2018
Mark Profit Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment and
investment insecurities
SHERERDA Bk tERVET NERERBFRE
On Channel International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
ZEERBRAT Bk TERIER NERE
Pacific Land Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
BEREERDF Bk TERIER NEER
Pacific Way Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
BEREBRAT Bk TERIER NEER
Planetic International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Loan financing
Bk tERVET ERRE
Quick Access Enterprises Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% - Loan financing
ZBRARES/ LBRI1ER ERRE
Richstar Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
REZRBRAT Bk TERIER NEER
Success Active Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% - Property development
ZBRARES/ LBRI1ER NEER
Total Expect Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% - Property development
ZBRARES/ LBRI1ER NEER
Trump Elegant Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property development
AEREBRAT Bk Li®%10,000% T NEER
Well Honest Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
EAREBRRT Bk TERIET NERE
KEEREEFRA R 20195 5k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ20194¥3H31H L FE

43.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of
establishment issued share/

Statements

3. TEHME Q2R Z2HFB@®

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share capital/
registered capital held directly/

Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital indirectly by the Company Principal activities
EME L/ BRI/ ARNAER/MESBERORE/
MEAREE RIRBERE ZRRAEE o 1B 2 7 Bt TEXH
2019 2018
Well Smart Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 80% - Property development
AXERBRAT B L @R100% T EA
Wellmake Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,998 - 100%  Property investment
(Non-voting
deferred HK$2¥)
BEREBRAT B L@kI9BET NER:
(ERERELR
2BT*)
Winsor Miles Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ABRLEE/ ELRRIER REER
B
Widetop Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
EEREBRAT B ERRIER EE

* The non-voting deferred shares of Wellmake Investments
Limited carry no rights to receive notice of, attend or vote at
any general meeting and have very limited rights to participate
in a distribution of profits and, on liquidation, to the repayment
of the amount paid up on the shares.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a substantial
portion of the assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company result in particulars of excessive length.

* OREURBEBRAFZEREREL
BERBUREMNKRAEZBE
HESIRARGLKE BEAFEE
ERENED REMN R RIFRE
BROBHBRMOHZEHE-

NEFIRAINRZARRMEB AR
REARAEZEZER TEFE
FAZKEIBRASEBEEEZE
BN - MARAEZTZEERR
REEMMNBLARAZFREEEHN
BRITE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

43.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities

Principal place of business

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

3. TEMME QA ZFBW@

RBEHR A2 HAEEME A
%@ﬁ’ﬁ TRERZWB AR I
EMBRAANBOINBELE It
FHBARZEZXRBHMENT

Number of subsidiaries

FEXEK FTEEXME Mt~ R #E
2019 2018
Investment holding Hong Kong 20 18
REZEK &
Inactive Hong Kong 6 2
I E BB ENE
26 15

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
31 March 2019 or 31 March 2018.

No financial information of the non-wholly owned subsidiary
is disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as the
non-controlling interest is not material to the Group.

44. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed otherwise in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following non-cash
transaction. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
acquired equity-linked investments for HK$70,000,000 (2018:
HK$620,000,000). These equity-linked investments were
linked to securities listed on the Stock Exchange. Subsequent
to the acquisition, certain equity-linked investments of
HK$47,834,000 (2018: HK$97,002,000) were converted into
listed equity securities as the share price at date of maturity
of the underlying securities reached the strike price.

KEBREEARAE  2019F#H

% B KM B A B R201943A31H 5
20183 A3 HEITEMBERE

MR RERE A REETEA -
HEBRGAMBERABERLE
b 2 2 B 5 K o

UVFTEFBEERSF

BRI BERRIBEREN A&
BEBELUTIHERER S  REE2019
FIABMBLEFE AEEBARE
# 45 % & 70,000,000 7T (20184 :
620,000,000 8 L) - Z SR E B 85 1%
BERBIM EM2ESES B
A& - /T B 2 B 5% & 47,834,000
# 7T (20184 : 97,002,000 7T ) & &
MAELETBRAZFES BHEBESFRKR
BRIFECEBHEBIE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3H31HIL &

45.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 45.7K N 7] 2 Bt & R OR &
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

2019 2018
HK$000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RH B AR ER 2,381,086 2,066,668
Financial assets at FVTPL ERAFEFARERZ
EREE 11,051 =
Life insurance policy ASRE - 10,275
2,392,137 2,076,943
Current assets mEE E
Other receivables H b & W 51 IR 140 425
Tax recoverable A7 Y | B R 55 161
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR AR S 21,963 55,194
22,158 55,780
Current liabilities nEBAaE
Other payables H A FE A 308 1,299 1,349
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT BB A Bl k18 969,910 730,389
Secured bank borrowings BEMHRITEE 34,150 1,469
1,005,359 733,207
Net current liability mBAEEFE (983,201) (677,427)
Total assets less current liabilities BERLRBRTHEE 1,408,936 1,399,516
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE
Secured bank borrowings HBHEMETEE - 34,150
1,408,936 1,365,366
Capital and reserves BEARKEE
Share capital A% 2R 9,132 7,942
Reserves (note) ERCAC ) 1,399,804 1,357,424
1,408,936 1,365,366
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e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z20194¥3531H It &

45.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 45.75 A 7] 2 B R R 2Rk o)
POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Note: W&t
Movements of the Company's reserves during the current and prior ARRAZHBREARBEFEZEZD
years are as follows: wmr
Share Capital Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve surplus profits Total
B 4 % B BEXREE BAEER ES k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4 /1R 218,330 196,565 220,937 689,330 1,325,162

Profit and total comprehensive 7 & & & | &

income for the year N PN = - - 36,233 36,233

Dividend paid BERRE = - - (3,971) (3,971)

- - - 32,262 32,262

At 31 March 2018 M2018F3A31H 218,330 196,565 220,937 721,592 1,357,424

Adjustment (note 2) B E2) - - = 226 226
At 1 April 2018 (restated) R2018F4A1H

(&) 218,330 196,565 220,937 721,818 1,357,650

Loss and total comprehensive ~ ARNEFEE K

expense for the year 2HRYBE - - - (6,283) (6,283)
Dividend paid B E - - - (4,566) (4,566)
Issue of new shares BITHRG 53,550 - - - 53,550
Transaction costs attributable 4T IR 15 2

to issue of new shares RS A (547) - - - (547)

53,003 - - (10,849) 42,154
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3A31H 271,333 196,565 220,937 710,969 1,399,804
46.RECLASSIFICATION 46.E¥T 0 88
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to ETHEBRBEFTEETSDEUFA
conform with the current year's presentation. HEZZ25 -

KEFEBEEARAT  2019F#K
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Financial Summary

MBERBE

e e
RESULTS &
Year ended 31 March
BZ3ANABLEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET FET
Revenue HER 649,475 693,374 529,475 331,521 830,347
Profit (loss) before taxation BREEF(ER) 243,569 196,968 (219,885) 319,809 354,985
Taxation HiE (20,963) (32,326) (23,961) (22,646) (39,171)
Profit (loss) for the year NEEHF(ER) 222,606 164,642 (243,846) 297,163 315,814
Profit (loss) for the year JE 16 A F i 7
attributable to: (B#8) :
- owners of the Company -RARAKRER 202,867 138,936 (243,846) 297,163 315,959
- non-controlling interests -FERES 19,739 25,706 = = (145)
222,606 164,642  (243,846) 297,163 315,814
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March
R3A31H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FETL FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 5,583,688 4,124,851 3,871,349  4,434511 5,026,789
Total liabilities BEE (1,688,789) (1,031,851) (1,019,089) (1,244,356) (1,479,439)
Net assets BEEFE 3,894,799 3,093,000 2,852,260 3,190,155 3,547,350
Equity attributable to owners AR AR E
of the Company & 1 1 & 2,972,214 3,093,000 2,852,260 3,190,155 3,547,495
Non-controlling interests I 5 B 4 & 922,585 = = = (145)
Total equity BER 3,894,799 3,093,000 2,852,260 3,190,155 3,547,350
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A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

Summary of Properties

As at 31 March 2019 #20194#3531H

A. BEWME

Purpose

A&

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
MHg®E
EREE

(sq. ft.)
(‘FFR)

YE LS

Lease term

HBHOFEH

XEEREEGRAH

Block A on Seventh Floor and
Car Parking Space No. L11,
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan,

Kowloon

NEERDE T ILIEA8TH
+tEZABERLINREEN

Block B1 and portion of Block B
on Seventh Floor,

No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NEERDE T ILEA8THE
+#EZB1ERBEI D

Shops 1, 2, 3 on Ground Floor
together with showcase on

Ground Floor, First Floor and

Second Floor of Fa Yuen Plaza,

No. 19 Fa Yuen Street,

Mong Kok, Kowloon
NETEATEEREIOREREST

12 3FMkTHE —BR_#

Ground Floor, No. 50 Yun Ping Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BHMEE R TBL0MWM T

Shops A and B on Ground Floor and
Shop C on First Floor, One Victory,
Nos. 1, 1A and 3 Victory Avenue,

Ho Man Tin, Kowloon
FUBER X HBFBE15 - 1A R35%
HTIARBE R —ECH

20194 R

Industrial

T%

Industrial

T¥

Commercial

S

Commercial

[SES

Commercial

[SES

11,874

6,992

13,544

1,200

3,953

Medium

&

Medium

8

Medium

&

Long

5

Medium

B 5

241



248

Summary of Properties

Y3

As at 31 March 2019 #2019¥3H31H

B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR
DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

B. S FHERRYWE

Approximate Stage of
Location Purpose gross site area Lease term completion
b 31k Az MO RER HYFH 7T B B R
(sq. ft.)
(FHR)
1. Nos. 14-20 Inverness Road Residential 15,602 Medium Under development
Kowloon Tong, Kowloon
NENEEEXETE14-2058 E= H i ER
2. Nos. 93, 93A, 95 & 95A Residential 9,800 Long Under development
Waterloo Road, Kowloon
NBEBITEEIZH - 9BAH - T= & H R
95 5% [ 95A 5%
3. Various units of Residential 4,685 Long Not yet commence
Nos. 470, 472, 474, 476, 478
Chatham Road North, Kowloon
AR BEIL4705 - 4725 - T= =31 NGRS

47455 - AT65% « 4785% % {8 B i1
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